
 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS  

MEETING 

February 7, 2024   
 

MEETING LOCATION(S) FOR IN-PERSON ATTENDANCE BY 
BOARD MEMBERS AND MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 

 
Bay Area Metro Center 
1st Floor Board Room  

375 Beale St. 
San Francisco, CA 94105  

 
Napa County Administration Building  

1195 Third St., Suite 310 
Crystal Conference Room   

Napa, CA 94559 
 

Office of Alameda County  
Supervisor David Haubert 

4501 Pleasanton Ave. 
Pleasanton, CA 94566  

 
San Ramon City Hall 

2nd Floor Community Conference Room  
7000 Bollinger Canyon Rd. 

San Ramon, CA 94583   

Office of Contra Costa County 
Supervisor John Gioia 

Conference Room 
11780 San Pablo Ave., Suite D 

El Cerrito, CA 94530 
 

City of Palo Alto City Hall 
250 Hamilton Ave. 

Palo Alto, CA 94301  
 

Office of Santa Clara County 
Supervisor Otto Lee 

70 W Hedding St. 
East Wing, 10th Floor 
San Jose, CA 95110  

   
THE FOLLOWING STREAMING OPTIONS WILL ALSO BE PROVIDED 

 
These streaming options are provided for convenience only. In the event that streaming connections 
malfunction for any reason, the Board of Directors reserves the right to conduct the meeting without 

remote webcast and/or Zoom access. 
 

The public may observe this meeting through the webcast by clicking the link available on the air 
district’s agenda webpage at www.baaqmd.gov/bodagendas. 

 
Members of the public may participate remotely via Zoom at 

https://bayareametro.zoom.us/j/82265886301, or may join Zoom by phone by dialing (669) 900-6833 or 
(408) 638-0968. The Webinar ID for this meeting is: 822 6588 6301   

   
Public Comment on Agenda Items: The public may comment on each item on the agenda as the item is 
taken up. Members of the public who wish to speak on a matter on the agenda will have two minutes 

each to address the Board on that agenda item, unless a different time limit is established by the Chair. 
No speaker who has already spoken on an item will be entitled to speak to that item again. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 1 of 158

https://www.baaqmd.gov/bodagendas
https://nam02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fbayareametro.zoom.us%2Fj%2F82265886301&data=05%7C02%7Csreyes-stokes%40baaqmd.gov%7C1aa472e26ee342dc0ad808dc1dca6e48%7C855defaabdae4e6281e53bb7aa04fc3a%7C0%7C0%7C638418002511486714%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=GFJC2jwXJLm4IMvuzPdhSMPEZvcavS8IXvvjrylsJcI%3D&reserved=0


 

The Board welcomes comments, including criticism, about the policies, procedures, programs, or 
services of the District, or of the acts or omissions of the Board. Speakers shall not use threatening, 

profane, or abusive language which disrupts, disturbs, or otherwise impedes the orderly conduct of a 
Board meeting. The District is committed to maintaining a workplace free of unlawful harassment and 

is mindful that District staff regularly attend Board meetings. Discriminatory statements or conduct 
that would potentially violate the Fair Employment and Housing Act – i.e., statements or conduct that 

is hostile, intimidating, oppressive, or abusive – is per se disruptive to a meeting and will not be 
tolerated. 

 
 

Page 2 of 158



 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING AGENDA 

  
WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 7, 2024 
10:00 AM  

Chairperson, Davina Hurt  
1.  Call to Order - Roll Call 
  
 The Board Chair shall call the meeting to order and the Clerk of the Boards shall take roll 

of the Board members.   
  
2.  Pledge of Allegiance 
  
3.  Special Orders of the Day 
  
CONSENT CALENDAR (Items 4 - 13) 

 

  
4.  Approval of the Draft Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting of December 20, 2023 
 

 

 The Board will consider approving the Draft Minutes of the Board of Directors meeting of 
December 20, 2023.  

  
5.  Board Communications Received from December 20, 2023, through February 6, 2024 
 

 

 A copy of communications directed to the Board of Directors received by the Air District 
from December 20, 2023 through February 6, 2024, if any, will be distributed to the Board 
Members by way of email.  

  
6.  Personnel Out-of-State Business Travel Report for December 2023 
 

 

 In accordance with Division II, Section 5.4(b) of the Air District's Administrative Code still 
effective on December 31, 2023, the Board of Directors is hereby notified that the 
memorandum lists Air District personnel who have traveled on out-of-state business in the 
preceding months.  

  
7.  Notices of Violations Issued and Settlements in Excess of $10,000 in the Months of 

November 2023 and December 2023 
 

 

 In accordance with Resolution No. 2012-08 the Board of Directors will receive a list of all 
Notices of Violations issued, and all settlements for amounts in excess of $10,000, during 
the month of November 2023 and December 2023. 
 
 
  

Page 3 of 158



 

  
8.  Authorization to Amend Legal Services Agreement with Shute Mihaly & Weinberger 
 

 

 The Board of Directors will consider authorizing the General Counsel to execute an 
amendment to the existing Legal Services Agreement with Shute Mihaly & Weinberger LLP 
to increase the current contract limit by $115,000, from $885,000 to $1,000,000, for 
continued representation in the litigation regarding District Regulation 6, Rule 5; and will 
consider authorizing the transfer of $115,000 from the Outside Counsel Litigation Support 
General Fund Reserves to amend the Fiscal Year 2024 Legal Office's Litigation program 
budget.   

  
9.  Authorization to Amend Legal Services Agreement with Woodruff & Smart 
 

 

 The Board of Directors will consider authorizing the General Counsel to execute an 
amendment to the existing Legal Services Agreement with Woodruff & Smart to increase the 
current contract limit by $1,400,000, from $600,000 to $2,000,000, for continued 
representation in the matter of The Athletics Investment Group LLC v. Bay Area Air Quality 
Management District et al. The Air District's insurance carrier is covering the costs of the 
Air District's defense, subject to a reservation of rights. The Air District is therefore not 
paying these legal fees out of its budget. However, in the unlikely event that unforeseen 
circumstances could arise that result in the Air District losing coverage under the insurer's 
reservation of rights, the Air District will be required to pay for this representation. The 
Board of Directors will therefore also consider authorizing the transfer of up to $1,400,000, 
to the extent it may become necessary, from the Outside Counsel Litigation Support General 
Fund Reserves to amend the Fiscal Year 2024 Legal Office's Litigation program budget. 
This transfer would only be made in the event it may become necessary to cover fees under 
this Legal Services Agreement as a result of the insurer's reservation of rights.  

  
10.  Funding to Support the Bay Area Regional Collaborative (BARC) 
 

 

 The Board of Directors will consider authorizing $441,807 in the funding agreement 
between the Air District and the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) for FY 
2023-2024 Bay Area Regional Collaborative (BARC) Staffing Support. This agreement, 
committing a total project budget of $1,262,306, aims to facilitate joint efforts in addressing 
climate pollution reduction, regional policymaking, carbon-free energy goals, and other 
critical initiatives to enhance environmental sustainability in the Bay Area. The Air District 
and MTC each commit 35% of the total annual budget, with the Association of Bay Area 
Governments (ABAG) and the San Francisco Bay Conservation and Development 
Commission (BCDC), as the two other agencies written into the originating legislation for 
BARC, also known as the Joint Policy Committee each contributing 15% towards the total 
budget for BARC. 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 4 of 158



 

  
11.  Participation in Community Air Protection Program Implementation Funds Fiscal Year 

Ending (FYE) 2023-2024 
 

 

 The Board of Directors will consider adopting a resolution to accept the grant approved by 
the California Air Resources Board (CARB) for a grant award of $11,333,333 under the 
Community Air Protection Program for Fiscal Year 2023-2024 (23CAPP).  

  
12.  Report of the Finance and Administration Committee Meeting of December 20, 2023 
 

 

 The Board of Directors will receive a report of the Finance and Administration Committee 
meeting of December 20, 2023.  

  
13.  Report of the Community Advisory Council Meeting of January 18, 2024 
 

 

 The Board of Directors will receive a report of the Community Advisory Council Meeting of 
January 18, 2024.  

  
INFORMATIONAL ITEM(S) 

 

  
14.  Discussion of PM2.5 National Ambient Air Quality Standard and Initial Area Designations 
 

 

 The Board of Directors will receive a presentation on the PM2.5 National Ambient Air 
Quality Standard (NAAQS) and initial area designations, the Bay Area PM2.5 monitoring 
data, and the role of exceptional events in NAAQS designations. This item will be presented 
by Katherine Hoag Ph.D., Assistant Manager of Ambient Air Quality Analysis in the 
Meteorology and Measurements Division.   

  
15.  Follow-up to Board Retreat Strategic Plan Discussion 
 

 

 The Board of Directors will hear a brief summary of Director and public comments received 
from the January 31, 2024, Board of Directors Retreat session on Strategic Plan 
development, and continue the discussion on the draft Strategic Plan framework. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

  

Page 5 of 158



 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

  
16.  Public Comment on Non-Agenda Matters 
  
 Pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.3, members of the public who wish to speak on 

matters not on the agenda will be given an opportunity to address the Board of Directors. 
Members of the public will have two minutes each to address the Board, unless a different 
time limit is established by the Chair. The Board welcomes comments, including criticism, 
about the policies, procedures, programs, or services of the District, or of the acts or 
omissions of the Board. Speakers shall not use threatening, profane, or abusive language 
which disrupts, disturbs, or otherwise impedes the orderly conduct of a Board meeting. The 
District is committed to maintaining a workplace free of unlawful harassment and is mindful 
that District staff regularly attend Board meetings. Discriminatory statements or conduct 
that would potentially violate the Fair Employment and Housing Act – i.e., statements or 
conduct that is hostile, intimidating, oppressive, or abusive – is per se disruptive to a 
meeting and will not be tolerated. 

  
17.  Board Member Comments 
  
 Any member of the Board, or its staff, on his or her own initiative or in response to 

questions posed by the public, may: ask a question for clarification, make a brief 
announcement or report on his or her own activities, provide a reference to staff regarding 
factual information, request staff to report back at a subsequent meeting concerning any 
matter or take action to direct staff to place a matter of business on a future agenda. (Gov’t 
Code § 54954.2) 

  
18.  Report of the Executive Officer/APCO 
  
19.  Chairperson’s Report 
  
20.  Time and Place of Next Meeting 
 

 

 Wednesday, March 6, 2024, at 10:00 a.m. at 375 Beale Street, San Francisco, CA 94105. 
The meeting will be in-person for the Board of Directors members and members of the 
public will be able to either join in-person or via webcast. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

  

Page 6 of 158



 

CLOSED SESSION 
 

  
21.  Conference with Legal Counsel re Existing Litigation (Government Code Section 

54956.9(a)) 
 

 

 Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(a), the Board will meet in closed session 
with legal counsel to discuss the following cases: 
 
Chevron U.S.A Inc. v. Bay Area Air Quality Management District, Contra Costa Superior 
Court Case No. MSN21-1739; 
 
Martinez Refining Co. LLC v. Bay Area Air Quality Management District, Contra Costa 
Superior Court Case No. MSN21-1568; and 
 
The Athletics Investment Group, LLC v. The Bay Area Air Quality Management District, et 
al., Alameda County Superior Court Case No. 22CV010930.  

  
22.  Conference with Legal Counsel re Anticipated Litigation (Government Code Sections 

54956.9(a) and (d)(2)) 
 

 

 Pursuant to Government Code sections 54956.9(a) and (d)(2), the Board will meet in closed 
session with legal counsel to discuss significant exposure to litigation, based on facts and 
circumstances not known to a potential plaintiff or plaintiffs: One case.  

  
OPEN SESSION 

 

  
23.  Adjournment 
  
 The Board meeting shall be adjourned by the Board Chair. 
 
 

Page 7 of 158



 

 CONTACT: 
MANAGER, EXECUTIVE OPERATIONS 
375 BEALE STREET, SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94105 
vjohnson@baaqmd.gov  

(415) 749-4941  
FAX: (415) 928-8560 

 BAAQMD homepage: 
www.baaqmd.gov  

 
• Any writing relating to an open session item on this Agenda that is distributed to all, or a 

majority of all, members of the body to which this Agenda relates shall be made available at 
the Air District’s offices at 375 Beale Street, Suite 600, San Francisco, CA 94105, at the time 
such writing is made available to all, or a majority of all, members of that body. 

 
Accessibility and Non-Discrimination Policy 
 
The Bay Area Air Quality Management District (Air District) does not discriminate on the basis 
of race, national origin, ethnic group identification, ancestry, religion, age, sex, sexual 
orientation, gender identity, gender expression, color, genetic information, medical condition, or 
mental or physical disability, or any other attribute or belief protected by law.   
 
It is the Air District’s policy to provide fair and equal access to the benefits of a program or 
activity administered by Air District. The Air District will not tolerate discrimination against any 
person(s) seeking to participate in, or receive the benefits of, any program or activity offered or 
conducted by the Air District. Members of the public who believe they or others were unlawfully 
denied full and equal access to an Air District program or activity may file a discrimination 
complaint under this policy. This non-discrimination policy also applies to other people or 
entities affiliated with Air District, including contractors or grantees that the Air District utilizes 
to provide benefits and services to members of the public.  
 
Auxiliary aids and services including, for example, qualified interpreters and/or listening 
devices, to individuals who are deaf or hard of hearing, and to other individuals as necessary to 
ensure effective communication or an equal opportunity to participate fully in the benefits, 
activities, programs, and services will be provided by the Air District in a timely manner and in 
such a way as to protect the privacy and independence of the individual.  Please contact the Non-
Discrimination Coordinator identified below at least three days in advance of a meeting so that 
arrangements can be made accordingly.   
 
If you believe discrimination has occurred with respect to an Air District program or activity, 
you may contact the Non-Discrimination Coordinator identified below or visit our website at 
www.baaqmd.gov/accessibility to learn how and where to file a complaint of discrimination. 
 
Questions regarding this Policy should be directed to the Air District’s Non-Discrimination 
Coordinator, Suma Peesapati, at (415) 749-4967 or by email at speesapati@baaqmd.gov. 

 

Page 8 of 158

mailto:vjohnson@baaqmd.gov
http://www.baaqmd.gov/
http://www.baaqmd.gov/accessibility
mailto:speesapati@baaqmd.gov


   BAY AREA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
375 BEALE STREET, SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94105
FOR QUESTIONS PLEASE CALL (415) 749-4941

EXECUTIVE OFFICE:
MONTHLY CALENDAR OF AIR DISTRICT MEETINGS

   

FEBRUARY 2024

MARCH 2024

MB 2/2/2024 – 9:42 a.m.                                        G/Board/Executive Office/Moncal

TYPE OF MEETING DAY DATE TIME ROOM

Board of Directors Meeting Wednesday 7 10:00 a.m. 1st Floor Board Room

Board of Directors Stationary Source 
Committee 

Wednesday 14 10:00 a.m. 1st Floor, Yerba Buena Room

Board of Directors Community Equity, 
Health and Justice Committee

Wednesday 14 1:00 p.m. 1st Floor, Yerba Buena Room

Board of Directors Finance and 
Administration Committee 

Wednesday 21 10:00 a.m. 1st Floor Board Room

Board of Directors Policy, Grants and 
Technology Committee

Wednesday 21 1:00 p.m. 1st Floor Board Room

TYPE OF MEETING DAY DATE TIME ROOM

Board of Directors Meeting Wednesday 6 10:00 a.m. 1st Floor Board Room

Board of Directors Stationary Source 
Committee 

Wednesday 13 10:00 a.m. 1st Floor, Yerba Buena Room

Board of Directors Community Equity, 
Health and Justice Committee

Wednesday 13 1:00 p.m. 1st Floor, Yerba Buena Room

Board of Directors Finance and 
Administration Committee 

Wednesday 20 10:00 a.m. 1st Floor Board Room

Board of Directors Policy, Grants and 
Technology Committee

Wednesday 20 1:00 p.m. 1st Floor Board Room

Board of Directors Community Advisory 
Council

Thursday 21 6:00 p.m. 1st Floor, Yerba Buena Room 

Page 9 of 158



AGENDA:     4.  

BAY AREA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
      Memorandum 
 
To: Chairperson Davina Hurt and Members 

of the Board of Directors  
  
From: Philip M. Fine 

Executive Officer/APCO  
  
Date: February 7, 2024  
  
Re: Approval of the Draft Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting of December 20, 

2023 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Approve the attached Draft Minutes of the Board of Directors meeting of December 20, 2023.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
None.  
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Attached for your review and approval are the Draft Minutes of the Board of Directors meeting 
of December 20, 2023.  
 
BUDGET CONSIDERATION/FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
None.    
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Philip M. Fine 
Executive Officer/APCO 
 
Prepared by: Marcy Hiratzka 
Reviewed by: Vanessa Johnson 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1.   Draft Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting of December 20, 2023 
 

Page 10 of 158



Draft Minutes - Board of Directors Regular Meeting of December 20, 2023

 Bay Area Air Quality Management District
375 Beale Street, Suite 600
San Francisco, CA 94105

(415) 749-5073

Board of Directors Regular Meeting
Wednesday, December 20, 2023

DRAFT MINUTES 

This meeting was webcast, and a video recording is available on the website of the 
Bay Area Air Quality Management District at

www.baaqmd.gov/bodagendas 

CALL TO ORDER 

1. Opening Comments: Board of Directors (Board) Chairperson, John J. Bauters, called the 
meeting to order at 9:08 a.m.

Roll Call: 

Present, In-Person (Bay Area Metro Center, 375 Beale Street, 1st Floor Board Room, San 
Francisco, California, 94105): Chairperson John J. Bauters; Vice Chairperson Davina Hurt; 
Secretary Lynda Hopkins; and Directors Noelia Corzo, David Haubert, Tyrone Jue, and Katie 
Rice. 

Present, In-Person Satellite Location: (Palo Alto City Hall, 250 Hamilton Ave., Palo Alto, 
California, 94301): Directors Sergio Lopez, Ray Mueller, and Vicki Veenker.

Present, In-Person Satellite Location: (San Ramon City Hall, 7000 Bollinger Canyon Rd, 
Community Conference Room, 2nd Floor, San Ramon, California, 94583): Director David 
Hudson. 

Present, In-Person Satellite Location: (Office of Santa Clara County Supervisor Otto Lee, 70 W 
Hedding St., East Wing, 10th Floor, San Jose, California, 95110: Director Otto Lee.

Present, In-Person Satellite Location: (Office of Contra Costa County Supervisor John Gioia, 
11780 San Pablo Ave., Suite D, Conference Room, El Cerrito, California, 94530): Directors 
John Gioia, Mark Ross, and Steve Young.

Present, In-Person Satellite Location: (Napa County Administration Building, 1195 Third 
Street, Suite 310, Crystal Conference Room, Napa, California, 94559): Directors Joelle 
Gallagher and Erin Hannigan.

Absent: Directors Margaret Abe-Koga, Brian Barnacle, Ken Carlson, Juan Gonzalez, Myrna 
Melgar, Nate Miley, and Shamann Walton.

Page 11 of 158

http://www.baaqmd.gov/bodagendas


Draft Minutes - Board of Directors Regular Meeting of December 20, 2023

2

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. SPECIAL ORDERS OF THE DAY

Chair Bauters welcomed Rochelle Bronson, Assistant Air Quality Specialist in the Air District’s 
Compliance & Enforcement Division; LaKeisha Shurn, Administrative Assistant in the Air District’s 
Community Engagement Division; Steven Lo, Staff Specialist in the Air District’s Community 
Engagement Division; Erica Flahan, Procurement Manager in the Air District’s Administrative 
Resources Division; and Lisa Baker Human Resources Officer.

NOTED PRESENT: Director Lopez was noted present at 9:15 a.m.

CONSENT CALENDAR (ITEMS 4 – 17) 

4. Approval of the Draft Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting of December 6, 2023
5. Board Communications Received from December 6, 2023, through December 19, 2023
6. Personnel Out-of-State Business Travel 
7. Quarterly Report of California Air Resources Board Representative - Honorable Davina Hurt
8. Adopt Proposed Board and Committee Meeting Schedule for Calendar Year 2024
9. Authorization to Execute Contract Amendments with West Oakland Environmental Indicators 

Project, Beth Altshuler Muñoz Consulting, Inc., and RBA Creative, LLC
10. Authorization to Execute a Contract with Cascadia Consulting Group 
11. Authorization to Execute a Contract with CPS HR Consulting
12. Authorization to Amend Contract with the Public Health Institute’s Regional Asthma 

Management and Prevention (RAMP) Program to Support the Home Air Filtration Program 
13. Authorization to Extend the Term and Increase the Total Contract Limit of the Master Services 

Agreement with Kearns & West, Inc. for Facilitation Services to Support the Building 
Appliance Rules Implementation Working Group, Community Engagement Office, and 
Agency-Wide Public Engagement

14. Authorization of Contract to Amend Lease in San Pablo, CA

15. Report of the Legislative Committee Meeting of November 29, 2023

Potential Legislative Activities for 2024
Action Item: The Board of Directors considered approving recommended Potential Legislative 
Activities for 2024.

16. Report of the Community Advisory Council Meeting of November 30, 2023

17. Report of the Finance and Administration Committee Meeting of December 6, 2023

The Board of Directors considered the following actions recommended by the Committee:

A. Appoint Seven Candidates to the Advisory Council – The Board of Directors considered 
appointing Stephanie Holm, Phil Martien, Garima Raheja, Gina Solomon, Ann Marie 
Carlton, Michael Kleinman, and Michael Schmeltz, to the Advisory Council for a two-
year term from December 20, 2023 to December 20, 2025.

Page 12 of 158



Draft Minutes - Board of Directors Regular Meeting of December 20, 2023

3

B. Authorize Fiscal Year Ending (FYE) 2024 Mid-Year Budget and Staffing Adjustments 
– The Board of Directors considered authorizing the FYE 2024 mid-year budget and 
staffing adjustments to: 1) Authorize use of Community Air Protection Program grant 
for six (6) new Full Time Equivalents (FTEs) and seven (7) new Limited-Term Contract 
Employees (LTCEs) to support AB 617 initiatives; 2) Authorize one (1) new FTE for 
executive operations and reclassify vacant positions to support organizational 
operations, and 3) transfer $100,000 from the Legal Division’s professional services 
budget to the salaries budget specifically designated to hire one (1) temporary staff 
attorney.

Public Comments

No requests received.

Board Comments

None.

Board Action 

Vice Chair Hurt made a motion, seconded by Director Rice, to approve Consent Calendar Items 4 – 
17, inclusive; and the motion carried by the following vote of the Board:

AYES: Bauters, Corzo, Gallagher, Gioia, Haubert, Hopkins, Hudson, Hurt, Jue, Lee, 
Lopez, Rice, Ross, Veenker, Young.

NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: Abe-Koga, Barnacle, Carlson, Gonzalez, Hannigan, Melgar, Miley, Mueller, 

Walton.

PUBLIC HEARING

18. PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER ADOPTION OF PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO 
REGULATION 8: ORGANIC COMPOUNDS, RULE 8: WASTEWATER 
COLLECTION AND SEPARATION SYSTEMS (RULE 8-8), AND ADOPTION OF A 
NEGATIVE DECLARATION FOR THE PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO RULE 8-8 
PURSUANT TO THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA)

Poornima Dixit, Senior Air Quality Engineer, gave the staff presentation Proposed Amendments to 
Regulation 8: Organic Compounds, Rule 8: Wastewater Collection and Separation Systems, including: 
outcome; requested action; outline; background; simplified wastewater treatment system; emissions 
from wastewater collection and treatment systems; purpose of proposed amendments; rule development 
process; proposed amendments; emissions reductions; compliance costs; cost effectiveness and 
incremental cost effectiveness; socioeconomic impact analysis; California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA) impact analysis; statutory findings; Air District impact; comments received; and resolution 
and recommendation. 

NOTED PRESENT: Director Hannigan was noted present at 9:25 a.m.

Page 13 of 158



Draft Minutes - Board of Directors Regular Meeting of December 20, 2023

4

Chair Bauters opened the public hearing.

Public Comments

Public comments were given by Matt Diaz, Chevron; Bob Brown, Western States Petroleum 
Association; Dr. Stephen Rosenblum, Palo Alto resident; Todd Osterberg, Chevron; Jan Warren, 
Interfaith Climate Action Network of Contra Costa County; and Jennifer Ahlskog, Philipps 66.

Board Comments

The Board and staff discussed whether comments received were solely from petroleum refineries or 
other industrial businesses as well; the anticipated implementation timeline; concerns about the 
prevention of the recycling of hydrocarbons; the manner in which wastewater collection and separation 
systems are related to air pollution (overlapping regulatory authorities), whether the Air District has 
engaged with any water agencies about this regulation, and the request for written correspondence with 
a water agency for the Board’s review; the number of estimated non-refinery facilities that this proposed 
amendment may affect, and whether  cost effectiveness for non-refinery facilities has been evaluated; 
the anticipated timeline for gathering data on methane emissions related to this process, and 
appreciation for the focus on methane emissions; the request that the next time this regulation is to be 
amended, language clearly states that Publicly Owned Treatment Works will not be affected; whether 
emissions reductions can be measured in the cost analysis process; whether there is evidence to suggest 
there are a lot of emissions from equipment leaks in petroleum refineries; how much it will cost affected 
facilities to implement the required changes, per the proposed amendments; the level of engagement 
with affected facilities ahead of time; whether the Air District can determine the effectiveness of Best 
Available Retrofit Control Technology (BARCT) controls; whether the Air District quantify that this 
regulation would result in greater emission reductions than a water regulation, and whether this 
proposed regulation amendment improves upon an existing water regulation; whether the recent flaring 
incidents at the Chevron and Martinez Refining Company (MRC) are related to this item; and the 
history of the Board’s adoption of an Expedited BARCT Implementation Schedule, mandated by 
Assembly Bill 617, for industrial Cap-and-Trade facilities that did not currently have Best Available 
Retrofit Control Technology in place.

Chair Bauters closed the public hearing.

Board Action 

Chair Bauters made a motion, seconded by Director Gioia, to adopt proposed amendments to 
Regulation 8: Organic Compounds, Rule 8: Wastewater Collection and Separation Systems (Rule 8-8), 
and adopt of a Negative Declaration for the proposed amendments to Rule 8-8 pursuant to the 
California Environmental Quality Act; and the motion carried by the following vote of the Board:

AYES: Bauters, Corzo, Gallagher, Gioia, Hannigan, Hopkins, Hurt, Jue, Lee, Lopez, 
Mueller, Rice, Ross, Veenker, Young.

NOES: Hudson.
ABSTAIN: Haubert.
ABSENT: Abe-Koga, Barnacle, Carlson, Gonzalez, Melgar, Miley, Walton.

Click here to view Board Resolution No. 2023-25

Page 14 of 158

https://www.baaqmd.gov/~/media/files/board-of-directors/adopted-resolutions/2023/2023_25_amending_reg_8_8_and_adopting_ceqa_negative_declaration-pdf.pdf?rev=9b0ce259a4f0482b9cd15322993f5c5b&sc_lang=en


Draft Minutes - Board of Directors Regular Meeting of December 20, 2023

5

OTHER BUSINESS

19. PUBLIC COMMENT ON NON-AGENDA MATERS 

No requests received.

20. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS

None.

21. REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE OFFICER/AIR POLLUTION CONTROL OFFICER 
(APCO)

Dr. Philip M. Fine, Executive Officer/APCO, reported on the multiple incidents and resulting Notices 
of Violation at the Chevron and MRC sites in November and December of 2023. 

Board Comments

Director Gioia reported that the Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors ordered a safety culture 
assessment (third party review) of MRC. Director Ross noted the frequency of recent incidents at MRC 
and encouraged the Air District to use their leverage to have MRC operate in a safer manner. Director 
Young reported that the Benecia City Council, on December 19, 2023, discussed the options for 
graduating from the current Benicia – Valero Cooperation Agreement into an improved form of 
industrial oversight. 

Dr. Fine also thanked Vice Chair Hurt and Director Veenker for attending legislative meetings with Air 
District staff on Capitol Hill in Washington DC in December of 2023. Vice Chair Hurt thanked Kadesh 
and Associates for arranging and facilitating the meetings, and Director Veenker said that the Air 
District’s activities were well received by the delegation and that she has hopes of future collaboration 
with federal agencies.

22. CHAIRPERSON’S REPORT

Chair Bauters announced the following:

• Vice Chair Hurt was reappointed by the San Mateo County City Selection Committee to the Air 
District’s Board for another term, from 1/1/24 to 12/31/25

• Director Melgar resigned from the Air District’s Board, effective January 1, 2024
• Vanessa Johnson will send an email to the Board members, requesting committee assignment 

preferences. Responses are due to her by January 5, 2024
• The Board’s Finance and Administration Committee will meet following the Board meeting (on 

December 20, 2023), no earlier than 1:00 p.m.

Vice Chair Hurt announced that this is Chair Bauters’ final meeting chairing this Board. Board members 
acknowledged his leadership for the past year and a half.

Page 15 of 158



Draft Minutes - Board of Directors Regular Meeting of December 20, 2023

6

23. TIME AND PLACE OF NEXT MEETING 
 

January 31, 2024, at 10:00 a.m. at The Southeast Community Center, 1550 Evans Ave., Alex Pitcher 
Pavilion & Amphitheater, San Francisco, CA 94124. The meeting will be in-person for the Board of 
Directors members and members of the public will be able to either join in-person or via webcast.

CLOSED SESSION (10:55 a.m.)

24. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL REGARDING EXISTING LITIGATION 
(GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54956.9(a))

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(a), the Board met in Closed Session with Legal 
Counsel to discuss the following cases:

Chevron U.S.A Inc. v. Bay Area Air Quality Management District, Contra Costa Superior Court 
Case No. MSN21-1739;

Martinez Refining Co. LLC v. Bay Area Air Quality Management District, Contra Costa 
Superior Court Case No. MSN21-1568.

REPORTABLE ACTION: Alexander Crockett, District Counsel, had nothing to report.

25. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL RE ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 
(GOVERNMENT CODE SECTIONS 54956.9(a) AND (d)(2))

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(a) and (d)(2), the Board met in Closed Session 
with legal counsel to discuss significant exposure to litigation, based on facts and circumstances 
not known to a potential plaintiff or plaintiffs: One case 

REPORTABLE ACTION: Mr. Crockett had nothing to report.

OPEN SESSION (12:08 p.m.)

26. CONSIDERATION OF REMOVAL OF COMMUNITY ADVISORY COUNCIL 
MEMBER CHARLES REED

Mr. Crockett explained that the Board received information regarding a complaint filed by a member 
of the Air District’s Community Advisory Council (CAC), claiming that CAC member, Mr. Charles 
Reed, made multiple unwelcome communications of a sexual nature, directed at the Complainant. 
Consistent with Air District procedure, the Air District retained an independent, outside investigator to 
initiate an investigation of the allegations. Based on the investigation, it was found that Mr. Reed did 
engage in multiple unwelcome communications of a sexual nature, both in writing, and orally. Mr. 
Crockett said that the Air District is committed to maintain a workplace that is free from this type of 
behavior, and that, pursuant to the CAC’s governing structure, adopted by the Board on July 5, 2023, 
the Board has the authority to remove any CAC member by Board majority vote. Mr. Crockett added 
that the full details of this investigation are to be kept confidential, to project the privacy of the 
Complainant.

Page 16 of 158



Draft Minutes - Board of Directors Regular Meeting of December 20, 2023

7

Public Comments

Public comments were given by Ken Szutu, CAC; Charles Reed; Dani Jermany; Dr. Jeff Ritterman, 
CAC; Aiyahnna Johnson, East Oakland Community Emissions Reduction Plan Community Steering 
Committee; and Shirley Reed.

Board Comments

Bauters explained that the Complainant was given the option to voluntarily engage in mediation, and 
they declined. 

Board Action

Chair Bauters made a motion, seconded by Secretary Hopkins, to remove Mr. Charles Reed from the 
Air District’s Community Advisory Council, effective immediately; and the motion carried by the 
following vote of the Board:

AYES: Bauters, Corzo, Gallagher, Gioia, Hannigan, Haubert, Hopkins, Hudson, Hurt, 
Jue, Rice, Ross, Veenker, Young.

NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: Abe-Koga, Barnacle, Carlson, Gonzalez, Lee, Lopez, Melgar, Miley, Mueller, 

Walton.

27. ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting was adjourned at 12:34 p.m.

Marcy Hiratzka
Clerk of the Boards

Page 17 of 158



AGENDA:     5.  

BAY AREA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
      Memorandum 
 
To: Chairperson Davina Hurt and Members 

of the Board of Directors  
  
From: Philip M. Fine 

Executive Officer/APCO  
  
Date: February 7, 2024  
  
Re: Board Communications Received from December 20, 2023, through February 6, 

2024 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
None; receive and file.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
None.  
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Copies of communications directed to the Board of Directors received by the Air District from 
December 20, 2023 through February 6, 2024, if any, will be distributed to the Board Members 
by way of email.  
 
BUDGET CONSIDERATION/FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
None.    
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Philip M. Fine 
Executive Officer/APCO 
 
Prepared by: Michelle Beteta 
Reviewed by: Vanessa Johnson 

 
 
 
  

  

Page 18 of 158



 
 

 2 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 
None 
 

Page 19 of 158



AGENDA:     6.  

BAY AREA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
      Memorandum 
 
To: Chairperson Davina Hurt and Members 

of the Board of Directors  
  
From: Philip M. Fine 

Executive Officer/APCO  
  
Date: February 7, 2024  
  
Re: Personnel Out-of-State Business Travel Report for December 2023 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
None; receive and file.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
In accordance with Division II, Section 5.4(b) of the District’s Administrative Code still 
effective as of December 31, 2023, the Board of Directors is hereby notified of District personnel 
who have traveled on out-of-state business. The report covers out-of-state business travel for the 
month of December 2023. The monthly out-of-state business travel report is presented in the 
month following travel completion.   
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The following out-of-state business travel activities occurred in the month of December 2023: 
 
Federal advocacy trip to Washington, DC, December 10-14, 2023 attendees: 

• Alan Abbs, Legislative Officer 
• Philip M. Fine, Executive Officer/APCO 
• Viet Tran, Deputy Executive Officer of Public Affairs 

 
 
BUDGET CONSIDERATION/FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
All associated business travel-related costs are covered by the respective division's Fiscal Year 
Ending 2024 Budget. 
 
 
   
 

Page 20 of 158



 
 

 2 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
Philip M. Fine 
Executive Officer/APCO 
 
Prepared by: Michelle Hutson 
Reviewed by: Stephanie Osaze 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
None 
 

Page 21 of 158



AGENDA:     7.  

BAY AREA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
      Memorandum 
 
To: Chairperson Davina Hurt and Members 

of the Board of Directors  
  
From: Philip M. Fine 

Executive Officer/APCO  
  
Date: February 7, 2024  
  
Re: Notices of Violations Issued and Settlements in Excess of $10,000 in the Months of 

November 2023 and December 2023 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
None; receive and file.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
None.  
 
DISCUSSION 
 
In accordance with Resolution No. 2012-08, attached to this Memorandum is a listing of all 
Notices of Violations issued, and all settlements for amounts in excess of $10,000 during the 
calendar months prior to this report.  
 
BUDGET CONSIDERATION/FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
The amounts of civil penalties are collected and recorded in the Air District's General Fund.    
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Philip M. Fine 
Executive Officer/APCO 
 
Prepared by: Alexander G. Crockett 

 
 
 
 
  

  

Page 22 of 158



 
 

 2 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1.   Notices of Violations for the Month of November 2023 
2.   Notices of Violations for the Month of December 2023 

 

Page 23 of 158



NOTICES OF VIOLATIONS ISSUED

The following Notice(s) of Violation(s) were issued in November 2023:

Alameda 

Site Name Site # City NOV # Issuance
Date Regulation Comment

America's Best 
Beverage E0753 Oakland A61933A 11/7/2023 2-1-307

Permit 
Requirement/Condition 
Violation

America's Best 
Beverage E0753 Oakland A61933B 11/7/2023 6-1-301 Visible Emissions 

Violation

Asbestos 
Management 
Group of 
California

J9290 Oakland A60150A 11/9/2023 11-2-401.5 Asbestos Violation 

Au Energy 
LLC Z1937 Fremont A60691A 11/27/2023 1-420 Emission Source Data 

Violation

City of 
Berkeley/Engr 
Div/Public 
Works

A3590 Berkeley A62680A 11/7/2023 8-34-301.1 Landfill Violation

City of 
Berkeley/Engr 
Div/Public 
Works

A3590 Berkeley A62680B 11/7/2023 10 Code of Federal 
Regulation Violation 

City of 
Berkeley/Engr 
Div/Public 
Works

A3590 Berkeley A62681A 11/7/2023 8-34-301.1 Landfill Violation

City of 
Berkeley/Engr 
Div/Public 
Works

A3590 Berkeley A62681B 11/7/2023 10 Code of Federal 
Regulation Violation 

City of 
Berkeley/Engr 
Div/Public 
Works

A3590 Berkeley A62682A 11/7/2023 8-34-301.1 Landfill Violation

City of 
Berkeley/Engr 
Div/Public 
Works

A3590 Berkeley A62682B 11/7/2023 10 Code of Federal 
Regulation Violation 

Page 24 of 158



2

City of 
Berkeley/Engr 
Div/Public 
Works

A3590 Berkeley A62683A 11/7/2023 2-1-307
Permit 
Requirement/Condition 
Violation

Design 
Workshops B2094 Oakland A59765A 11/22/2023 2-1-307

Permit 
Requirement/Condition 
Violation

Kaiser 
Permanente B5097 Pleasanton A59763A 11/7/2023 2-1-307

Permit 
Requirement/Condition 
Violation

Quality 
Asbestos 
Control, Inc.

F2490 Union 
City A62656A 11/28/2023 11-2-303.6 Asbestos Violation 

RC Ready Mix 
Co A9000 Livermore A59764A 11/13/2023 2-1-307

Permit 
Requirement/Condition 
Violation

Russell City 
Energy Co. 
LLC

B8136 Hayward A59762A 11/6/2023 2-6-307
Title V 
Requirement/Condition 
Violation

Tesla, Inc. A1438 Fremont A63005A 11/8/2023 2-6-307
Title V 
Requirement/Condition 
Violation

Tesla, Inc. A1438 Fremont A63006A 11/8/2023 2-6-307
Title V 
Requirement/Condition 
Violation

Tesla, Inc. A1438 Fremont A63007A 11/8/2023 2-6-307
Title V 
Requirement/Condition 
Violation

Tesla, Inc. A1438 Fremont A63008A 11/9/2023 10 Code of Federal 
Regulation Violation 

Tesla, Inc. A1438 Fremont A63008B 11/9/2023 10 Code of Federal 
Regulation Violation 

Tesla, Inc. A1438 Fremont A63009A 11/9/2023 2-6-307
Title V 
Requirement/Condition 
Violation

Tesla, Inc. A1438 Fremont A63016A 11/22/2023 2-6-307
Title V 
Requirement/Condition 
Violation

Tesla, Inc. A1438 Fremont A63017A 11/22/2023 2-6-307
Title V 
Requirement/Condition 
Violation

Tesla, Inc. A1438 Fremont A63018A 11/29/2023 2-6-307
Title V 
Requirement/Condition 
Violation

Page 25 of 158



3

Tesla, Inc. A1438 Fremont A63019A 11/29/2023 2-6-307
Title V 
Requirement/Condition 
Violation

Tesla, Inc. A1438 Fremont A63020A 11/29/2023 2-6-307
Title V 
Requirement/Condition 
Violation

Tesla, Inc. A1438 Fremont A63010A 11/16/2023 2-6-307
Title V 
Requirement/Condition 
Violation

Tesla, Inc. A1438 Fremont A63011A 11/16/2023 2-6-307
Title V 
Requirement/Condition 
Violation

Tesla, Inc. A1438 Fremont A63012A 11/22/2023 2-6-307
Title V 
Requirement/Condition 
Violation

Tesla, Inc. A1438 Fremont A63013A 11/22/2023 2-6-307
Title V 
Requirement/Condition 
Violation

Tesla, Inc. A1438 Fremont A63014A 11/22/2023 2-6-307
Title V 
Requirement/Condition 
Violation

Tesla, Inc. A1438 Fremont A63015A 11/22/2023 2-6-307
Title V 
Requirement/Condition 
Violation

Turk Island 
Solid Waste 
Disposal Site

A3256 Union 
City A61888A 11/30/2023 8-34-301.2 Landfill Violation

Turk Island 
Solid Waste 
Disposal Site

A3256 Union 
City A61888B 11/30/2023 2-1-307

Permit 
Requirement/Condition 
Violation

Contra Costa 

Site Name Site # City NOV # Issuance
Date Regulation Comment

Chevron 
Products 
Company

A0010 Richmond A56288A 11/29/2023 6-1-301 Visible Emissions 
Violation

Chevron 
Products 
Company

A0010 Richmond A58117A 11/30/2023 1-301 Public Nuisance 
Violation 

Chevron 
Products 
Company

A0010 Richmond A63278A 11/28/2023 1-301 Public Nuisance 
Violation 

Page 26 of 158



4

Chevron 
Products 
Company

A0010 Richmond A63279A 11/28/2023 2-1-307
Permit 
Requirement/Condition 
Violation

Chevron 
Products 
Company

A0010 Richmond A63279B 11/28/2023 6-1-301 Visible Emissions 
Violation

Chevron 
Products 
Company

A0010 Richmond A63280A 11/28/2023 2-1-307
Permit 
Requirement/Condition 
Violation

Chevron 
Products 
Company

A0010 Richmond A63280B 11/28/2023 6-1-301 Visible Emissions 
Violation 

Chevron 
Products 
Company

A0010 Richmond A63281A 11/28/2023 2-1-307
Permit 
Requirement/Condition 
Violation

De Novo 
Drilling FC413 Richmond A62886A 11/2/2023 2-1-301

No Authority to 
Construct and No 
Permit to Operate

De Novo 
Drilling FC413 Richmond A62886B 11/2/2023 2-1-302

No Authority to 
Construct and No 
Permit to Operate

G&K 
Petroleum Inc. FC426 Clayton A60690A 11/9/2023 2-1-307

Permit 
Requirement/Condition 
Violation

Martinez 
Refining 
Company LLC

A0011 Martinez A58114A 11/2/2023 12-15-403 Air Monitoring Plan 
Violation

Martinez 
Refining 
Company LLC

A0011 Martinez A60900A 11/13/2023 1-301 Public Nuisance 
Violation

Martinez 
Refining 
Company LLC

A0011 Martinez A60900B 11/13/2023 6-1-305 Visible Emissions 
Violation

Martinez 
Refining 
Company LLC

A0011 Martinez A60901A 11/13/2023 1-522.4 Continuous Emissions 
Monitor Violation

Martinez 
Refining 
Company LLC

A0011 Martinez A60902A 11/13/2023 2-6-307
Title V 
Requirement/Condition 
Violation

Martinez 
Refining 
Company LLC

A0011 Martinez A60902B 11/13/2023 10 Code of Federal 
Regulation Violation 

Phillips 66 
Company - 
San Francisco 
Refinery

A0016 Rodeo A62211A 11/7/2023 1-522.4 Continuous Emissions 
Monitor Violation 

Page 27 of 158



5

Napa 

Site Name Site # City NOV # Issuance
Date Regulation Comment

Napa State 
Hospital A1634 Napa A60662A 11/27/2023 2-1-307

Permit 
Requirement/Condition 
Violation

San Francisco 

Site Name Site # City NOV # Issuance
Date Regulation Comment

Darling 
Ingredients 
Inc.

B0271 San 
Francisco A62887A 11/22/2023 2-1-307

Permit 
Requirement/Condition 
Violation

San Mateo 

Site Name Site # City NOV # Issuance
Date Regulation Comment

SFD FC425 San Bruno A61906A 11/9/2023 11-2-303.8 Asbestos Violation 

SFD FC425 San Bruno A61906B 11/9/2023 11-2-401.3 Asbestos Violation 

South San 
Francisco-San 
Bruno Water 
Quality Plant

A5876 South San 
Francisco A60959A 11/28/2023 2-1-307

Permit 
Requirement/Condition 
Violation

Santa Clara 

Site Name Site # City NOV # Issuance
Date Regulation Comment

Calstone 
Company B1735 San 

Martin A59796A 11/2/2023 2-1-301
No Authority to 
Construct and No 
Permit to Operate

Calstone 
Company B1735 San 

Martin A59796B 11/2/2023 2-1-302
No Authority to 
Construct and No 
Permit to Operate

Page 28 of 158



6

International 
Disposal Corp. 
of CA

A9013 Milpitas A61884A 11/27/2023 2-1-307
Permit 
Requirement/Condition 
Violation

International 
Disposal Corp. 
of CA

A9013 Milpitas A61885A 11/27/2023 2-1-301
No Authority to 
Construct and No 
Permit to Operate

International 
Disposal Corp. 
of CA

A9013 Milpitas A61885B 11/27/2023 2-1-302
No Authority to 
Construct and No 
Permit to Operate

International 
Disposal Corp. 
of CA

A9013 Milpitas A61886A 11/27/2023 2-1-301
No Authority to 
Construct and No 
Permit to Operate

International 
Disposal Corp. 
of CA

A9013 Milpitas A61886B 11/27/2023 2-1-302
No Authority to 
Construct and No 
Permit to Operate

International 
Disposal Corp. 
of CA

A9013 Milpitas A61887A 11/27/2023 2-6-307
Title V 
Requirement/Condition 
Violation

International 
Disposal Corp. 
of CA

A9013 Milpitas A61887B 11/27/2023 9-8-503 Internal Combustion 
Engine Violation 

Kirby Canyon 
Recycling and 
Disposal 
Facility

A1812 Morgan 
Hill A59797A 11/8/2023 8-34-303 Landfill Violation

Robert Brown FC423 San Jose A62903A 11/8/2023 2-1-301 No Authority to 
Construct 

Robert Brown FC423 San Jose A62903B 11/8/2023 8-7-301.1 Gasoline Dispensing 
Facility Violation 

Kwik Serve 
Gas & Auto FC438 Morgan 

Hill A62905A 11/20/2023 2-1-307
Permit 
Requirement/Condition 
Violation

Kwik Serve 
Gas & Auto FC438 Morgan 

Hill A62905B 11/20/2023 8-7-302.3 Gasoline Dispensing 
Facility Violation 

Mission Trail 
Oil Co. FA523 Santa 

Clara A62904A 11/20/2023 8-7-301.6 Gasoline Dispensing 
Facility Violation

Mission Trail 
Oil Co. FA523 Santa 

Clara A62904B 11/20/2023 8-7-302.3 Gasoline Dispensing 
Facility Violation

Vantage Data 
Centers 
Management 
Co. LLC

A0798 Santa 
Clara A61650A 11/2/2023 2-6-307

Title V 
Requirement/Condition 
Violation

Page 29 of 158



7

Vantage Data 
Centers 
Management 
Co. LLC

A0798 Santa 
Clara A61651A 11/2/2023 2-6-307

Title V 
Requirement/Condition 
Violation

Western States 
Oil Company A0124 San Jose A62906A 11/27/2023 8-7-302.3 Gasoline Dispensing 

Facility Violation 

Solano 

Site Name Site # City NOV # Issuance
Date Regulation Comment

Mana 
Construction 
Inc.

FC434 Vallejo A62655A 11/20/2023 11-2-401.5 Asbestos Violation 

Potrero Hills 
Landfill, Inc. A2039 Suisun 

City A62553A 11/13/2023 8-34-303 Landfill Violation

Potrero Hills 
Landfill, Inc. A2039 Suisun 

City A62553B 11/13/2023 CCR California Code of 
Regulation Violation 

District Wide 

Site Name Site # City NOV # Issuance
Date Regulation Comment

Asbestos 
Instant 
Response Inc.

FC429 Los 
Angeles A62654A 11/15/2023 11-2-401.5 Asbestos Violation 

Page 30 of 158



8

SETTLEMENTS FOR $10,000 OR MORE REACHED

There were 2 settlement(s) for $10,000 or more completed in November 2023.

1) On November 2, 2023, the District reached settlement with BMR 
Gateway of Pacific, LP for $81,000, regarding the allegations 
contained in the following 1 Notice of Violation:

NOV #
Issuance 

Date
Occurrence

Date Regulation Comments from Enforcement

A59723A 5/4/2022 3/7/2022 10 Code of Federal Regulation Violation 

2) On November 7, 2023, the District reached settlement with CEMEX 
Construction Materials Pacific, LLC for $65,000, regarding the 
allegations contained in the following 1 Notice of Violation:

NOV #
Issuance 

Date
Occurrence

Date Regulation Comments from Enforcement

A61287A 8/1/2022 2/1/2010 2-1-307 Permit Requirement/Condition Violation

Page 31 of 158



NOTICES OF VIOLATIONS ISSUED

The following Notice(s) of Violation(s) were issued in December 2023:

Alameda 

Site Name Site # City NOV # Issuance
Date Regulation Comment

Bayside 
Builders 
Group

FC441 Alameda A62657A 12/6/2023 11-2-303.8 Asbestos Violation 

Nancy 
Bankhead FC446 Livermore A63128A 12/18/2023 11-2-401.3 Asbestos Violation 

Nancy 
Bankhead FC446 Livermore A63128B 12/18/2023 11-2-303.8 Asbestos Violation 

Safety-Kleen 
of California, 
Inc.

A1190 Newark A63023A 12/18/2023 2-1-307
Permit 
Requirement/Condition 
Violation

Safety-Kleen 
of California, 
Inc

A1190 Newark A63024A 12/18/2023 2-1-307
Permit 
Requirement/Condition 
Violation

Safety-Kleen 
of California, 
Inc.

A1190 Newark A63026A 12/19/2023 8-18-502 Equipment Leak 
Violation

Tesla, Inc. A1438 Fremont A63021A 12/5/2023 2-6-307
Title V 
Requirement/Condition 
Violation

Tesla, Inc. A1438 Fremont A63022A 12/8/2023 8-13-503

Light and Medium 
Duty Motor Vehicle 
Assembly Plants 
Violation

Tesla, Inc. A1438 Fremont A63025A 12/18/2023 2-6-307
Title V 
Requirement/Condition 
Violation

Page 32 of 158



2

Contra Costa 

Site Name Site # City NOV # Issuance
Date Regulation Comment

Chevron 
Products 
Company

A0010 Richmond A56289A 12/11/2023 1-301 Public Nuisance 
Violation

City of 
Richmond 
Wastewater 
Treatment 
Plant

A2482 Richmond A62688A 12/7/2023 1-301 Public Nuisance 
Violation

Corteva 
Agriscience - 
Pittsburg 
Operations

A0031 Pittsburg A62558A 12/11/2023 2-1-301 No Authority to 
Construct

Martinez 
Refining 
Company 
LLC

A0011 Martinez A58118A 12/15/2023 1-301 Public Nuisance 
Violation

Martinez 
Refining 
Company 
LLC

A0011 Martinez A63153A 12/26/2023 1-522.4 Continuous Emission 
Monitor Violation

Martinez 
Refining 
Company 
LLC

A0011 Martinez A63154A 12/26/2023 2-6-307
Title V 
Requirement/Condition 
Violation

Martinez 
Refining 
Company 
LLC

A0011 Martinez A63154B 12/26/2023 8-28-304.1
Refinery Pressure 
Relief Device 
Violation 

Mitch 
Bloomfield FC444 Brentwood A62556A 12/11/2023 5-301 Open Burn Violation

Phillips 66 
Company - 
San Francisco 
Refinery

A0016 Rodeo A62212A 12/8/2023 2-6-307
Title V 
Requirement/Condition 
Violation

Richmond 
Products 
Terminal

A0057 Richmond A62771A 12/13/2023 8-5-320 Storage Tank Violation

Richmond 
Products 
Terminal

A0057 Richmond A62772A 12/13/2023 8-5-322 Storage Tank Violation

SFD FC451 Martinez A63228A 12/16/2023 6-3-301 Fireplace Wood Smoke 
Violation

Page 33 of 158



3

Tesoro 
Refining & 
Marketing 
Company, 
LLC

B2758 Martinez A61955A 12/6/2023 2-1-301
No Authority to 
Construct and No 
Permit to Operate

Tesoro 
Refining & 
Marketing 
Company, 
LLC

B2758 Martinez A61955B 12/6/2023 2-1-302
No Authority to 
Construct and No 
Permit to Operate

Tesoro 
Refining & 
Marketing 
Company, 
LLC

B2758 Martinez A63155A 12/26/2023 1-522.4 Continuous Emissions 
Monitor Violation

San Mateo 

Site Name Site # City NOV # Issuance
Date Regulation Comment

City of 
Burlingame, 
Waste Water 
Treatment 
Plant

A1351 Burlingame A60960A 12/20/2023 9-8-503 Internal Combustion 
Engine Violation

City of 
Burlingame, 
Waste Water 
Treatment 
Plant

A1351 Burlingame A60961A 12/20/2023 8-34-301.2 Landfill Violation

Magic Auto 
Paint & Body A5322 Redwood 

City A59190A 12/14/2023 2-1-302 No Permit to Operate

Page 34 of 158



4

Solano 

Site Name Site # City NOV # Issuance
Date Regulation Comment

Valero 
Refining 
Company

B5574 Benicia A62160A 12/20/2023 8-5-304.4 Storage Tank Violation

Valero 
Refining 
Company - 
California

B2626 Benicia A62159A 12/20/2023 8-5-304.4 Storage Tank Violation

Valero 
Refining 
Company - 
California

B2626 Benicia A62200A 12/6/2023 2-6-307
Title V 
Requirement/Condition 
Violation

Valero 
Refining 
Company - 
California

B2626 Benicia A62201A 12/20/2023 2-6-307
Title V 
Requirement/Condition 
Violation

Valero 
Refining 
Company - 
California

B2626 Benicia A62202A 12/26/2023 2-6-307
Title V 
Requirement/Condition 
Violation

Valero 
Refining 
Company - 
California

B2626 Benicia A62202B 12/26/2023 1-522.7 Continuous Emissions 
Monitor Violation

Sonoma 

Site Name Site # City NOV # Issuance
Date Regulation Comment

SFD FC443 Santa Rosa A62658A 12/11/2023 11-2-303.8 Asbestos Violation

Page 35 of 158



5

SETTLEMENTS FOR $10,000 OR MORE REACHED

There were 4 settlement(s) for $10,000 or more completed in December 2023.

1) On December 4, 2023, the District reached settlement with Napa 
State Hospital for $15,500, regarding the allegations contained in the 
following 1 Notice of Violation:

NOV #
Issuance 

Date
Occurrence

Date Regulation Comments from Enforcement

A60458A 1/27/2021 1/7/2020 9-7-307 Boiler Emissions Violation 

2) On December 6, 2023, the District reached settlement with P.W. 
Stephens Environmental, Inc. for $13,500, regarding the allegations 
contained in the following 1 Notice of Violation:

NOV #
Issuance 

Date
Occurrence

Date Regulation Comments from Enforcement

A61657A 5/3/2022 5/3/2022 11-2-303.1 Asbestos Violation 

A61657B 5/3/2022 5/3/2022 11-2-303.6 Asbestos Violation 

3) On December 13, 2023, the District reached settlement with Vulcan 
Materials Western Division for $228,000, regarding the allegations 
contained in the following 2 Notices of Violations:

NOV #
Issuance 

Date
Occurrence

Date Regulation Comments from Enforcement

A60412A 8/16/2021 6/30/2021 1-301 Public Nuisance Violation

A60412B 8/16/2021 6/30/2021 1-440 Denied Access Violation

A60879A 4/11/2022 10/14/2021 2-1-307 Permit Requirement/Condition Violation

4) On December 14, 2023, the District reached settlement with Prime 
Skylark LLC for $10,000, regarding the allegations contained in the 
following 3 Notices of Violations:

NOV #
Issuance 

Date
Occurrence

Date Regulation Comments from Enforcement

A61667A 11/7/2022 7/15/2022 11-2-303.8 Asbestos Violation

A61669A 11/20/2022 8/24/2022    11-2-304 Asbestos Violation

A61669B 11/10/2022 8/24/2022 11-2-303.9 Asbestos Violation

A61670A 11/10/2022 8/24/2022 11-2-303.8 Asbestos Violation

Page 36 of 158



AGENDA:     8.  

BAY AREA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
      Memorandum 
 
To: Chairperson Davina Hurt and Members 

of the Board of Directors  
  
From: Philip M. Fine 

Executive Officer/APCO  
  
Date: February 7, 2024  
  
Re: Authorization to Amend Legal Services Agreement with Shute Mihaly & Weinberger 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Authorize the General Counsel to execute an amendment to the existing Legal Services 
Agreement with Shute Mihaly & Weinberger LLP to increase the current contract limit by 
$115,000, from $885,000 to $1,000,000, for continued representation in the litigation regarding 
District Regulation 6, Rule 5; and authorize the transfer of $115,000 of designated reserve funds 
to Program 205 – Litigation. (Note that pursuant to Section 8.2(b)(5) of the new Administrative 
Code effective January 1, 2024, contracts for outside counsel services are now executed by the 
General Counsel, with authorization by the Board of Directors for contracts over $200,000.)  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
In July of 2021, the Board of Directors adopted amendments to Air District Regulation 6, Rule 5 
– Particulate Emissions From Petroleum Refinery Fluidized Catalytic Cracking Units 
(Regulation 6-5). These amendments were a very high-profile and important regulatory effort by 
the Air District. The amendments will achieve significant public health benefits by reducing the 
amount of fine particulate matter emitted from Bay Area petroleum refineries. The amendments 
also fulfilled a commitment the Board of Directors made in its 2018 AB 617 Expedited BARCT 
Implementation Schedule to update this regulation. 
  
In September of 2021, two affected petroleum refineries filed Petitions for Writ of Mandate in 
Contra Costa County Superior Court challenging the Board’s adoption of the Regulation 6-5 
amendments. The two cases are Martinez Refining Co. LLC v. BAAQMD (Case No. N-21-1568) 
and Chevron U.S.A., Inc. v. BAAQMD (Case No. N21-1739). The cases allege that the Air 
District violated requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and the 
California Health & Safety Code in adopting these amendments to Regulation 6-5. The Chevron 
U.S.A., Inc. case also alleges violations of the California Public Records Act. The Air District 
strongly denies that it violated any legal requirements in connection with these amendments. 
 
The cases have been fully briefed, and the court has scheduled a hearing on the merits of the 
refineries' claims for February 29, 2024. The court will then render a decision within 90 days 
thereafter.  

Page 37 of 158



 
 

 2 

 
DISCUSSION 
 
This proposed amendment to the Legal Services Agreement is necessary to support Shute 
Mihaly's anticipated work in the weeks leading up to the hearing. There are a variety of tasks that 
Shute Mihaly will need to undertake during this time period, which require additional resources 
not covered by the current contract limit. Shute Mihaly estimates that up to an additional 
$115,000 may be needed for this work. Although this amount represents Shute Mihaly's best 
estimate, it is only an estimate, and it is possible that actual defense costs could be different, as 
litigation costs cannot be predicted with certainty. Shute Mihaly will provide the Air District 
with advance notice if it expects the total litigation costs to exceed $1,000,000. In the event that 
it looks like costs could exceed this amount, the General Counsel will come back to the Board to 
seek a supplemental authorization before exceeding the authorized limit of $1,000,000. 
 
This legal services agreement is one of two that the Air District has with Shute Mihaly. The other 
is a framework agreement entered into on March 7, 2022, for representation on an as-requested 
basis regarding matters within the District’s mission for which the District desires the Firm’s 
expertise or needs additional assistance. That agreement is contract no. 2022.259, with a not-to-
exceed contract limit of $30,000.    
 
BUDGET CONSIDERATION/FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
The Fiscal Year 2024 budget included $6.88 million in designated reserves for outside counsel 
litigation support. This budget allocation is sufficient to cover the additional $115,000 in 
anticipated costs of this litigation. If approved, this action will transfer $115,000 from these 
designated reserves to amend the Fiscal Year 2024 Legal Office's Litigation program budget. 
This additional $115,000 transfer would be in addition to two earlier transfers totalling $270,000 
from the FY 2024 designated reserves that the Board has approved this fiscal year.    
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Philip M. Fine 
Executive Officer/APCO 
 
Prepared by: Alexander G. Crockett 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

  

Page 38 of 158



 
 

 3 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1.   Legal Services Agreement - Shute Mihaly - 2022.198 - Final executed 8-2-2022 
2.   Contract 2022.198 - Shute Mihaly Legal Services Agreement - Amendment 1 
3.   Contract 2022.198 - Shute Mihaly Legal Services Agreement - Amendment 2 
4.   Contract 2022.198 - Shute Mihaly Legal Services Agreement - Amendment 3 
5.   DRAFT Amendment No. 4 to Shute Mihaly Legal Services Agreement 2022.198 - January 

24, 2024 
 

Page 39 of 158



Page 40 of 158



Page 41 of 158



Page 42 of 158



Page 43 of 158



Page 44 of 158



Page 45 of 158



Page 46 of 158



Page 47 of 158



Page 48 of 158



DRAFT

396 HAYES STREET, SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94102 

T: (415) 552-7272   F: (415) 552-5816 

www.smwlaw.com 

ROBERT "PERL" PERLMUTTER 

Attorney 

Perlmutter@smwlaw.com 

January 24, 2024 

Via Electronic Mail Only 

Alexander Crockett 
General Counsel 
Bay Area Air Quality Management District 
375 Beale St Ste 600 
San Francisco, CA 94105-2097 
E-Mail: ACrockett@baaqmd.gov

Re: Budget Augmentation for Defending Regulation 6-5 Litigation 

Dear Sandy: 

As we discussed, I am writing to request a further amendment to the June 
29, 2022, Retainer Agreement (“Agreement”) governing this Firm’s defense of the Bay 
Area Air Quality Management District (“District”) in the two lawsuits challenging the 
District’s July 21, 2021 adoption of amendments to Regulation 6-5, in order to increase 
the estimated budget for this representation.  

Under Paragraph 3 of the Agreement, and as amended on February 17, 
2023, July 10, 2023, and November 16, 2023, our most recent approved estimate was that 
the costs of defending the District through conclusion of the trial court proceedings 
would not exceed $885,000. The Agreement also noted that the actual costs of defending 
the litigation could exceed this amount and provided that the Firm would require the Air 
District’s written approval to exceed that amount. The litigation has involved substantial 
unanticipated work since its inception that has resulted in costs exceeding our earlier 
estimates, including but not limited to litigating disputes over the administrative record 
and extensive additional work in recent months in advance of the hearing on the merits of 
the cases. 

We are now requesting a further augmentation, of $115,000, in light of the 
significant additional work that these cases have entailed. 

Page 49 of 158



DRAFT

 

Alexander Crockett 
January 24, 2024 
Page 2 
 
 

 

All other terms of the Agreement—including its incorporation of terms in 
the Firm’s March 7, 2022, Framework Agreement with the District—will remain the 
same.  If this amendment is satisfactory to the District, please execute a copy and return it 
to me. 

We look forward to continuing to work with you to defend the District in 
this matter.  

 Very truly yours, 
 
SHUTE, MIHALY & WEINBERGER LLP 
 

 
 
Robert “Perl” Perlmutter

 
ACCEPTED AND AGREED: 

Bay Area Air Quality Management District 

 

__________________________________ 
Alexander Crockett  
District Counsel  
 

Date:   ____________________________ 

 

 

 
1737614.1  

Page 50 of 158



AGENDA:     9.  

BAY AREA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
      Memorandum 
 
To: Chairperson Davina Hurt and Members 

of the Board of Directors  
  
From: Philip M. Fine 

Executive Officer/APCO  
  
Date: February 7, 2024  
  
Re: Authorization to Amend Legal Services Agreement with Woodruff & Smart 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Recommend the Board of Directors authorize the General Counsel to execute an amendment to 
the existing Legal Services Agreement with Woodruff & Smart to increase the current contract 
limit by $1,400,000, from $600,000 to $2,000,000, for continued representation in the matter of 
The Athletics Investment Group LLC v. Bay Area Air Quality Management District et al. This 
representation is being paid for by the Air District's insurance carrier, subject to a reservation of 
rights. However, in the unlikely event that some reason emerges for the insurer to decline 
coverage, the Air District will be required to pay for this representation. For this reason, staff 
also recommend the Board of Directors authorize the transfer of up to $1,400,000 from the 
Outside Counsel Litigation Support General Fund Reserves to amend the Fiscal Year 2024 Legal 
Office's Litigation program budget to the extent necessary to cover fees for which the Air 
District may become liable as a result of the insurer's reservation of rights.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Air District is currently in litigation with the owners of the Oakland Athletics baseball club 
("the As") in a lawsuit alleging that the Air District has improperly issued permits to Schnitzer 
Steel Industries, Inc., for Schnitzer’s metal shredding facility in Oakland. The lawsuit seeks an 
order requiring the Air District to revoke the facility’s permit to operate. The Air District denies 
that it has improperly issued any permits and is vigorously contesting the case. 
 
The Air District is being represented in this litigation by Woodruff & Smart and its Director 
Bradley Hogin, Esq. Woodruff & Smart and Mr. Hogin have extensive experience representing 
agencies like the Air District in lawsuits like this one where a permit issued to a regulated entity 
is being challenged by a third party. Mr. Hogin has in fact represented other California air 
districts in permit challenges highly similar to this one, among other similar matters.  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 51 of 158



 
 

 2 

DISCUSSION 
 
The current legal services agreement with Woodruff & Smart has a budget limit of $600,000 to 
represent the Air District through trial in this matter. This contract limit was based on an 
expectation that the case would be tried on a limited administrative record and would not require 
extensive discovery. Since that contract limit was established, the As sought leave to propound 
discovery, which the Court granted. The As also served a subpoena on the Air District in a 
related federal lawsuit against Schnitzer Steel directly, which also sought extensive documents 
and deposition testimony from Air District staff. The As have also made extensive Public 
Records Act requests as an additional way to seek documents related to the lawsuits against both 
the Air District and Schnitzer Steel directly. Engaging in this unanticipated discovery process has 
greatly expanded the scope of work required for this litigation, which has increased the estimated 
cost of taking the case through trial to an amount that could be as much as $2,000,000. 
 
The General Counsel therefore seeks approval from the Board of Directors to authorize an 
amendment to the current legal services agreement to increase the maximum contract amount to 
$2,000,000 to cover work through the remainder of the completion of the discovery process, 
including the remaining work needed to respond to the As' unanticipated document requests and 
depositions, as well as pre-trial briefing and taking the case through to the trial in this writ 
petition case. This is only an estimate, as litigation costs cannot be predicted with certainty. 
Accordingly, it is possible that litigation expenses could exceed the projected estimate. Woodruff 
& Smart will provide the District with advance notice if it expects its fees to exceed $2,000,000. 
In the event that it looks like costs will exceed this amount, staff will come back to the Board to 
seek a supplemental authorization before exceeding the authorized limit of $2,000,000. 
 
These legal fees are being covered through the Air District's insurance policies under an 
agreement by the District's insurance carrier to pay the District's defense costs. As a result, 
staff do not expect that the Air District will be required to pay these fees itself. The work is 
being undertaken on the Air District's behalf, and Woodruff & Smart are representing the Air 
District as their client, so the Legal Services Agreement between the two parties needs to be 
amended to reflect the full scope of the work to be undertaken. 
 
In addition, although the insurance carrier is paying these legal fees and the Air District is not 
out-of-pocket as a result of them, the insurance carrier is paying subject to a reservation of rights. 
In the unlikely event that insurance coverage becomes unavailable because of the reservation of 
rights, staff seek Board authorization to transfer funds from the from the Outside Counsel 
Litigation Support General Fund Reserves, to the extent it may become necessary, to reimburse 
the insurance carrier for these fees. This transfer would not be made as long as the insurer 
continues to pay the fees. But if unforeseen circumstances arise that give the insurer a reason to 
decline coverage, staff would transfer the funds to the Legal Division's Litigation Program 
budget (Program 205) in order to cover the fees. 
 
This legal services agreement is one of two that the Air District has with Woodruff & Smart. The 
other is Contract No. 2022.293, for representation in the matter of Communities for a Better 
Environment v. Bay Area Air Quality Management District et al., the litigation regarding Air 
District Regulation 11-18. That agreement has a not-to-exceed contract limit of $95,000. 

Page 52 of 158



 
 

 3 

Woodruff & Smart has billed approximately $51,000 under that agreement. Staff do not 
anticipate any further billings under that agreement, as the case has settled.   
 
BUDGET CONSIDERATION/FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
The Fiscal Year budget included $6.88 million in designated reserves for outside counsel 
litigation support. If the Air District were to become liable for the costs of this litigation, this 
action would transfer up to $1,400,000 from these designated reserves, as necessary, to the extent 
it may be required to cover fees for which the Air District could potentially become liable in the 
future as a result of the insurer's reservation of rights. Any such transfer would amend the Fiscal 
Year 2024 budget for Program 205 – Litigation.    
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Philip M. Fine 
Executive Officer/APCO 
 
Prepared by: Alexander Crockett 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1.   Woodruff Spradlin Engagement Letter - Contract 2022-138 - 5-27-2022 
2.   Amendment 1 to Woodruff Spradlin Engagement Letter - Contract 2022-138 
3.   Amendment 2 to Woodruff Spradlin Engagement Letter - Contract 2022-138 
4.   Amendment 3 to Woodruff & Smart Engagement Letter - Contract 2022-138 
5.   DRAFT Amendment 4 to Woodruff Spradlin Engagement Letter - Contract 2022.138 - 

January 2024 
 

Page 53 of 158



Page 54 of 158



Page 55 of 158



Page 56 of 158



Page 57 of 158



Page 58 of 158



Page 59 of 158



Page 60 of 158



Page 61 of 158



Page 62 of 158



Page 63 of 158



WOODRUFF & SMART, APC 
555 ANTON BOULEVARD, SUITE 1200 | COSTA MESA, CA 92626-7670 | TELEPHONE (714) 558-7000 | FAX (714) 835-7787 

WWW.WOODRUFF.LAW 

BRADLEY R. HOGIN 
DIRECT DIAL: (714) 415-1006 
E-MAIL: BHOGIN@WOODRUFF.LAW

January 25, 2024 

VIA ELECTRONIC AND REGULAR MAIL 

Alexander Crockett, Esq. 
General Counsel 
Bay Area Air Quality Management District 
375 Beale Street, Suite 600 
San Francisco, CA 94105 
ACrockett@baaqmd.gov 

Re:  The Athletics Investment Group, LLC v.  Bay Area Air Quality Management 
District 

Dear Sandy: 

As we discussed, you have increased the budget for the above-entitled matter to 
$2,000,000.  We estimate that this budget should last through the the trial in this case.  Please 
keep in mind that this is just an estimate.  The actual amount will depend on developments 
that we cannot predict with any degree of certainty such as the number and complexity of 
discovery disputes and motions.  Our actual fees could be higher or lower.  Our fees will not 
exceed a total of $2,000,000 without further authorization from you.  We will notify you if 
and when the budget is exhausted. 

Please let me know if you have any questions. 

DRAFT

Page 64 of 158



January 25, 2024 
Page 2 

Very truly yours, 

WOODRUFF & SMART 
A Professional Corporation 

BRADLEY R. HOGIN 

ACCEPTED AND AGREED TO: 

___________________________________ 
(Signature) 

Alexander G. Crockett 
General Counsel
Bay Area Air Quality Management District 

DRAFT

Page 65 of 158



AGENDA:     10.  

BAY AREA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
      Memorandum 
 
To: Chairperson Davina Hurt and Members 

of the Board of Directors  
  
From: Philip M. Fine 

Executive Officer/APCO  
  
Date: February 7, 2024  
  
Re: Funding to Support the Bay Area Regional Collaborative (BARC) 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Recommend the Board of Directors consider authorizing the Executive Officer/APCO to execute 
all necessary agreements with the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) to fund the 
Bay Area Regional Collaborative (BARC) for fiscal year ending (FYE) 2024 in an amount not to 
exceed $441,807.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
BARC is a consortium of member agencies that come together to address cross-cutting issues of 
regional significance, with the goal of improving the quality of life for all Bay Area residents. 
BARC provides a mechanism through which its member agencies can learn, explore, collaborate, 
incubate, coordinate, and communicate policies and best practices that agency leadership can 
decide to advance collectively and singularly. BARC is made up of a Governing Board of 
member agency commission/board representatives, an Executive Directors Group, and other staff 
cross-agency work teams.  
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Each year, member agencies determine their annual contributions to support the budget to 
complete the work plan. The Governing Board then approves the budget.  
 
BUDGET CONSIDERATION/FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
Funding for this contract is included in the Fiscal Year 2024 Budget under Program 104 - 
Executive Office.    
 
 
 
 
 

Page 66 of 158



 
 

 2 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Philip M. Fine 
Executive Officer/APCO 
 
Prepared by: Hyacinth Hinojosa 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1.   Approved BARC Shared Work Plan  
2.   Approved BARC FY24 Budget_3 Year Comparison 
3.   Draft Cooperative Agreement between MTC and Bay Area Air Quality Management 

District Regarding FYE 2024  
 

Page 67 of 158



Bay Area Regional Collaborative 
Shared Work Plan 

District 4 

May 20, 2022 

Page 68 of 158



Acknowledgements 
BARC Staff Team: Allison Brooks, Lucian Go, Alhad Dighe 

ARUP Team: Kate White, Katrina Von Burg, Jack Hogan, Casie Venable, Karuna 
Phillips 

Thank you to Executive Leadership and participation of staff from: 

Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG): San Franciso Estuary Partnership 

(SFEP), Bay Area Regional Energy Network (BayREN) 

Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD) 

Caltrans District 4 

The San Francisco Bay Conservation & Development Commission (BCDC) 

Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC)  

California State Coastal Conservancy 

San Francisco Bay Regional Water Quality Control Board (Water Board) 

Page 69 of 158



1 

BARC Governing Board Members 
ABAG - Association of Bay Area Governments 
Jesse Arreguin, Vice Chair 
David Hudson 
Belia Ramos 
David Rabbitt 

BAAQMD - Bay Area Air Quality Management District 
Teresa Barrett 
John Bauters 
David Haubert 
Mark Ross 

BCDC – Bay Conservation & Development Commission 
John Gioia 
Dave Pine 
Brad Wagenknecht 
Zack Wasserman 

MTC - Metropolitan Transportation Commission 
Amy R. Worth, Chair 
Alfredo Pedroza 
James P. Spering 

Non-Voting Members 

Caltrans District 4 
Dina El-Tawansy, Director 

San Francisco Bay Regional Water Quality Control Board 
Lisa McCann, Assistant Executive Officer 

State Coastal Conservancy 
Amy Hutzel, Executive Officer 

Page 70 of 158



2 

Table of Contents 

Introduction 3 

Background 4 

Focus Area One: Climate Adaptation 8 

Initiative 1: Regional Multi-Hazard Climate Adaptation Plan  8 

Initiative 2: Regional Climate Adaptation Technical Assistance 13 

Focus Area Two: Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions Reduction 16 

Initiative 3: Zero-Emission Transit Bus Infrastructure 16 

Exploratory Area: Low-Carbon, High-Equity Neighborhoods 19 
Description  19 
Context and Opportunity 19 

Conclusion & Next Steps 20 

Recommendation  21 

Appendices 22 

Appendix A: BARC September 2021 Joint Resolution  23 

Appendix B: Public Comment Period: Comment Letters 24 

Page 71 of 158



3 

Bay Area Regional Collaborative (BARC) 
Shared Work Plan 

May 20, 2022 

Introduction 
Addressing the challenge of climate change with any level of success requires an “all-
hands-on-deck” approach in the San Francisco Bay Area. It requires partnership and 
collaboration among people and communities, among public agencies and private 
organizations, and across all levels of government to ensure the plans, policies, 
projects and investments made to mitigate and adapt to climate change are equitable, 
fair and meaningful. Everybody has a role to play! The keys are to map out who is best 
positioned to do what, and then to generate the resources needed so everyone can 
perform their roles and meet their responsibilities.  

The Bay Area Regional Collaborative (BARC) Shared Work Plan outlines several 
initiatives to better understand and optimize the roles of specific regional 
agencies — and state agencies with Bay Area districts — in meeting the climate 

Page 72 of 158



4 

emergency. Building off work in which the seven participating agencies already are 
engaged, the Shared Work Plan aims to foster both greater collaboration and an 
inclusive environment in which the agencies’ work can be continually informed, 
enriched and improved. 

A full understanding of roles to be played by regional agencies must also be informed 
by the stakeholders who will benefit from a strong, coordinated, and focused regional 
role in climate adaptation and mitigation. These include cities, counties, special 
districts, community-based organizations, and many others who lead the charge at the 
local level. 

Background 
BARC was created through state statute (SB 849, Torlakson, 2004)1 to foster the 
collaboration of the Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG), the Bay Area Air 
Quality Management District (BAAQMD), the San Francisco Bay Conservation and 
Development Commission (BCDC) and the Metropolitan Transportation Commission 
(MTC) to address issues of regional significance. Joining this consortium as non-voting 
members (voluntarily participating, but not yet written into the legislation) are Caltrans 
District 4, the California State Coastal Conservancy, and the San Francisco Water 
Quality Control District.  

BARC operates under the premise that there is value in regional agencies exercising a 
strong role in helping to address climate change and other issues of regional 
significance, and that greater coordination among regional and state agencies will:  

• Model good governance by eliminating the duplication of efforts.
• Ensure the respective policies, programs and investments of each agency are

aligned as much as possible, and not working at cross purposes.
• Support the leadership, best practices and innovation advanced by local

jurisdictions and other critical stakeholders, and help bring them to scale.
• Allocate resources in a fair, equitable and level-setting manner to ensure the

Bay Area’s low-income, frontline communities of color have the capacity to lead
in local and regional problem solving.

In September 2021, the BARC Governing Board approved the Joint Resolution to 
Address Climate Change (Appendix A). The Resolution is an urgent call for action by 
the BARC member agencies to work together to measurably to reduce the harmful 

1 https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=200320040SB849 

Page 73 of 158



5 

contributors to and the impacts from climate change in the Bay Area, particularly for 
people and communities at the frontlines of risk.  

As stated in the Resolution, the BARC member agencies will “work together to 
strategically align planning and regulatory actions in order to accelerate the 
implementation of strategies that advance climate mitigation and adaptation goals.” 
The Draft BARC Shared Work Plan is designed as a mechanism by which the 
agencies will do just that, outlining three ambitious initiatives to produce measurable 
results within the next one to five years to equitably reduce greenhouse gas emissions 
and advance a strategic regional approach to adapting to climate change: 

1. Regional Multi-Hazard Adaptation Plan
2. Regional Climate Adaptation Technical Assistance
3. Zero-Emission Transit Bus Infrastructure

The tasks developed for each initiative will involve participation of staff from two or 
more member agencies and will be shaped by engagement with partners and 
stakeholders outside the agencies themselves. Partnerships with stakeholder groups 
will be critical to fostering a productive and ongoing dialogue, and to developing 
effective strategies. Because the scale and types of engagement will necessarily be 
informed by available resources, the agencies will work together to avoid overlap of 
activities and efforts.  

While in most cases a specific agency takes the lead role in any BARC effort, we are 
reminded of the mantra “No one agency or entity can solve climate change alone!”. By 
working together, the agencies can avoid duplication, communicate a clear and 
coordinated approach to problem solving, and use everybody’s time and resources 
most efficiently.  

Underlying each initiative is a commitment to advancing social equity, ensuring projects 
contribute to improving quality of life measures in low-income, frontline communities. 
The BARC Shared Work Plan also has a primary focus on amplifying the clear value-
added roles the regional and state agencies can play in supporting the leadership of 
cities, counties, special districts and community-based leaders in implementing 
strategies and actions on the ground. Also important is creating strong linkages to state 
and federal programs and investments such as the AB 32 Climate Change Scoping 
Plan, California Climate Adaptation Strategy and the federal Infrastructure Investment 
and Jobs Act (IIJA). 

Page 74 of 158



6 

Roles of Public Sector at Different Scales 

Process for Developing BARC Shared Work Plan 
Development of the Initial Draft of the BARC Shared Work Plan was facilitated by 
BARC staff from January 2022 to May 2022, and informed by guidance from the 
Governing Board, executive leadership, and two Working Groups composed of staff 
from across the member agencies with particular subject matter expertise. The timeline 
was driven by opportunities to better position the Bay Area to compete for emerging 
state and federal funding for regional-scale adaptation and resilience planning, and for 
the electrification of buildings and vehicles.  

From March to May 2022, the BARC Shared Work Plan was further refined through a 
Public Comment Period, as well as through discussions with Working Group members 
and agency leadership. The written comments received are included in Appendix B. 
This final draft also incorporates input provided by various agencies, groups and 
individuals after receiving an overview of the Work Plan from the BARC Executive 
Director.  

The scale and breadth of each initiative will be shaped by resources provided by each 
participating agency, and by any additional funding that can be secured through state 
and federal programs over the next year. The BARC Budget for FY22-23 will be 
oriented toward filling gaps and enhancing work underway.  

Page 75 of 158



7 

Timeline 

Page 76 of 158



8 

Focus Area One: Climate Adaptation 

1 Regional 
Adaptation Plan 

Develop a Regional Multi-Hazard Adaptation Plan 

2
Regional Technical 
Assistance 

Establish a regional technical assistance program 
to support local governments in advancing shared 
approach to adaptation planning and project 
implementation 

Initiative 1: Regional Multi-Hazard Climate Adaptation Plan 

Description: Work with partners and stakeholders to develop a Regional 
Multi-Hazard Adaptation Plan that supports the deployment of effective 
risk management strategies and equitable, multi-benefit climate 
adaptation projects at the appropriate geographic scale across the San 
Francisco Bay Area.  

The Bay Area faces threats from a variety of hazards including sea level rise, coastal 
and inland flooding, extreme heat, drought, wildfire, as well as earthquakes. There has 
been progress in advancing climate adaptation and resilience planning to address 

Page 77 of 158



9 

these hazards, with cities, counties and special districts taking the lead in helping to 
move concepts forward and developing new governance models. A focus on flooding 
and sea level rise has led to efforts like the San Francisquito Creek Joint Powers 
Authority mitigating flood risks for communities adjacent to the creek and the Bay in 
East Palo Alto and Menlo Park, and the consolidation of agencies to create the San 
Mateo County Flooding and Sea Level Resiliency District (One Shoreline). The four 
North Bay counties — Marin, Napa, Solano and Sonoma — are working together with 
Caltrans, MTC and environmental stewards to advance strategies to address flooding 
and sea level rise along the State Route 37 corridor. The South San Francisco Bay 
Shoreline Project is a multi-million-dollar sea level rise protection project underway - 
many years in the making - led by Valley Water, the California State Coastal 
Conservancy, US Army Corps of Engineers and US Fish and Wildlife to protect the 
vulnerable community of Alviso in San Jose and surrounding areas. 

There are other important nature-based and multi-benefit projects advancing through 
investments from the San Francisco Bay Restoration Authority and other granting 
agencies that indicate the Bay Area region is building forward momentum to address 
flooding and sea level rise risks. But the Bay Area needs more than just a portfolio of 
disparate projects. 

Expanding the portfolio and making sure high-quality planning and projects are 
occurring in the places that need them most requires a high level of coordination and 
resources. Additionally, understanding the geography through which different hazards 
and risks should be managed - and by whom - and making sure all the stakeholders 
are at the table to determine the best risk management strategies to employ is 
essential to reaching equitable regional-scale resilience.  

Engaging in this collective problem-solving in vulnerable places across the region 
requires significant resources; access to a clearinghouse of reliable data and science; 
guidance on effective approaches, strategies and governance models; and people with 
the skills, expertise and job description to move ideas into reality on the ground. The 
needs listed above illustrate why the San Francisco Bay Area could benefit from a 
Regional Multi-Hazard Adaptation Plan - not as a top down directive telling cities and 
counties what to do — but, rather, as a mechanism by which our region can work 
together to ensure communities have access to the resources and tools necessary to 
implement a range of strategies to manage risk and to get these resources to the 
places that need them most.  

Managing the development such a Plan, with extensive input from interested 
stakeholders, is something for which the regional agencies that comprise the BARC 
consortium are well suited. Ensuring that a Regional Multi-Hazard Adaptation Plan is 

Page 78 of 158



10 

oriented towards delivering specific, measurable outcomes that are equitable, fair and 
effective in managing risk is something in which every interested stakeholder should be 
involved.  

The BCDC-led effort to develop a Regional Shoreline Adaptation Strategy will be a 
core component of the Regional Multi-Hazard Adaptation Plan, helping to outline 
potentially similar approaches to other hazards like extreme heat, drought, flooding, 
and wildfires. The participating agencies will work together through this initiative to help 
inform BCDC’s effort while at the same time conducting outreach, analysis, and 
research to better understand how different hazards can best be captured and 
approached in a Regional Multi-Hazard Adaptation Plan. An important feature of this 
effort will be to understand the role regional agencies play (or not) related to different 
hazards, as well as to understand the potential relationships between a regional multi-
hazard adaptation plan and local hazard mitigation plans. Additionally, the coordination 
provided by BARC staff can be helpful in aligning public outreach and engagement 
across the participating agencies, considering overlapping issues, and addressing 
issues related to regional governance, funding and prioritization. The involvement of 
Caltrans District 4 as an active member of BARC, for example, will help local and 
regional priorities for vulnerable transportation infrastructure sync up with state 
planning requirements, state and federal funding agencies, and state infrastructure 
adaptation needs and vulnerability data.  

Counties, cities and special districts have leading roles to play in facilitating adaptation 
planning and project implementation to address different hazards in their communities. 
Many Bay Area counties already are leading on this front, with the county being a 
manageable scale over which to conduct planning and project development. The 
regional agencies, in turn, can be helpful in lifting up the best practices being advanced 
by cities and counties, and to help build capacity and consistency in efforts across the 
region. As BCDC identified through the Bay Adapt process, there are challenges the 
Bay Area faces in adapting to flooding and sea level rise that are likely applicable to 
managing other hazards. These include:  

• Inconsistent content and approach in local plans and projects
• Competition for funding with no agreement on priorities
• Inconsistent progress on plans and projects
• No comprehensive understanding of adaptation needs and interventions (and

their impact) along the shoreline.

A Regional Adaptation Plan can help navigate these deficiencies and inconsistencies, 
identifying where more capacity and support is needed, while at the same time helping 
to advance good projects at the local or sub-regional level. Additionally, the Plan can 

Page 79 of 158



11 

help synthesize the components of other related regional planning efforts into an 
overarching set of strategies, priorities, and tools. These include MTC/ABAG’s Plan 
Bay Area 2050, adopted in October 2021, which involves strategies to adapt to sea 
level rise and manage risks. BCDC’s Bay Adapt Joint Platform lays out a high-level 
action plan to protect people and the built environment from rising sea levels, with the 
BARC Shared Work Plan as an example of agencies taking the lead to help implement 
Bay Adapt actions. Furthermore, the San Francisco Estuary Partnership (SFEP) just 
completed its 2022 Update to the Estuary Blueprint, mapping out regional actions 
needed for a healthy and resilient San Francisco Estuary.  

In 2022, the Bay Area has a prime opportunity to build upon work done to date and to 
generate the resources needed to develop the Regional Multi-Hazard Adaptation Plan 
through a robust and inclusive engagement process. The Governor’s Office of Planning 
and Research (OPR) has expanded funding to the tune of $250 million statewide over 
the next several years. This commitment is well suited to support the development of a 
Regional Multi-Hazard Adaptation Plan, as well as the technical assistance that can 
support local capacity building, planning and project implementation. At the federal 
level, the PROTECT program established by the Infrastructure, Investment and Jobs 
Act of 2021 provides appropriated funds ($630 million to California) and competitive 
grant programs ($1.4 billion nationally) over the next five years to advance 
transportation resilience planning and implementation. The IIJA creates incentives for 
states and MPOs to adopt a Resilience Improvement Plan (RIP) by waiving a portion of 
local cost shares for appropriated funds, and prioritizing competitive grant proposals 
that advance RIP priorities. Based on initial estimates, integration of a RIP into Plan 
Bay Area could result in over $11 million in value for the region. 

Goals 
• Establish an engagement process by which stakeholders will work together to

develop a Regional Multi-Hazard Adaptation Plan that supports strong
coordination among regional agencies, counties, cities, special districts, and
community leaders to manage climate hazard risks and positions the region to
receive state and federal funding to support shared goals and priorities.

• Outline and understand the distinct role(s) of regional agencies and those of
other levels of government in managing different climate hazards such as
drought, heat, wildfire, sea level rise and flooding, as well as any potential
interaction with seismic vulnerability.

Participating BARC Agencies 
Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG), Bay Conservation and Development 
Commission (BCDC), Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD), Caltrans 

Page 80 of 158



12 

District 4, Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC), California State Coastal 
Conservancy (SCC), San Francisco Bay Regional Water Quality Control Board, San 
Francisco Estuary Partnership.  

Key Stakeholders & Partners 
Cities, counties, special districts, community-based organizations, nonprofits, academic 
and scientific institutions, state agencies, federal agencies. Membership organizations 
and networks: Bay Area Climate Adaptation Network (BayCAN), Coastal Hazards 
Adaptation Resiliency Group (CHARG) 

Year One Priorities and Tasks 
• Outline landscape of powers, authorities and responsibilities among regional

agencies related to multiple hazards and relationship to federal, state, and
local/community roles and responsibilities. (BARC supported, consultant,
partners)

• Understand permitting and regulatory landscape and impact on speed at which
multi-benefit climate adaptation projects can be approved and implemented,
including green, gray and hybrid projects. (BARC supported, consultant,
partners)

• Work to expand support for frontline community capacity building and build
partnerships (various mechanisms, including BCDC grant program, partners)

• Support MTC/ABAG (or other appropriate agency) grant application to OPR for
regional planning in Fall 2022

• Kick-off Regional Shoreline Adaptation Strategy (led by BCDC, muti-year
efforts)

• Development of Sea Level Rise Funding and Investment Strategy (led by
MTC/ABAG and BCDC)

• Early development of Resilience Improvement Plan (MTC/ABAG, Caltrans D4)
• Identify and pursue opportunities for legislative advocacy to promote climate

adaptation efforts at local and regional scales and help secure further resources
for community capacity building.

Page 81 of 158



13 

Initiative 2: Regional Climate Adaptation Technical Assistance 

Description: Work with partners and stakeholders to develop a regional 
climate adaptation technical assistance program to support local 
adaptation planning and project implementation. 

Climate adaptation and resilience planning and projects will most often need to happen 
at the local and/or sub-regional level, with regional and state agencies best positioned 
to provide needed support, resources, and guidance. Across the Bay Area’s nine 
counties and 101 municipalities, local governments have highly variable levels of 
capacity and resources available to conduct adaptation planning and develop risk 
management strategies. Additionally, a special focus must be given to historically 
underserved Black, Indigenous and People of Color (BIPOC) communities who are at 
the frontlines of risk and already are battling challenging environmental conditions in 
their neighborhoods.  

As noted in the public comments on the initial draft of the BARC Shared Work Plan, 
managing risks like flooding and sea level rise raises many complications related to 
jurisdictional responsibilities and property ownership, and differing views on the 
mission and responsibilities of any one entity or organization. “These aspects are hard 
to grasp (especially for staff without deep experience in Bay Area 

Page 82 of 158



14 

government/regulatory setting) and there is no central resource to show who is 
responsible for what. Could this objective be tied to some sort of a deliverable that 
outlines the roles played by different government entities, coalitions, and associations 
and the ‘levers’ that they control”. 

A coordinated Regional Climate Adaptation Technical Assistance program can identify 
the most effective ways in which regional agencies can support cities, counties, special 
districts, and community-based organizations in conducting actionable adaptation 
planning and project implementation. It can help to map out the authorities and 
responsibilities of different stakeholders in climate adaptation and provide governance 
and decision-making models to help bring clarity to what is currently a somewhat 
murky area, especially in terms of bringing project implementation to scale across the 
region. A goal can include providing a centralized source for adaptation standards, 
data, and guidance from across the regional agencies that is coherent and easily 
accessible to local governments and in publicly led planning processes.  

The Regional Climate Adaptation Technical Assistance initiative will involve staff from 
multiple agencies working together in a coordinated manner, along with other key 
stakeholders, to find the most effective support and to advance high-quality adaptation 
planning efforts in localities across the region. These efforts would inform and be 
tracked through BCDC’s Regional Shoreline Adaptation Strategy and through the 
development of a broader, multi-hazard Regional Adaptation Plan.  

Goals 
• Clarify who is in charge of different aspects of climate adaptation at different

scales
• Develop a clearinghouse or “storefront” of adaptation data, standards, and

guidance (explore options for where it can live and/or intersect, including
existing tools such as ABAG Technical Assistance Portal, OPR Clearinghouse)

• Develop easy-to-access technical assistance for local governments and
community-based organizations. This can include grant-writing services
(especially for limited-capacity jurisdictions and stakeholders), one-on-one
assistance, facilitated services for specific cohorts of jurisdictions and
stakeholders facing similar challenges. Identify agencies best suited to provide
different types of assistance.

Participating BARC Agencies 
Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG), Bay Conservation and Development 
Commission (BCDC), Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD), Caltrans 
District 4, Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC), California State Coastal 

Page 83 of 158



15 

Conservancy (SCC), San Francisco Bay Regional Water Quality Control Board, San 
Francisco Estuary Partnership. 

Key Stakeholders & Partners 
Cities, counties, special districts, community-based organizations, nonprofits, academic 
and scientific institutions, state agencies, federal agencies. Membership organizations 
and networks: Bay Area Climate Adaptation Network (BayCAN), Coastal Hazards 
Adaptation Resiliency Group (CHARG), others.  

Year One Priorities and Tasks 
• Conduct analysis to capture different types of technical assistance regional and

state agencies are providing, identify gaps in service and support, understand
lay of the land in terms of technical support needs, and who is best positioned to
do what at all scales (BARC supported, in partnership with stakeholders, tie in
and align with other projects where appropriate)

• Outreach/Engagement/Survey to determine needs for technical assistance by
local stakeholders (BARC supported, BCDC and MTC/ABAG, partners)

• Outline oversight responsibilities for each hazard (including funding), regulatory
environment and general lay of the land; provide analysis and best practices on
leadership and coordination issues related to managing risks at the appropriate
scale and financing adaptation projects.

Page 84 of 158



16 

Focus Area Two: Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions 
Reduction 

1
Zero Emission 
Transit Bus 
Infrastructure 

Accelerate Zero-Emission Transit Bus (ZEB) deployment 
by supporting coordinated expansion of infrastructure and 
modernized facilities across the region. Position the region 
to capture significant federal and state funds to do so.  

Low-Carbon,  
High-Equity 
Neighborhoods 

Align agency activities focused on affordable housing, 
building decarbonization, EV charging, trip reduction and 
resilience for a holistic approach to create affordable, 
healthy, zero-emission neighborhoods.  

Initiative 3: Zero-Emission Transit Bus Infrastructure 

Description: Accelerate Zero-Emission Transit Bus (ZEB) deployment by 
supporting coordinated expansion of reliable charging infrastructure 
across the Bay Area region.  

Page 85 of 158



17 

Context and Opportunity 
Buses play a critical role in meeting transportation demand, reducing single-passenger 
trips and climate impacts, especially for people who depend and rely on public transit 
to get where they need to go, a large proportion being low-income residents. 
Considerable state and federal funding for transportation infrastructure, including the 
Infrastructure, Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA), provide an unprecedented opportunity 
for the Bay Area to secure funding for decarbonizing our transit systems in the next 
year. In fiscal year 2022, $1.47 billion in grants will be available from the Federal 
Transit Administration (FTA) to modernize bus fleets and facilities, including $1.1 billion 
(a tenfold increase) in the FTA’s Low or No Emission (Low-No) Grant Program and 
$372 million through the Bus and Bus Facilities Grant Program.  

Furthermore, the California Air Resources Board’s Innovative Clean Transit Rule 
requires 25% of large operators’ bus purchases be zero-emission by 2023, and 100% 
by 2029. In total, approximately 2,500 new buses will need to be replaced in the Bay 
Area over the next decade, putting new demands on bus depots and utilities to support 
the demand. Depending on planning, coordination, and approach this could equate to 
more than 250 megawatts of additional grid capacity, billions in cost and increased 
fleet space requirements. There is a need to think ahead to help mitigate the impacts of 
the massive conversion of buses to zero-emission so that it can be as seamless as 
possible.  

To help facilitate the investment in zero-emission buses, MTC is leading a Bay Area 
Transit Zero-Emission Transition Strategy, working closely with the Bay Area 
Partnership Board (see March 30, 2022 Bay Area Partnership Board Agenda Item 4a)2. 
As outlined, MTC’s proposed transition strategy will focus on the following elements:  

• Cost and Funding analysis to develop an updated regional cost estimate and
funding framework for programming decisions and advocacy efforts

• Policy Guidance & Best Practices in technology, compatibility, and shared
infrastructure/vehicles, at the regional, subregional, and/or local level

• Facilitation of Early Coordination Efforts to support highest-impact
investment of resources

• Analyze Submitted and Developing Rollout Plans to identify opportunities for
coordinated investments

2 https://mtc.ca.gov/meetings-events/bay-area-partnership-board-2022-03-30t200000 

Page 86 of 158



18 

• Evaluate and Manage Risk including areas of technology choice and
performance, energy provision to facilities, cost of buses and facilities, and
emergency response.

To support this effort, the BARC Shared Work Plan through its involved agencies and 
partners will focus on coordination among stakeholders (including equipment 
manufacturers and utilities) that are essential to creating a robust charging 
infrastructure to support the expansion of electric bus fleets and potentially other 
municipal vehicles. Both BAAQMD, MTC/ABAG are engaged in efforts to coordinate 
with the region’s 27 transit agencies in the deployment of grant resources for ZEB 
buses and infrastructure. The BARC initiative can facilitate data sharing from ZEB 
pilots already underway so operators can avoid unnecessary analysis. Procurement of 
charging equipment on a large scale can maximize cost savings and streamline 
engagement with manufacturers. Identifying the appropriate point of contact for utilities 
across operators could streamline delivery of power infrastructure.   

Goals 
• All Bay Area buses are zero-emission (EV or hydrogen) by 2040
• ZEB charging infrastructure capacity increased to support new power demands
• Data sharing across operators on ZEB pilot lessons learned
• Simplified grantmaking across agencies to support shared outcomes
• Identify opportunities to link regional grantmaking to ZEB technologies and

infrastructure standards for region’s 27 transit agencies
• Help align city and transit operators’ efforts to scale up ZEB
• Establish relationships between regional agencies, operators, manufacturers,

and energy utilities to meet the new power demand.

Key Stakeholders 
MTC/ABAG, BAAQMD, Bay Area Partnership Board (Bay Area transit agencies), cities, 
counties, manufacturers, utilities, community choice aggregators (CCAs). 

Year One Priorities and Tasks 
• Facilitate coordination between BAAQMD and MTC on grantmaking to support

ZEB charging infrastructure
• Create overview and diagram the key players in this space, along with the

challenges and opportunities in both near and long term
• Explore opportunities for shared transit/municipal charging infrastructure
• Explore/analyze near-term and long-term obstacles around charging

infrastructure and power grid w/ utilities, cities, counties, etc.

Page 87 of 158



19 

Exploratory Area: Low-Carbon, High-Equity Neighborhoods 

Description 
Align different but interrelated agency programs to develop a more holistic approach to 
fostering affordable, healthy, zero-emission neighborhoods. These programs include 
those supporting affordable housing development, building decarbonization, electric 
vehicle charging, active transportation, single-occupancy vehicle trip reduction, 
commuter benefits and climate resilience. 

Context and Opportunity 
MTC/ABAG and BAAQMD are pursuing a number of separate, yet interrelated 
activities to decarbonize how Bay Area residents live and commute. These include: 
technical assistance and financing for building decarbonization through the Bay Area 
Regional Energy Network (BayREN); the Bay Area Healthy Homes Initiative (BAHHI) 
led by BAAQMD; affordable housing development through the newly-established Bay 
Area Housing Finance Authority (BAHFA); guidance on local housing elements and 
climate resilience through MTC/ABAG’s Regional Planning Program; as well as 
updated CEQA guidelines and thresholds, building retrofits, and incentives for electric 
vehicles and trip reduction through both agencies. 

Evaluated through the lens of social equity and the opportunity to foster affordable, 
healthy, carbon-free neighborhoods, these focus areas could potentially have more 
impact if integrated into a more strategic and holistic approach. For example, moving 
away from supporting EV single-occupancy vehicle ownership for low-income people to 
a strategy of supporting EV car sharing at the neighborhood or building scale. BARC 
will work with agency partners to explore this complex topic, learning from the three 
Initiatives that are kicking off this next year to determine how best to approach this 
topic through a future initiative. A potential idea to explore is the development of a 
“Local Innovation Challenge Grant Program” that would support local governments, 
nonprofits and community-based organizations, affordable housing developers, and 
others in developing creative, innovative approaches at the neighborhood or district 
scale. A great example to learn from and build upon is the current Zero Emissions 
Neighborhood Pilot Program led by the City of San Jose that is focused on bringing 
“climate action to life at the neighborhood scale in an equitable way by co-creating 
neighborhood-level improvement plans in partnership with residents in disadvantaged 
residents”. 

Page 88 of 158



20 

Conclusion & Next Steps 
Underlying the initiatives outlined in the BARC Shared Work Plan is the mantra “No 
one agency or entity can solve climate change alone”. BARC was created through 
state statute as a mechanism through which regionally-oriented agencies can do the 
hard work of collaborating and aligning efforts to have greater impact. Nowhere in the 
statute does this say this is easy! Regional agencies don’t operate in a vacuum; they 
operate in a complex and diverse region of stakeholders operating at different scales, 
at different capacities, and with different roles and authorities. As evidenced in the 
comment letters to the initial draft of the BARC Shared Work Plan, the commitment and 
passion of different stakeholders in addressing the climate change emergency is 
palpable. There is no shortage of work to do, and everyone has a role to play.  

There are more resources becoming available than ever before for climate mitigation 
and adaptation. We need to work together to ensure this new money can deliver the 
greatest benefit for people and communities, the Bay Area ecology, the economy and 
future generations. We need to work together to ensure resources are landing in the 
places that need them the most, particularly the Bay Area’s frontline, BIPOC 
communities.  

The BARC Shared Work Plan initiatives are complex, multi-layered efforts that involve 
multiple tasks and activities that bleed into each other. In most cases these tasks are 
led by specific agencies but require the active participation of other agencies and 
stakeholders. By working together, the agencies can avoid duplication, communicate a 
clear, holistic, and coordinated approach to problem solving, and use everybody’s time 
and resources in a productive manner towards shared outcomes. Focusing on the 
most effective roles the regional agencies can play – whether individually or collectively 
– to address climate change is a key feature of the BARC Shared Work Plan.

To that point, this is an iterative process. BARC must develop a more detailed scope of 
work for each initiative that will include specific roles for participating agencies and 
stakeholder partners, and a visual representation of the interplay and relationship of 
different efforts and how they feed into outcomes. For next steps, BARC staff will work 
with participating agency staff and leadership, as well as other stakeholders where 
appropriate, to develop the following:  

• Identification of “official” work groups for each initiative (year one)
• Detailed scope of work for each initiative that includes further clarity on goals,

staff roles, relationship of existing efforts, intended outcomes for each task,
budget and resource needs, identification of lead agencies where needed

• Outline of engagement strategy for each initiative, developed in partnership with
stakeholders.

Page 89 of 158



21 

BARC staff expects this work to reasonably take two to three months, given all the 
stakeholders involved.  

Recommendation 
The recommendation is that the BARC Governing Board approve the BARC Shared 
Work Plan with the condition that staff will bring forward further details for each 
initiative by the September 16, 2022, meeting. BARC staff will regularly report on 
progress of the initiatives at future meetings, enlisting the help of agency staff and 
partners in that endeavor.  

Page 90 of 158



22 

Appendices 

Page 91 of 158



23 

Appendix A: BARC September 2021 Joint Resolution 

Page 92 of 158



Joint Resolution to Address Climate Change 
September 17, 2021 

WHEREAS, according to the recent United Nations Sixth Assessment Report of the 
Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC), catastrophic climate change 
impacts, including extreme droughts, severe heat waves and flooding, will continue to 
worsen for at least the next 30 years across the globe, while global sea levels will 
continue to rise at least for centuries1; and 

WHEREAS, the increasingly frequent and severe impacts of climate change in the Bay 
Area do not conform to jurisdictional boundaries or the planning and regulatory 
authorities of any one agency or organization, and are creating overlapping risks to 
public health and safety that necessitate an integrated approach to air pollution 
mitigation and climate resilience; and 

WHEREAS, scientific estimates project that California could experience as much as 
seven feet of sea level rise by the end of the century2, with the San Francisco Bay 
estimated to experience two-thirds of the flood impacts projected for the state3; and 

WHEREAS, increasingly frequent and severe wildfires are creating air quality impacts 
that represent a public health crisis for Bay Area residents, while undermining progress 
on reducing greenhouse gas emissions. In 2020, wildfires released an estimated 112 
million metric tons of CO2 into the atmosphere4; and 

WHEREAS, warming temperatures and prolonged drought increasingly stress the Bay’s 
estuarine ecosystem and the ecological processes that it supports, while threatening the 
water supplies of communities around the region and throughout the state; and 

WHEREAS, the Bay Area region’s most socioeconomically vulnerable frontline 
communities are at great risk of exposure to climate threats and have limited access to 
the resources needed to reduce risks and increase the resilience necessary to recover 
from disasters; and 

WHEREAS, by practicing an advanced form of coordination and strategic integration 
across the planning, investments, and regulatory activities of its member agencies, 
BARC aims to measurably and equitably improve the resilience, adaptive capacity, 

1 Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change. (2021, August). Climate Change 2021: Summary for 
Policymakers. https://www.ipcc.ch/report/ar6/wg1/downloads/report/IPCC_AR6_WGI_SPM.pdf 
2 California Legislative Analyst’s office. (2020, August). What Threat Does Sea-Level Rise Pose to 
California? 
https://lao.ca.gov/Publications/Report/4261#California_Will_Experience_Rising_Seas_and_Tides 
3 Barnard, P.L., Erikson, L.H., Foxgrover, A.C. et al. Dynamic flood modeling essential to assess the 
coastal impacts of climate change. Sci Rep 9, 4309 (2019). https://doi.org/10.1038/s41598-019-40742-z 
4 California Air Resources Board. (2021). Frequently Asked Questions: Wildfire Emissions. 
https://ww2.arb.ca.gov/resources/documents/frequently-asked-questions-wildfire-emissio 

24
Page 93 of 158



health and safety of Bay Area people and communities, our ecology and environment, 
economy and critical infrastructure; and 

WHEREAS, BARC member agencies are working individually and collaboratively to 
reduce emissions of greenhouse gases and harmful air pollutants through regulation, 
transportation and land use planning, community outreach, direct funding and 
investments, and incentive programs, recognizing the need to meet ambitious regional 
and state climate targets, including an overarching statewide goal of reaching carbon 
neutrality by 2045; and 

WHEREAS, BARC member agencies must work in close partnership with local 
governments and stakeholders, providing the resources, technical support, and 
guidance to advance actions at the local level focused particularly on helping frontline 
communities mitigate and adapt to the impacts of climate change; and 

WHEREAS, the regional and state agencies that comprise BARC create and update 
ambitious plans – most required through state law- to adapt to and mitigate the effects 
of climate change for multiple hazards, and to develop and enforce regulations that 
preserve the integrity of the region’s environmental quality. These planning and 
regulatory responsibilities include, but are not limited to:  

The Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG) and the Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission, through Plan Bay Area, set long-term priorities for 
the region’s transportation system, housing, economy, and environment through 
a suite of actions and investments.  

The Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD), through its Clean 
Air Plan and its regulatory authority, reduces the emissions of greenhouse gases 
and harmful air pollutants through a variety of control measures and incentive 
programs across sectors. 

The Bay Conservation and Development Commission (BCDC) through the 
Bay Adapt Joint Platform, a voluntary, consensus-driven strategy for regional sea 
level rise adaptation, lays out a set of guiding principles and actions that will 
allow the region to adapt faster, better, and more equitably to a rising San 
Francisco Bay; furthermore, BCDC regulates dredging, filling and shoreline land 
use in the Bay pursuant to its Bay Plan, while helping to protect wetlands and 
increase public access to the Bay shoreline.  

Caltrans District 4 owns and manages core assets of the region’s transportation 
network and distributes critical funding that enables regions and local 
governments across California to mitigate and adapt to climate change. 

The California State Coastal Conservancy protects and preserves natural 
lands and waterways along California’s coast, including the nine-county Bay 

25
Page 94 of 158



Area, by providing technical assistance and grant funding to develop and support 
projects within its jurisdiction, while advancing statewide resource plans.  

The San Francisco Bay Area Regional Water Quality Control Board protects 
and enhances the region’s water quality and drinking water supply through 
planning, permitting and enforcement activities that regulate surface water and 
groundwater quality in the region, pursuant to its Water Quality Control Plan, 
known as the Basin Plan; and 

WHEREAS, the BARC member agencies will work together to strategically align 
planning and regulatory actions in order to accelerate the implementation of strategies 
that advance climate mitigation and adaptation goals. These include reducing mobile 
and point source carbon emissions, encouraging investments in housing and 
transportation that reduce climate risks and make the region more connected and 
affordable for all, and investing in climate adaptation strategies that make people and 
places more resilient, while prioritizing nature-based approaches where appropriate; 
and 

WHEREAS, by establishing a structured framework for action, BARC and its member 
agencies can serve as a critical regional network that aligns and integrates resources, 
capacities, and areas of expertise to help the Bay Area region mitigate and adapt to 
climate change at the scale necessary, and with the sense of urgency the climate crisis 
demands. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BARC GOVERNING BOARD IN 
CLOSE CONSULTATION WITH THE EXECUTIVE LEADERSHIP OF THE BARC 
MEMBER AGENCIES: 

The BARC Governing Board commits to advancing the level of strategic coordination 
and collaboration necessary across BARC member agencies to meet the goals outlined 
in each agency’s regional plans, including, but not limited to, the Bay Adapt Joint 
Platform, Plan Bay Area, the Clean Air Plan, the Basin Plan, the Bay Plan, the Estuary 
Blueprint, and the Baylands Goals Report. 

To achieve this goal, BARC Member Agencies will jointly develop a Shared Work Plan – 
a framework for aligning regional authorities, capacities, and expertise – with the 
assistance of BARC staff.  

The Shared Work Plan will focus on delivering specific high-priority regional climate 
mitigation and adaptation goals outlined in each agency’s plans, identifying actions that 
necessitate the active involvement and investment of multiple agencies, and helps 
orient priority actions taken on by member agencies into a larger suite of strategies 
making up a coordinated, coherent approach. The Shared Work Plan will call for the 
participating agencies to commit and align staff resources, synchronize planning and 
regulatory actions, develop tools for measuring and evaluating progress and provide 
regular progress reports. 

26
Page 95 of 158



The Shared Work Plan will include, at a minimum: 

1. Actions that advance specific climate mitigation and adaptation goals outlined in
regional plans that would benefit from enhanced coordination across agencies,
with a focus on those identified as a high priority for implementation over the next
1 to 5 years. These actions shall be structured in a way that maximize agency
expertise, break down silos, and help avoid duplication of existing agency efforts.

2. A commitment to devote appropriate resources and staff time in the next fiscal
year, as feasible, to advance the actions identified in the Shared Work Plan,
acknowledging that some actions will require ongoing efforts over multiple years.

3. A commitment to work in collaboration to advance joint policy positions on state
and federal legislation, with the goal of advancing legislation that provides
funding and support for the region, local jurisdictions, and special districts.

4. A commitment to social equity, working across member agencies to support and
partner with frontline communities to strengthen adaptive capacity and resilience.

5. A commitment to developing an integrated technical assistance program, in
partnership with local governments, to support needed climate actions at the
local level. This program is contingent upon having the appropriate level of
funding in place.

6. Key metrics for monitoring and evaluating progress on the actions included in the
Shared Work Plan.

Upon approval of this resolution, BARC staff will work with BARC member agencies to 
establish a reasonable timeline for the development of the Shared Work Plan, with the 
overall goal of completing it by January 2022. This timeline would enable the Shared 
Work Plan to effectively support the actions identified in Plan Bay Area 2050, Bay Adapt 
and other efforts that are scheduled for final adoption in late 2021. Furthermore, the 
Shared Work Plan should be completed in time to inform the fiscal year 2022-23 
budgeting processes of BARC and BARC Member Agencies. A similar timeline shall be 
applied to future fiscal years. The BARC Governing Board will receive an annual report 
on Shared Work Plan progress.  

27
Page 96 of 158



Appendix B: Public Comment Period: Comment Letters 

28
Page 97 of 158



San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District 
2150 Webster Street, Oakland, CA 94612 

Allison Brooks 
Executive Director 
Bay Area Regional Collaborative (BARC) 
375 Beal Street, Suite 800 
San Francisco, CA 94105 

Subject: BART comments for BARC draft Shared Work Plan dated March 18th 2022 

Dear Ms. Brooks, 

Thank you for the opportunity to provide comments on the BARC draft Shared Work Plan dated March 18th 2022. The District 
enthusiastically supports BARC's efforts to strategically align planning and regulatory actions to accelerate climate mitigation and 
adaptation in the region.  Below BART submits the following comments for your consideration.  

1. Initiative 1: Regional adaptation plan
a. With regard to delineating priority adaptation areas (year 1), suggest mandating that local leaders must meet

engagement requirements (stakeholders, neighboring jurisdiction coordination) as a prerequisite for funding support
that may flow through from the regional level.

b. Under Table A2 year 1, consider also including special districts when mapping out roles for each hazard.
2. Initiative 2: Regional Technical Assistance

a. This effort sounds similar to BCDC Adapting to Rising Tides (ART).  Suggest that initiative builds program utilizing the
existing tools and resources from ART that have already been created.

b. BCDC had previously through the ART program provided technical assistance through working groups to spur and
encourage local planning. However, once BCDC stopped facilitating those meetings, local efforts stopped and the
implementation never materialized. Are there incentives or mandates that could be included in the program to ensure
local participation and follow-through?

c. It would be helpful if assistance included guidance or best practices on governance structures; how local
jurisdictions should organize together to better support adaptation. For example, City of Alameda is examining
organizational structures (e.g., joint authority) around the local OLU. Similarly, the Santa Clara County Collaborative
(SCCC) is also looking at setting up a governance charter to address climate threats.

If you have questions or would like to discuss these comments please contact me at nwong@bart.gov or 510-301-2616. Thank you. 

Sincerely, 

Norman Wong, P.E. 
Principal Engineer 

Cc: Tian Feng 

29
Page 98 of 158



 April 4, 2022 

 Allison Brooks 
 Execu�ve Director 
 Bay Area Regional Collabora�ve (BARC) 
 via email:  abrooks@bayareametro.org 

 Dear Allison, 

 Thank you for taking the �me to talk with me last week regarding the BARC Shared Work Plan. Per our 
 conversa�on, and your follow up email, we are excited to hear about the extension of the public review 
 period for the shared work-plan to May 6th for considera�on by the BARC Governing Board at its May 
 mee�ng. As a follow up to our conversa�on, and with the support of the BayCAN Steering Commi�ee, I 
 am also excited to commit BayCAN’s network to helping with the important conversa�on of how best to 
 posi�on the Bay Area for its fair share of the historic State and federal funding to support climate 
 resilience. We discussed the following opportuni�es and look forward to further exploring these 
 engagement opportuni�es in the weeks ahead. 

 ●  Facilitated discussion at the April 27th BayCAN quarterly mee�ng
 ●  Facilitated discussion at the BayCAN Coun�es working group (TBD)
 ●  Supported discussion with key State agency and Governor’s Office stakeholders (TBD)

 Let’s please set up a call for the week of April 11th to further refine the agendas and scope of these 
 mee�ngs and engagement opportuni�es. Please don’t hesitate to call me or email with any ques�ons: 
 510-672-5487 or  michael@baycanadapt.org  .

 In collabora�on,

 Michael McCormick, AICP 
 Partnerships and Staff Lead 
 Bay Climate Adapta�on Network (BayCAN) 

 BayCAN is a collabora�ve network of local government staff and partnering organiza�ons working to 
 help the Bay Area respond effec�vely and equitably to the impacts of climate change on human health, 
 infrastructure, and natural systems. 

30
Page 99 of 158



Board of Directors 

Ruben Abrica 
Board Chair 

City of East Palo Alto  
City Council Member  

Drew Combs 
Board Vice‐Chair 
Board Member 

City of Menlo Park  
City Council Member 

Pat Burt 
Board Member  
City of Palo Alto 

 City Council Member  

Gary Kremen 
Board Member 

Santa Clara Valley Water 
District Board of Directors 

Dave Pine 
Board Member 

County of San Mateo 
Flood Protection and Sea 

Level Rise Resiliency 
Agency 

 Margaret Bruce 
Executive Director 

www.sfcjpa.org    2100 Geng Road, Suite 210  Palo Alto, CA 94303 

Date:  April 6, 2022 

Regarding:  Comments on the BARC Draft Workplan 

To:  Allison Brooks, Executive Director, Bay Area Regional 
Collaborative (BARC) 

Dear Allison,  

As we both know all too well, mitigating climate changing emissions and 
adapting to climate change present complicated and relentless 
challenges. Because these inter-connected issues require an “all-hands-
on-deck” approach, it is good to see an emphasis on collaboration and 
collective effort in the proposed Draft BARC Workplan. At the same time, I 
want to highlight some opportunities to improve the effectiveness of 
BARC’s endeavors.   

At the core, it is unclear if the scope of this Workplan is limited to BARC’s 
role of coordination between the Bay Area’s regional environmental 
agencies or is intended to also coordinate and provide a Regional 
Adaptation Plan and Technical to the region’s nine counties, many cities, 
and myriad special districts, joint powers of authority, and other 
implementors.  

As the BARC board resolution and the draft Workplan both mention, local 
cities and counties have advanced climate mitigation and adaptation action 
very differently – in scale, in complexity, in level-of-effort. There may be 
many reasons for these differences.  It is possible to infer from the BARC 
Draft Workplan that access to information and technical support should not 
be limiting factors. However, it is not clear from the Draft Workplan what 
information, and what technical support would be provided, by whom, and 
under what conditions. Please clarify:  

1) Who BARC intendeds to serve, and
2) How access to information and technical support are to be implemented

- who gets access, how much technical support, and at what cost (if
any).   

In both the resolution and the Draft Workplan, there is an emphasis on 
stakeholder engagement. But ‘member agencies’ are also referenced 
frequently. It is not clear who your Draft Workplan is intended to support. IF 
it is only the agencies BARC typically coordinates with (MTC/ABAG, 

31
Page 100 of 158



Board of Directors 

Ruben Abrica 
Board Chair 

City of East Palo Alto  
City Council Member  

Drew Combs 
Board Vice‐Chair 
Board Member 

City of Menlo Park  
City Council Member 

Pat Burt 
Board Member  
City of Palo Alto 

 City Council Member  

Gary Kremen 
Board Member 

Santa Clara Valley Water 
District Board of Directors 

Dave Pine 
Board Member 

County of San Mateo 
Flood Protection and Sea 

Level Rise Resiliency 
Agency 

 Margaret Bruce 
Executive Director 

www.sfcjpa.org    2100 Geng Road, Suite 210  Palo Alto, CA 94303 

BCDC, BAAQMD, etc.) this should be made clear. The scope of your 
Workplan then becomes much more manageable and coherent. However, 
if you mean all climate change mitigation and adaptation stakeholders in all 
local governments in the 9 Bay Area Counties, your scope and who your 
stakeholders are, changes by several orders of magnitude.   

Supporting local governments in their needs for mitigation and adaptation 
plans, resources, and actions is a worthy endeavor. However, there are 
already many organizations, associations, collaboratives, and agencies 
who have taken on this task. You are probably aware of many of them. 
The BARC Draft Workplan doesn’t mention how BARC will coordinate with, 
or leverage, or support existing organizations providing similar functions 
(examples include: CivicWell (formerly the Local Government 
Commission), the Institute for Local Government, BayCAN, and the 
Sustainability Directors Network). Please clarify and describe how BARC 
will either provide a missing element or additional substance to this 
ecosystem of experts and resources, and how the BARC proposed 
Workplan will coordinate with these groups.  

The BARC Draft Workplan and the resolution supporting this effort speak 
to engaging stakeholders. I agree that is critical for the BARC Workplan’s 
success. Speaking specifically, and personally, to that point, the only 
reason I knew about the Draft Workplan was because someone happened 
to mention to me the BCDC meeting where it was being shared, and I 
happened to have time to listen in. Given the paucity of stakeholder 
participation at the BCDC meeting, it seems like stakeholder identification, 
outreach, engagement, and integration of stakeholder input is an area in 
critical need of attention and remedial action before the Draft Workplan is 
finalized and accepted – particularly if the Workplan is intended to support 
a broad range of regional stakeholders. I suggest also that special 
attention be given to front line communities, and communities experiencing 
environmental, social, and economic justice legacies.  

Finally, the role of BARC in the issuance of grants and funding must be 
clarified. Is it BARC’s intention that State-level funding be passed through 
BARC to local governments? This model - adding a layer of bureaucracy - 
is not one that the SFCJPA can support. Is it BARC’s intention to assist 
local governments by providing technical assistance and capacity for their 
application to various federal and State grant programs? This IS a model 
the SFCJPA can support – although the way this is to be delivered needs 
clarification.  

Is there an intention to coordinate the funding requests of local 
governments so that by grouping like-with-like, BARC can aggregate 

32
Page 101 of 158



Board of Directors 

Ruben Abrica 
Board Chair 

City of East Palo Alto  
City Council Member  

Drew Combs 
Board Vice‐Chair 
Board Member 

City of Menlo Park  
City Council Member 

Pat Burt 
Board Member  
City of Palo Alto 

 City Council Member  

Gary Kremen 
Board Member 

Santa Clara Valley Water 
District Board of Directors 

Dave Pine 
Board Member 

County of San Mateo 
Flood Protection and Sea 

Level Rise Resiliency 
Agency 

 Margaret Bruce 
Executive Director 

www.sfcjpa.org    2100 Geng Road, Suite 210  Palo Alto, CA 94303 

funding requests and enhance the region’s grant competitiveness? That 
would be something the SFCJPA could support – and again, if this is the 
case, a clearer explanation is needed. In reading the Draft Workplan, it is 
not clear how BARC intends to function in this space, other than to seek 
resources for the implementation of this Workplan.   

The SFCJPA sincerely appreciates the vision and commitment to climate 
action embodied in the Draft Workplan. Although at this time, the SFCJPA 
can’t support the Draft Workplan, additional stakeholder input, and further 
refinement will surely result in an effective addition to the region’s 
significant needs and ambitious climate action efforts.   

Thank you for your consideration of these comments, and for your 
commitment to the region’s communities.  

Sincerely, 

Margaret Bruce 
Executive Director 
San Francisquito Creek Joint Powers Authority 

CC:  San Mateo County Supervisor David Pine, Palo Alto Mayor Pat Burt   

33
Page 102 of 158



Santa Clara Valley Water District  |  5750 Almaden Expressway, San Jose, CA  95118-3686  |  (408) 265-2600  |  www.valleywater.org 

Clean Water • Healthy Environment • Flood Protection 

♺ 

Santa Clara Valley Water District (Valley Water) 
5750 Almaden Expressway  
San Jose, CA 95118 

April 8, 2022 

Bay Area Regional Collaborative 

Subject: Comments from Valley Water on Bay Area Regional Collaborative’s Draft Shared Work Plan 

Dear BARC staff, 

Valley Water staff were pleased to review the Bay Area Regional Collaborative’s Draft Shared Work 
Plan. For your consideration, please see our comments below.  

General Feedback 
• Consider adding some language to the Introduction that explains how BARC and its Shared Work

Plan fits into the greater Bay Area landscape of organizations and initiatives related to climate
adaptation such as BayCAN, CHARG, and Bay Adapt.

Page 5, Initiative 1 – Objective 3 
• The complications posed by jurisdictional responsibilities, property ownership, and differing

mission areas are a constant challenge in planning/implementing climate resilience projects.
These aspects are hard to grasp (especially for staff without deep experience in Bay Area
government/regulatory setting) and there is no central resource to show who is responsible for
what. Could this objective be tied to some sort of a deliverable that outlines the roles played by
different government entities, coalitions, and associations and the “levers” that they control?

Page 6, Initiative 2 – Object 1 
• Strongly support the creation of a central resource for climate adaptation 

data/standards/guidance. I’m not aware of an existing one-stop shop toolkit for adaptation 
practitioners. Valley Water and other agencies would no doubt benefit.  

Page 11, Initiative 1, Objective 6 
• Staff preparing the Regional Adaptation Plan should strive to include specific and quantifiable

metrics/targets (i.e., achieve X goal by Y year) associated with the adaptation outcomes it tries to
achieve. A lot of high level adaptation planning around broad goals but not tied to specific
achievements already exists. Perhaps also consider incorporating some general
guidance/resources that can support local jurisdictions in developing their own metrics/targets.

Page 11, Initiative 1 
• Include language referring to importance of early coordination between neighboring jurisdictions

to avoid unintended effects from one agency on another based on implemented actions.

Thank you for the opportunity to review the Draft Shared Work Plan. If you have questions regarding our 
comments, do not hesitate to contact Brian Mendenhall and Nick Mascarello via email. We look forward 
to reviewing the final version of the document once available.  

34
Page 103 of 158



Regards, 

Brian Mendenhall  
Senior Water Resource Specialist 
bmendenhall@valleywater.org 

Nick Mascarello 
Assistant Environmental Planner 
nmascarello@valleywater.org 

35
Page 104 of 158



COPIED FROM DIRECT EMAIL TO abrooks@bayareametro.gov 

Hi Allison, 

Thank you for your presentation at BayCAN. I had read the BARC Shared Work Plan several 
weeks ago and was generally pleased with its approach. I do have some questions and 
comments about Initiative 4: Low Carbon, High Equity Neighborhoods. 

This is such an important initiative, though very complex and perhaps needing a very strategic 
approach with perhaps unprecedented funding. Some observations about that initiative’s 
description: 

● I’m not aware that existing EV incentives (which are currently highly emphasized in GHG
reduction efforts) have tangible benefits for under-resourced communities. State rebates
are negligible when compared to MSRP for new EV vehicles and these programs remain
largely out of reach for low-income households and communities. Rebates are mostly
enjoyed by those who can afford an EV vehicle anyway. When we think about how
racially segregated many of our communities are, any micro-level emissions reductions
likely benefit only whiter and wealthier communities where households can afford an EV.

○ How would BARC’s workplan use existing or proposed EV programs to promote
this initiative without exacerbating existing inequities, as the state rebate program
may do?

○ Would there be an intentional effort to increase EV ownership among low-income
households and in under-resourced communities through significant subsidies,
low/0% interest financing, or another means?

● How would affordable housing initiatives guarantee emissions reductions? In other
words, how might we ensure that affordable housing is near the job centers where lower-
income households actually work? Low-income housing is so scarce and in demand in
the Bay Area that households tend to jump on whatever BMR unit is available, no matter
where it is. This may very well result in lengthy commutes to where they work. Any
emissions reductions initiative needs to ensure housing and employment for low-income
households are geographically proximate.

○ How would BARC’s work plan tackle this issue?

Additional questions to consider addressing in the work plan include: 

● How does carbon reduction work address/align with efforts to mitigate smoke pollution
from wildfire season?

● How would promotion of public transit interact with heat exposure reduction for
commuters?

Thank you! 

36
Page 105 of 158



-Ana

Ana Miscolta-Cameron (she/her) 

Resource Conservation Specialist 

Climate Change Team 

San Mateo County Office of Sustainability 

37
Page 106 of 158



May 5, 2022 

Allison Brooks 
Executive Director 
Bay Area Regional Collaborative (BARC) 
via email: abrooks@bayareametro.org 

Dear Allison, 

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the BARC Shared Work Plan (Work Plan), and for your 
engagement with the Bay Area Climate Adaptation Network (BayCAN) at our April 27, 2022 quarterly 
meeting. BayCAN appreciated hearing the proposal, and as you experienced from the discussion that 
followed your presentation, has some specific thoughts about how the Work Plan could be improved to 
better reflect the local and community context in the Bay Area.  

This comment letter is written to help inform what we hope is a mutually supportive long-term working 
relationship across our organizations, and across the stakeholders we respectively represent through 
our respective missions. Our comments in this letter address four primary issues: 

 The BARC Role - The Draft Work Plan appears to expand the role and authority of BARC in
relationship to the city, county, special districts, and Community Based Organization (CBO)
leaders with whom BARC proposes to partner,

 The BARC Process - The Work Plan development process has demonstrated minimal
engagement with the proposed partners mentioned in the Work Plan,

 The Work Plan Content - We have a number of questions regarding how the Work Plan defines
“Climate Services” and “Technical Support” and the process and structure to allocate these
resources,

 Next Steps - The scope of the Work Plan and the timeline for consideration of the Work Plan
should be reconsidered to address a more open public engagement process that provides
transparency into how input from key stakeholders will be incorporated. BayCAN would like to
support BARC and its member agencies in reaching out to stakeholders mentioned in the Work
Plan so they can inform how they would be framed in the proposal - this should be completed
before the Work Plan is finalized and approved.

BayCAN currently includes 44 organizations across the Bay - from cities and counties, to special districts, 
non-profit organizations, private sector experts, and community-based organizations (CBOs), 
accompanied by regional and State agency partners that regularly attend BayCAN meetings and 
participate in BayCAN network activities. The diversity of our membership and partners allows us to 
bring people together in a collaborative construct to help solve some of the region’s most challenging 
problems.  

The BARC Work Plan acknowledges the importance of coordinating climate action across the region, 
which is deeply appreciated and generally embraced by our Network. In fact, BayCAN was established to 

38
Page 107 of 158



bring together the local government and partner voices that collectively provide for regional 
coordination on climate adaptation, and this work has expanded to include deep engagement around 
how to achieve equitable adaptation and provide space and influence for frontline communities to both 
lead community planning and develop alignment with local governments. See our Equity Program as a 
resource and reference point regarding our priorities around equity.  

As stated on the BARC website, BARC was established to “coordinate the policy and planning work of 
the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC), Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG), Bay 
Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD) and the Bay Conservation and Development 
Commission (BCDC).” Each of these regional agencies, along with local governments, special districts, 
academic institutions, and many community groups, non-profits, and private sector entities across the 
Bay Area have plans to address climate change for their own organizations and geographies. Thousands 
of organizations and people work on climate change goals, policies, actions, projects, analysis, research, 
and coordination across the Bay Area.  

Acknowledging this vast landscape of actors working on climate change across the Bay, and our 
organizations’ respective unique roles for the region, our Steering Committee shares these comments 
and recommended changes with you and the Governing Board. These comments are largely focused on 
the regional adaptation plan and technical assistance proposal, however please consider these 
comments more broadly as well. 

1. Clarity Regarding Stakeholders. The BARC Work Plan is not clear whether its focus is regional
agencies or more broadly intended to provide direction to local governments. The Joint Policy
Committee (now BARC) was formed to help regional agencies collaborate, but as written, this
Work Plan proposal appears to significantly broaden that mission to include all Bay Area entities
working on climate change. If the plan is purported to represent the interests of our members
and partners, and organizations working on climate across our region, the Work Plan must do
the work to engage and provide influence over the process of developing the Work Plan,
programs, and initiatives in a truly collaborative fashion. While BayCAN seeks to be a
constructive partner with BARC on this effort, without the clarity of the stakeholders of the 
Work Plan, or transparency into how input from key stakeholders will be incorporated, it is 
difficult to provide helpful comments on how best to engage those stakeholders.  

2. Collaborating on Climate in the Bay Area. The BARC Work Plan appears to require significant
increases in staff and authority for BARC, which would move authority and influence from the
regional agencies and local governments currently leading this work and consolidate that in
BARC under the premise of greater alignment. This could disrupt, rather than enhance, work
done to date to forge regional collaboration by BayCAN, BCDC, MTC/ABAG, BAAQMD, local
governments, community-based organizations, and others over the past two decades.  Speaking 
for BayCAN, several principles are critical in our work and include: 

a. Cities, counties, and special districts have primary land use authority and lead the
development of climate vulnerability assessment and adaptation action planning in their 
areas of influence consistent with State mandates for local governments to address 
climate vulnerability and adaptation in their general plans. Similar requirements apply 
to other public and quasi-public entities. 

39
Page 108 of 158



b. Cities, counties, and special districts should work closely with regional agencies and
state agencies - and vice versa - to align around development of a regional vision and 
shared goals, policies, and actions. Regional agencies can and should support 
collaborative efforts of city, county, non-profit, university, and CBO leaders. 

c. Advancing climate justice and equity in resilience-building across the Bay Area is a
critical part of any action on climate. We do so by supporting peer learning, developing 
region-specific resources and working across sectors to shift towards a culture of equity. 
Resources have been developed by the BayCAN equity program to inform equitable 
engagement and planning and can be found here.  

d. Regional solutions are often not a good fit for community level challenges. As we heard
at our quarterly meeting, local and community planning requires bottom-up planning
which should not be centered at a regional agency, rather regional agencies can help
bring clarity, resources, and tools to help support local planning.

e. BayCAN is a member of the Alliance of Regional Collaboratives for Climate Adaptation
(ARCCA) and as such also brings forward ARCCA’s Guiding Principles as aligning 
principles. 

3. Communication and Engagement. The BARC Work Plan was produced quietly over the past six
months and had no official public engagement process aside from being open for a brief public
review and comment. Plan distribution and comment was largely completed by organizations
other than BARC. Until the deadline was extended for public review at our request, there had
been minimal public vetting of the Work Plan. Even now, there has been minimal engagement
across the Bay Area for such a significant proposal. 

Throughout the BARC Work Plan, the Bay Area's city, county, and community leaders are 
defined as partners in the development and implementation of Work Plan related initiatives, 
however these same partners were largely not informed that the Work Plan was in 
development. The process for engagement for this draft Work Plan is inconsistent with the 
plan’s emphasis on engagement. This has resulted in less trust and alignment around the Work 
Plan or the various components that purport to be acting on behalf of the stakeholders that 
were not yet formally engaged. Until BayCAN reached out for a presentation we were not 
engaged formally nor were any of our members outside of representation on a legislative 
working group that met once to hear a presentation on the Work Plan. In that presentation the 
working group understood that engagement would be a priority prior to consideration of the 
draft Work Plan, and during the implementation of the Work Plan. In short, the public review 
process for the Work Plan was ineffective and comment letters submitted during this period 
should not be considered representative of the Bay Area’s climate practitioner community of 
practice. 

If some form of the BARC Work Plan were to move forward, BayCAN and our network would 
gladly engage in a dialogue regarding climate work in the Bay Area and representing the 
interests of our Network members in the Work Plan. We would also be excited to support the 
development of a survey that could be deployed across the Bay Area Community of Practice to 
get a high-level understanding of the needs of local governments across the Bay Area and how 
the BARC Work Plan ties in to their priorities. We’ve supported regional agencies in the past on 

40
Page 109 of 158



similar initiatives, for example, during the Bay Adapt process, David Behar and Bruce Riordan 
served on the Bay Adapt Leadership Advisory Group and David chaired a Climate Services and 
Technical Support subcommittee.  BayCAN led or facilitated numerous outreach meetings, focus 
groups, and processes building collaboration across the Bay Area in this process. We would be 
happy to support a similar robust approach for the concepts outlined in the joint Work Plan, 
however both the scope of the Work Plan and the timeline for consideration of the Work Plan 
would need to be reconsidered to address a more open public engagement process that 
provides transparency into how input from key stakeholders will be incorporated. 

4. Regional Adaptation Planning. BARC was created to help coordinate efforts between regional
agencies. As such, BARC supporting the development of an aligned adaptation strategy to
coordinate across regional agencies is appropriate. Expanding the authority of BARC to “direct 
local projects” that are funded or supported by BARC staff is a significant increase in BARCs 
historical role in the region. BARC should not presume to represent local interests through 
consolidation of planning, technical assistance, funding, and staff capacity to manage these 
efforts. Instead, BARC should advocate for alignment of Work Plans across regional agencies 
through a regional adaptation plan. During the development of the aligning regional adaptation 
plan, BARC should include the expertise of the thousands of professional and community 
members working on climate change across the Bay Area. Aligning regional agencies is 
appropriate, but BARC was not created to direct regional agencies, to be a grantmaking entity, 
or to direct local governments. The larger question would be, considering the landscape of 
activities occurring across the Bay Area, what should a Work Plan shared across the regional 
agencies focus on in the near term and longer term. In the near term, a more appropriate role 
for BARC would be to focus on aligning regional agency work plans and how regional agencies 
work together.  

One real opportunity not included in the Work Plan is for BARC to serve as a provider of 
landscape-scale assessments of regional issues.  This work is essential to help integrate complex 
transportation and housing needs, plans and policies into adaptation decisions. BARC could also 
help support a region wide understanding of local initiatives. BayCAN currently collects 
information on projects and programs underway as a member supporting benefit - we would be 
excited to work with BARC to continue and expand this program tracking role in support of 
region wide understanding of policies and programs being implemented at the local level. 

5. Technical Assistance. The BARC Work Plan proposes a technical assistance program without
acknowledging the significant technical assistance (TA) capacity already in place in the Bay Area. 
Providing TA broadly is neither a BARC strength nor an appropriate role for it with its limited 
capacity and focus on collaboration across regional agencies. As was discussed at length in the 
Bay Adapt process, technical assistance and climate services, ranging from the collecting of 
observational data, to interpreting the latest climate science, to discovering and promoting 
leading practices in vulnerability assessment and adaptation action, is a significant undertaking 
requiring high levels of expertise, outreach resources, and connectivity to multiple sources of 
information and - most important - adaptation actors on the ground. This is not a role that 
matches up well with BARC’s history, mission, or strengths. Other regional processes also 
discussed climate services and the need for organized TA in detail through a public process - 
BARC should establish an understanding of those prior processes prior to committing to any 

41
Page 110 of 158



particular path. BayCAN would like to discuss how we can collectively support development of 
the region’s technical capacity to scale up quickly to create a more equitable and resilient Bay 
Area.  

While we cannot support adoption of the Draft BARC Work Plan in its current form, we deeply 
appreciate the Work Plan’s commitment to actively addressing climate change. With the support of 
BayCAN’s steering committee we are excited to commit BayCAN’s capacity and network to help develop 
a functional and broad conversation regarding how to best position the Bay Area for its fair share of the 
historic State and federal funding to support a more equitable and resilient Bay Area.  We request the 
opportunity for our members to engage in a dialogue with BARC and its member agencies before the 
Draft Work Plan is presented for approval by the Governing Board.  As noted, we are willing to commit 
BayCAN resources to help organize such a dialogue. 

Please don’t hesitate to contact us with any questions: 510-672-5487 or michael@baycanadapt.org. 

In collaboration, 

Michael McCormick 
Director 
BayCAN  

Violet Wulf Saena 
Equity Program Manager 
BayCAN 

CC: BARC Governing Board 

Regional Agency Directors 

BayCAN Steering Committee 

BayCAN Network Members 

The Bay Area Climate Adaptation Network (BayCAN) is a collaborative network of local government staff 
and partners helping the Bay Area region respond effectively and equitably to the impacts of climate 
change on human health, infrastructure and natural systems. BayCAN covers the 9-county San Francisco 
Bay Area and primarily exists to facilitate connections, information sharing, and best practices 
development among local governments; develop opportunities for multi-jurisdictional collaboration and 
program implementation, and help secure greater levels of adaptation funding and resources. 

42
Page 111 of 158



Hi, 

I am writing to submit comments on the BARC draft shared work plan on behalf of 
Climate Smart San José (see below). We appreciate BARC's work on creating this plan 
and the opportunity to provide comment. 

Thanks and best, 

Yael 

Yael Kisel 

Climate Smart Analytics Lead & Projects 
Coordinator 

Pronouns: she/her  

City of San José | Environmental Services Department 

200 East Santa Clara Street, 10th Floor | San José, CA 
95113 

Sign up for the Climate Smart Challenge! 

It’s a fun and easy way to track your carbon footprint, lower your bills, and make a difference in your community! 

Climate Smart San José comments on the BARC draft work plan to advance climate 
adaptation in the Bay Area 

First, we welcome the regional approach to climate adaptation that Focus Area One 
provides. Climate risks are playing out and will continue to play out on a regional scale, 

43
Page 112 of 158



and we believe our response will be most efficient and effective if coordinated 
regionally. 

For Initiative One, the development of a Regional Multi-Hazard Climate Adaptation Plan, 
we recommend that the Plan include an adaptation plan template that participating 
jurisdictions, such as local governments, can build upon to develop their own specific 
local adaptation plans. This would make it easier for local jurisdictions to develop a local 
adaptation plan, and would ensure that local adaptation plans align with the regional 
adaptation plan. Alternatively, such a template could be provided as part of the Initiative 
Two Technical Assistance, which we strongly support. 

For the Initiative Two Technical Assistance, we recommend the inclusion of one-on-one 
assistance, in addition to written guidance and workshops/webinars. A facilitated cohort 
where multiple jurisdictions are supported at the same time in developing adaptation 
plans could also be helpful. 

For Initiative 3, we suggest inviting local jurisdictions' departments of transportation to 
participate as well, as they could have valuable input. In addition, recognizing that zero-
emission buses are just one element of transitioning to a carbon-neutral regional 
transportation system, we recommend setting up the coordination network from the start 
with the intention of later being able to use it to coordinate on other transportation 
issues as well. 

We are also strongly supportive of Initiative Four: Low-Carbon, High-Equity 
Neighborhoods, as it aligns with a Zero Emissions Neighborhood pilot program we are 
currently developing. The core idea of this program is to bring climate action to life at 
the neighborhood scale in an equitable way by co-creating neighborhood-level 
improvement plans in partnership with residents in disadvantaged neighborhoods. 
Residents in each participating neighborhood will help select the sustainability 
measures that they would like to see implemented, which could include measures 
relating to urban greening, water conservation, waste reduction, energy efficiency and 
electrification, green mobility, and more. Planning for our pilot Zero Emissions 
Neighborhood is currently underway and implementation is expected to begin later in 

44
Page 113 of 158



2022. The major barrier to implementing this program is funding, and we strongly 
support the creation of a Local Innovation Challenge Grant program. 

45
Page 114 of 158



From: Susan Silber <susansilber07@gmail.com> 

Reply-To: "susansilber07@gmail.com" <susansilber07@gmail.com> 

Date: Friday, May 6, 2022 at 2:21 PM 

To: Allison Brooks <abrooks@bayareametro.gov> 

Subject: Draft Shared Work Plan 

*External Email*

Greetings~ My general feedback is that none of the initiatives or goals incorporate 

enough authentic community engagement or tangible community-led projects. 

Community members should be at the heart of this plan. I do not see any language 

around partnerships with CBO's. I'd love to see a separate fund supporting the work 

of CBO's, like the Just Resilience Fund vision. 

I'd also love to see resilience hubs, spaces & blocks (Climate resilience centers) 

listed as a core strategy. If every city had a network of resilience hubs, spaces & 

blocks, this could really support a really robust, integrated, holistic and deep 

community engagement strategy that would support the neighborhoods hardest hit 

by the Climate Climate Crisis (or this strategy could be integrated into building low-

carbon, high-equity  neighborhoods).  

As well, I would love to see more of a holistic framing of resilience. Climate 

resilience is about neighbors helping neighbors, about disaster preparedness, about 

food justice, water conservation, about racial justice. I don't see these components. 

If you have any questions about what I wrote please feel free to write me. 

Thanks! 

46
Page 115 of 158



Susan Silber 

47
Page 116 of 158



CCCR Comments WBSD FERRF PN 3-14-22 Page 1 of 9 

Comments submitted via electronic mail 

Bay Area Regional Collaborative May 6, 2022 
Attn: Draft Shared Work Plan 
375 Beale Street, Suite 800 
San Francisco, CA, 94105 
Email: abrooks@bayareametro.gov 

Re: Draft BARC Shared Work Plan 

Dear Executive Director Brooks, 

The Citizens Committee to Complete the Refuge submits these comments regarding the Bay Area Regional 
Collaborative (BARC) Draft Shared Work Plan (Draft Plan), and we thank you for the opportunity to provide 
comments. The focus of our organization is on the protection and resilience of wetlands and the habitats and 
species wetlands support. We realize that climate change poses many threats to natural landscapes and our 
built environment; however, the focus of our comments is on the threats posed by sea level rise in particular 
on the long-term health of the Bay and the resilience of our communities.  

While we certainly support the September 17, 2021 Joint Resolution to Address Climate Change, it is 
extremely disappointing and of great concern that the adverse impacts of sea level rise on the natural 
environment and the ecological health of the Bay itself, are not directly addressed in Draft BARC Shared Work 
Plan, and only hinted at in “Table A1: Agency Roles and Needs (Initiative 1),” through mention of Bay Adapt 
and integration of the Estuary Blueprint. We are living through an unparalleled time of climate change that has 
resulted from ignoring anthropogenic impacts on the world’s environment. It would be unconscionable to 
develop a Regional Multi-Hazard Adaptation Plan that fails to address adverse impacts of sea level rise on the 
natural environment and ecological health of the Bay. The Regional Multi-Hazard Adaptation Plan must clearly 
and explicitly incorporate protection of the natural resources of the Bay as a crucial component of the regional 
approach; otherwise, we will continue to stay in our self-imposed silos of built environment versus the natural 
environment and risk squandering opportunities that could provide better long-term resilience for both. 

Citizens Committee to Complete the Refuge (CCCR), with a membership of 2,000, has an ongoing history of 
interest in wetlands protection, wetlands restoration and wetlands acquisition. Our senior members were part 
of a group of citizens who became alarmed at the degradation of the Bay and its wetlands. We joined 
together, and with the support of Congressman Don Edwards, requested that Congress establish the Nation’s 
first national wildlife refuge in an urban setting. The process took seven long years and in 1972 legislation  
was passed to form the San Francisco Bay National Wildlife Refuge (“Refuge”). We turned to Mr. Edwards 
again, and in 1988 (the first year submitted) his legislation to double the size of the Refuge was signed into 
law. The Refuge now bears his name in honor of his efforts.  

  P.O. Box 23957, San Jose, CA 95153    Tel: 650-493-5540   Email: cccrrefuge@gmail.com    www.bayrefuge.org 

Citizens Committee to Complete the Refuge 

48
Page 117 of 158



CCCR Comments WBSD FERRF PN 3-14-22 Page 2 of 9 

CCCR has taken an active interest in state and federal regulations, policies, implementation, and enforcement 
pertaining to the protection of wetlands and undeveloped lands that could support the expansion of tidal 
marsh habitats/species or the migration of tidal marsh habitats and species as sea level rises.  

We are stakeholders on the San Francisco Bay Joint Venture, San Francisco Estuary Partnership and the South 
Bay Salt Pond Restoration project, and were stakeholders in the Bay Conservation and Development 
Commission’s (BCDC) Adapting to Rising Tides and Bay Adapt Programs. We were also stakeholders in the 
development of the State’s definition of wetlands and the dredge and fill policy. We also participated in the 
Plan Bay Area 2050 process. Each of these processes recognize the invaluable role tidal wetlands play in 
maintaining the ecological health of the Bay and the many ecosystem services provided by complete tidal 
wetlands (tidal wetlands). Complete tidal wetlands1 have been defined in the 2015 Baylands Ecosystem 
Habitat Goals Update (BEHGU) as habitats from the “open waters of the bay through intertidal mudflats, tidal 
marshes, and adjacent terrestrial areas.” And: 

“A more accurate way to consider this continuum of habitats involves the concept of a “complete tidal 
wetland system,” which emphasizes all the aspects of the baylands ecosystem and the full gradient of 
ecological functions and ecosystem services (fig. 11).” 

Figure 11 of the document provides a graphic cross-section representation of a “complete tidal wetland:”

Our comments and recommendations regarding the Draft BARC Shared Work Plan follow. 

It is imperative that long-term protection of tidal wetlands as defined above is incorporated as a crucial 
element when developing the Regional Multi-Hazard Climate Adaptation Plan: 

The Draft Plan cites the September 17, 2021 Joint Resolution stating: 

“...the BARC member agencies will “work together to strategically align planning and regulatory actions in 
order to accelerate the implementation of strategies that advance climate mitigation and adaptation goals.” 

And that: 

1 Goals Project. 2015. The Baylands and Climate Change: What We Can Do. Baylands Ecosystem Habitat Goals 

Science Update 2015 prepared by the San Francisco Bay Area Wetlands Ecosystem Goals Project. California 
State Coastal Conservancy, Oakland, CA . 

49
Page 118 of 158



CCCR Comments WBSD FERRF PN 3-14-22 Page 3 of 9 

“The Draft BARC Shared Work Plan is the mechanism by which the agencies will do that, outlining four 
ambitious Initiatives that aim to produce measurable results within the next one to five years to 
equitably reduce greenhouse gas emissions and advance a strategic regional approach to adapting to 
climate change. Underlying each Initiative is a commitment to advancing social equity, with a focus on 
optimizing the roles of BARC’s member agencies so that they better support and enhance local actions 
and connect them to regional plans and progress.” [emphasis added] 

It is impossible to determine from the language of the Draft Plan if, or how, the urgent need to provide long-
term protection of tidal wetlands will be incorporated into the development of the Regional Multi-Hazard 
Climate Adaptation Plan. The San Francisco Estuary Partnership Estuary Blueprint is mentioned in “Initiative 1: 
Regional Multi-Hazard Climate Adaptation Plan” and includes language that the Estuary Blueprint “maps out 
regional actions needed for a healthy and resilient San Francisco Estuary.” However, in the passage describing 
the Bay Conservation and Development Commission’s (BCDC) Bay Adapt Joint Platform (Joint Platform), the 
Draft Plan has omitted a key word “natural”2 in the description of the goals of the Joint Platform. BCDC was 
created to protect the Bay as a crucial natural resource and this fact is reflected in the Bay Plan.  This sentence 
must be corrected to accurately reflect the goals of BCDC and the language of the Joint Platform: 

“That same month, BCDC’s Bay Adapt Joint Platform laid out a high-level action plan to protect people 
and the natural and built environment from rising sea levels.” 

San Francisco Bay has been recognized as a “Wetland of International Importance” by UNESCO’s Ramsar 
Convention on Wetlands. It has been identified as a Hemispheric Reserve for shorebirds by the Western 
Hemispheric Shorebird Reserve Network. This classification is the Network’s highest ranking and the Network 
states that, “San Francisco Bay holds higher proportions of the total wintering and migrating shorebirds on the 
U.S. Pacific coast than any other wetland.” The Bay supports hundreds of thousands of migratory waterfowl 
every year and has been designated an Area of Continental significance for waterfowl by the North American 
Waterfowl Conservation Plan and an Important Bird Area by the National Audubon Society. The Bay provides 
Essential Fish Habitat as identified by the National Marine Fisheries Service and supports hundreds of fish and 
crustacean species. 

The San Francisco Bay estuary, is the largest estuary on the west coast of both Americas. The incredible 
biodiversity and ecosystem services the estuary supports and that we depend upon, are vulnerable to the 
threat of sea level rise. Estuarine intertidal and shallow waters support economically important species, act as 
nurseries for fisheries, as well as rare, listed and migratory species, and support tremendous biodiversity. 

In addition, tidal wetlands provide numerous ecosystem services including nutrient cycling, water quality 
improvement, flood protection and also provide opportunities for education and recreation.  Of great 
pertinence to our concerns of addressing climate change, is the significant ability of tidal wetlands to draw 
down and sequester carbon. The National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration’s Coastal Blue Carbon 
website3 states, “Current studies suggest that mangroves and coastal wetlands annually sequester carbon at a 
rate ten times greater than mature tropical forests. They also store three to five times more carbon per 
equivalent area than tropical forests.” [emphasis added] 

2 Bay Conservation and Development Commission Bay Adapt Joint Platform Executive Summary https://www.bayadapt.org/wp-
content/uploads/2021/10/BayAdapt_4-pager_2021.10_ADA.pdf 

3 “Coastal Blue Carbon.” Accessed April 22, 2022. https://oceanservice.noaa.gov/ecosystems/coastal-blue-carbon/ 

50
Page 119 of 158



CCCR Comments WBSD FERRF PN 3-14-22 Page 4 of 9 

However, these extremely beneficial ecosystem services will be lost if we do not adequately include plans for 
long-term protection of tidal wetland habitat as we plan to provide resilience for the Bay Area’s built 
environment. Dusterhoff et al4, in a San Francisco Estuary Institute Report (SFEI)  “Sediment for Survival: A 
Strategy for the Resilience of Bay Wetlands in the Lower San Francisco Estuary,” describe the significant 
challenges we must address to maintain tidal wetlands, including  the diminishing sediment supply which may 
hinder the ability of tidal wetlands to keep pace with rising sea levels through accretion of sediment, and our 
history of developing up to the edges of the Bay, which reduces the ability of tidal wetlands to migrate inland. 

We understand agencies such as the Metropolitan Transit Commission (MTC) and the Association of Bay Area 
Governments (ABAG) are primarily focused on the resilience of the Bay Area’s built environment. However, 
planning processes and the development of any regional adaptation plans need to incorporate preservation of 
areas that provide lateral migration space for tidal wetlands to avoid squandering important opportunities to 
sustain tidal wetlands. While the phrase nature-based solutions (NBS) is mentioned in this Draft Plan, it is 
important that consideration of the use of NBS is not restricted to planning horizontal levees, but also 
encompasses other important strategies such as the aforementioned restoration of tidal wetlands and 
preservation of future migration space for tidal wetlands. These adaptation/mitigation measures must be 
included in any regional planning for the built environment. This could be accomplished from a complete 
overhaul of the Priority Conservation Area designations provided by ABAG, as has been discussed in Plan Bay 
Area 2050, so that these designations identify areas that will support local and regional ecological function. Or 
it could be through the development of the concept of Priority Adaptation Areas that could apply to areas that 
will provide space for tidal marsh migration, expansion, or restoration, or in upland areas that could provide 
protective buffers at the wildland-urban interface (WUI). 

We concur that given the threat posed by sea level rise to the natural and built environment,  we all need to 
be rowing in the same direction and that a regional approach for sea level rise resilience needs to be adopted. 
As an example, there is a need to ensure that flood protection measures implemented in one community, do 
not adversely impact the resilience of other communities in the region. A recent article by Stanford 
University’s Natural Capital Project5, and a 2018 paper by Wang et al6, analyzed through modeling, the 
interconnectedness of the Bay’s shoreline and the ramifications of utilizing seawalls and traditional levees in 
one location, on other areas of the Bay. Both studies concluded that “...measures to prevent flooding along an 
embayment shoreline in one location or subregion may increase inundation elsewhere in the system.” [Wang 
et al] Furthermore, in addition to avoiding harm to other communities when developing plans to provide flood 
protection, one of the Guiding Principles of BCDC’s Joint Platform should be employed, “Put nature first 
whenever possible. Prioritize natural infrastructure solutions that benefit ecosystems and the health of the 
Bay as well as people, especially in the near-term.” 

4 Dusterhoff, S., McKnight, K., Grenier, L., and Kauffman, N. 2021. Sediment for Survival: A 
Strategy for the Resilience of Bay Wetlands in the Lower San Francisco Estuary. A SFEI Resilient 
Landscape Program. A product of the Healthy Watersheds, Resilient Baylands project, funded by 
the San Francisco Bay Water Quality Improvement Fund, EPA Region IX. Publication #1015, San 
Francisco Estuary Institute, Richmond, CA. 

5 Michelle A. Hummel, Robert Griffin, Katie Arkema, Anne D. Guerry. “Economic evaluation of sea-level rise adaptation strongly 
influenced by hydrodynamic feedbacks. Proceedings of the National Academy of Sciences Jul 2021, 118 (29) e2025961118; DOI: 
10.1073/pnas.2025961118 
6 R. Q. Wang, M. T. Stacey, L. M. M. Herdman, P. L. Barnard, L. Erikson. “The influence of sea level rise on the regional 
interdependence of coastal infrastructure.” Earth Future 6, 677–688 (2018). 

51
Page 120 of 158



CCCR Comments WBSD FERRF PN 3-14-22 Page 5 of 9 

Initiative 2: Regional Climate Adaptation Technical Assistance 

Under the “Objectives” we urge that a bullet regarding adaptation projects be incorporated as suggested 
below: 

“Help move planning toward the prioritization of natured-based (green) adaption over gray 
infrastructure unless site conditions cannot support the use of nature-based adaptation”  

As mentioned above, BCDC’s Joint Platform espouses prioritization of natural infrastructure solutions 
whenever possible and concludes “Working with nature, instead of against it, can produce better results for 
both people and wildlife.” 

It would also be extremely useful for the Regional Climate Adaptation Technical Assistance program to provide 
information regarding the various funding streams available for climate adaptation and mitigation projects, 
the criteria to qualify for the funding, assistance in writing of applications and dates of application deadlines to 
assist communities and community-based organizations to apply for funding to assist in local resilience 
planning. 

Focus Area Two: Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions Reductions 

The two initiatives included under this section regard development of zero-emission transit bus infrastructure 
and low-carbon high-equity neighborhoods. 

As mentioned earlier, tidal wetland habitat is extremely efficient at drawing down atmospheric carbon and 
storing carbon.  

We urge BARC to include a third initiative that recognizes the value provided through long-term protection 
and restoration of tidal wetlands, as carbon sinks, due to their ability to draw down and store carbon. Mcleod 
et al7provided the following takeaways: 

“Despite their relatively small global extent, vegetated coastal ecosystems (mangrove forests, seagrass 
beds, salt marshes) are disproportionately important in sequestering carbon dioxide when compared 
to terrestrial ecosystems.” 

A 2019 National Academy of Sciences Study8 regarding negative emissions technologies (NETs) reports: 

“The motivation for including coastal blue carbon as a potential NET is the potential to more than 
double the current rate of CO2 removal through several approaches that restore and create coastal 
wetlands... Reversing historic loss and degradation through restoration, incorporating wetland creation 
into coastal adaptation projects, and managing wetland area and carbon accumulation rates provide 
an opportunity for increased carbon removal and storage through the 21st century.  

7 Mcleod, Elizabeth, Gail L Chmura, Steven Bouillon, Rodney Salm, Mats Björk, Carlos M Duarte, Catherine E Lovelock, William H 
Schlesinger, and Brian R Silliman. “A Blueprint for Blue Carbon: Toward an Improved Understanding of the Role of Vegetated Coastal 
Habitats in Sequestering CO 2.” Frontiers in Ecology and the Environment 9, no. 10 (December 2011): 552–60. 
https://doi.org/10.1890/110004. 
8 National Academies of Sciences, Engineering, and Medicine 2019. Negative Emissions Technologies and Reliable Sequestration: A 
Research Agenda. Washington, DC: The National Academies Press. https://doi.org/10.17226/25259. 

52
Page 121 of 158



CCCR Comments WBSD FERRF PN 3-14-22 Page 6 of 9 

Coastal wetlands and seagrasses are already the targets of restoration and management 
for the broad range of ecosystem services they provide beyond CO2 removal, 
O2 including coastal storm protection and wave attenuation, water quality improvement, wildlife 
habitat, and support of fisheries (Alongi, 2011; Barbier et al., 2011; Lee et al., 2014; Nagelkerken et al., 
2008; Zhang et al., 2012). These activities and investments, which are not included in this report as NET 
costs, can be leveraged to provide CO2  removal advantages at marginal costs.” 

Ouyang and Lee 20149 refer to salt marshes as “significant coastal hotspots in sequestering carbon,” but warn 
that annual rates of loss of this valuable habitat “seriously compromises the capacity of salt marshes for 
carbon storage, unless proper management and rehabilitation is implemented.” 

And within the San Francisco Bay Area, Arias-Ortiz et al 202110 conclude that “Coastal wetlands  
have great potential to remove carbon dioxide from the atmosphere and mitigate climate change.” And that 
“...restored tidal wetland was a greater greenhouse gas sink and climate intervention because it emitted very 
little methane.” 

For these reasons, we urge BARC to recognize the significant role tidal wetlands can play in the sequestration 
of carbon and mitigation of the impacts of greenhouse gases. 

Appendix A 

As we have stated at length earlier, it is imperative that the development of a Regional Multi-Hazard Adaption 
Plan address the threat of sea level rise not only to the built environment, but also the natural environment to 
ensure continued protection of the ecological health of the Bay.  We urge that the “Problem Statement” be 
revised as follows: 

“The Bay Area’s natural and built environment faces increasing risks from climate hazards including 
sea-level rise, coastal and inland flooding, extreme heat, drought, and wildfires. The current lack of 
standardized and coordinated adaptation approaches across the region creates individualized local 
actions and disjointed approaches to managing risk. This environment also creates competition for 
funding and disparate resilience preparedness throughout the Bay, often leaving those most at risk at a 
further disadvantage.” 

Similarly, the “Goal” should be amended as follows: 

“Develop a Regional Multi-Hazard Adaptation Plan that creates a standardized regional approach to 
manage risk and achieve greater resilience across the natural and built environments of the Bay Area.” 

The Draft Plan must clarify that “a standardized regional approach” refers to the process of coordination and 
identification of appropriate resilience measures and not the actual type of resilience measure utilized. 

This is consistent with the February 2022 Draft State Agency Sea-Level Rise Action Plan for California. The 
comments we have made thus far are consistent with two goals from the State Action Plan listed below: 

9 Ouyang, X. and Lee, S.Y., 2014. Updated estimates of carbon accumulation rates in coastal marsh sediments. Biogeosciences, 
11(18), pp.5057-5071. 

10 Arias-Ortiz, A., Oikawa, P. Y., Carlin, J., Masque, P., Shahan, J., Kanneg, S., et al. (2021). Tidal and nontidal marsh restoration: A 
trade-off between carbon sequestration, methane emissions, and soil accretion. Journal of Geophysical Research: Biogeosciences, 
126, e2021JG006573. https://doi. org/10.1029/2021JG006573 

53
Page 122 of 158



CCCR Comments WBSD FERRF PN 3-14-22 Page 7 of 9 

“• Nature-based solutions should be pursued when possible. Nature-based solutions are the preferred 
method for SLR adaptation. These include vegetated dunes, living shorelines, and wetlands and marsh 
restoration. Gray infrastructure such as seawalls should be avoided when possible. [emphasis added] 

● Coastal habitats including wetlands, beaches, and dunes should be protected and conserved.
Adaptation planning and implementation should prioritize the conservation of coastal habitats and
maintaining biodiversity and associated functions, including allowing space for upland and inland
migration of coastal habitats. The traditional, cultural, and ceremonial connection of California Native
American tribes to these habitats and the species within these habitats should be included and
prioritized in adaptation planning and implementation.” [emphasis added]

Objectives 

The comments we have made thus far are pertinent to the last two bullets under the “Objectives.” Regarding the bullet 
“Study optimal regulatory and legislative approach(es), identify gaps, one governance/regulatory gap that must be 
addressed is the lack of regional, state and federal regulatory oversight over development of areas that are likely to be 
at risk of flood inundation. Appendix A of the “Pathways to 30 x 30 California”11 lists this as a “Conservation 
Challenge” for the San Francisco Bay Area Region, “Governance gaps that fail to protect areas that could 
support lateral migration of tidal wetlands from development pressure.” However, this governance gap not 
only poses a conservation challenge, but also a threat and burden to current and future Bay Area residents in 
that continued permitting of new development in undeveloped areas along the edges of the Bay that puts 
people in harm’s way as sea levels rise creates burdens for future generations in terms of providing protection 
or compensation for poorly-planned development. Such actions also squander increasingly limited 
opportunities to provide tidal wetlands migration pathways, potential flood accommodation space to protect 
communities and to sustain crucial services provided by tidal wetlands such as carbon sequestration.  

One potential way to address this governance gap is via the last objective “Influence future growth 
frameworks via Plan Bay Area.” During the Plan Bay Area 2050 we provided comments [letter attached] 
regarding the Plan Bay Area 2050 Blueprint could be modified to address the governance/regulatory gap 
through changes in the language and focus of the Environmental Strategies and the need to overhaul the 
existing Priority Conservation Area (PCAs) process to ensure lands that are identified as PCAs are done so 
based on science and ecological function. Another potential tool to address this issue, is the creation of a 
Priority Adaptation Area designation that includes lands that could provide lateral migration pathways for tidal 
wetlands. 

Table A1: Agency Roles and Needs (Initiative 1) 

Table A1 identifies BCDC’s Bay Adapt program and the San Francisco Estuary Partnership’s Estuary Blueprint, 
but the emphasis of bullets under each are specific to resilience for the built environment. Nature-based 
solutions are mentioned, but the overwhelming emphasis is on flood hazard mitigation and not on near-, mid- 
and long-term durability of tidal wetlands and thus the health of San Francisco Bay. Where is the input into 
this process for the protection of ecological resources, beneficial uses, and ecosystem services? 

Similarly, the column for the San Francisco Bay Regional Water Quality Control Board (Water Board) neglects 
to mention the regulatory oversight of the Water Board in protecting the beneficial uses of the Bay’s waters 
and wetlands, and Bay Area watersheds. 

11 California Natural Resources Agency. Pathways to 30 x 30. 2022. https://www.californianature.ca.gov/pages/30x30 

54
Page 123 of 158



CCCR Comments WBSD FERRF PN 3-14-22 Page 8 of 9 

The San Francisco Bay Joint Venture (SFBJV) should be included in this table. The San Francisco Bay Joint 
Venture “seeks to protect, restore, increase and enhance all types of wetlands, riparian habitat and associated 
uplands throughout the nine Bay Area counties for the benefit of birds, fish and other wildlife.” The SFBJV 
management board, comprised of twenty-six state and federal agencies and organizations, is currently 
updating its Implementation Plan Restoring the Estuary: an Implementation Strategy for the SFBJV.” The 
Strategy “...established specific acreage goals for wetlands of three distinct types – bay habits, seasonal 
wetlands and creeks and lakes, and lays out programmatic and cooperative strategies for accomplishing 
them.” 

How is information from the resource agencies incorporated in this process? State and federal resource 
agencies are conspicuously missing from Table A1 as well. These agencies should be included in the 
development of the Regional Multi-Hazard Adaptation Plan due to the presence of state and federal listed 
species in areas where resilience measures may be implemented, As an example, the U.S. Fish and Wildlife 
Service identified areas important for tidal marsh dependent species in their 2013 Tidal Marsh Ecosystems 
Recovery Plan12. 

Under “Needs” for the Metropolitan Transportation (MTC)/Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG), is 
the following statement, “Better understanding of how local zoning Priority Development Areas, Priority 
Conservation Areas and RHNA (Regional Housing Needs Assessment) tie in.” We urge that Priority 
Development Areas should be re-examined to determine if they are consistent with the California Adaptation 
Strategy and Sea Level Rise Guiding Principles. And as we suggested earlier, the Priority Conservation Area 
process should be completely overhauled to ensure that these designations identify areas that will support 
local and regional ecological function. 

Table B1: Agency Roles and Needs (Initiative 2) 

We would appreciate further clarification of the “Role” BARC envisions the Water Board will fulfill under 
Initiative 2. For example, what is meant by the notation “Align regulatory and planning functions” under the 
column for the Water Board? 

Similarly, what is envisioned regarding the description “Project Management in localities and around key 
assets (e.g. waterwater treatment facilities)” under the column for the San Francisco Estuary Project? Does 
this refer to potential use of nature-based solutions? Would the San Francisco Estuary Project be anticipated 
to provide actual management or does the description refer to providing guidance and technical assistance? 

Conclusion: 

A 201913 modeling analysis of the potential impacts of climate change estimated that the San Francisco Bay 
Area will experience an alarming two thirds of the State’s socioeconomic impacts related to sea level rise. The 
San Francisco Bay-Delta ecosystem supports over 77% of the State’s coastal wetlands and is of hemispheric 
importance for migratory water birds.   Rising sea levels will result in the drowning of the Bay’s tidal wetland 

12 US Fish and Wildlife Service, 2009. Draft recovery plan for tidal marsh ecosystems of Northern and Central California. Sacramento, 
California. xviii 

13 Barnard, Patrick L., Li H. Erikson, Amy C. Foxgrover, Juliette A. Finzi Hart, Patrick Limber, Andrea C. O’Neill, Maarten van Ormondt, 
et al. “Dynamic Flood Modeling Essential to Assess the Coastal Impacts of Climate Change.” Scientific Reports 9, no. 1 (March 13, 
2019): 4309. https://doi.org/10.1038/s41598-019-40742-z. 

55
Page 124 of 158



CCCR Comments WBSD FERRF PN 3-14-22 Page 9 of 9 

habitats if wetlands cannot no longer keep abreast of rising seas through accretion of sediments or cannot 
migrate upslope due to human constructed barriers. The ecosystem services provided by tidal wetland 
habitats are essential for the health of the Bay and our communities. 

The use of traditional grey infrastructure has been the standard means of responding to flood protection; 
however, these methods are costly, may not provide the resilience needed over time, and are environmentally 
damaging. 

We cannot begin to move in a positive direction towards natural and community resilience without the 
inclusion of language in the BARC Draft Plan that acknowledges the threat of climate change and potential 
measures to ameliorate the impacts of sea level rise. As communities plan for sea level rise resilience, there 
will need to be concerted efforts to ensure prioritization of nature-based solutions over traditional grey 
infrastructure wherever and whenever possible, to ensure the ecological health of the Bay, equitable 
resilience for our collective communities, and protection of water quality and the beneficial uses of San 
Francisco Bay.  

Thank you for the opportunity to provide comments. We request that we be kept informed of future 
opportunities to review and provide comments on the Draft Plan and the development of the Regional Multi-
Hazard Adaptation Plan. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Carin High, Co-Chair  Gail Raabe Co-Chair 
 Citizens Committee to Complete the Refuge 
 cccrrefuge@gmail.com 

56
Page 125 of 158



CCCR Comment Draft Blueprint 8-10-20 Page 1 of 5 

Sent via electronic mail to: info@planbayarea.org 
    tmcmillan@bayareametro.gov 

Association of Bay Area Governments & 10 August 2020 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission 
Bay Area Metro Center 
375 Beale Street 
San Francisco 94105 

Re: Citizens Committee to Complete the Refuge comments on Plan Bay Area 2050 Draft Blueprint 

Dear Plan Bay Area 2050 Staff and Decision-makers, 

Citizens Committee to Complete the Refuge (CCCR) appreciates the opportunity to comment on the Draft Blueprint for 
Plan Bay Area 2050.  CCCR applauds elements of the Draft Plan Bay Area that recognize societal inequities and strategies 
that focus on resolving economic, transportation and quality of life challenges that face large segments of Bay Area 
residents.  The Draft Blueprint identifies 4 categories of strategies – transportation, economic, housing and 
environmental. The Citizens Committee to Complete the Refuge (CCCR) has a long-standing interest in the protection, 
restoration, and acquisition of San Francisco Bay wetlands; as such the focus of our comments is on identified 
environmental strategies and in particular on the interface of the Draft Blueprint with lands along the edges of San 
Francisco Bay.  

CCCR was originally formed in 1965 by a group of citizens who became alarmed at the degradation of the Bay and its 
wetlands.  We joined together, and with the support of Congressman Don Edwards, requested that Congress establish a 
wildlife refuge.  The process took seven long years and in 1972 legislation was passed to form the San Francisco Bay 
National Wildlife Refuge, the first national wildlife refuge in an urban area.  In 1988, Congress authorized expansion of 
the refuge boundary to potentially double the original size.  Our membership is approximately 2,000 people and we 
have the support of 40 local and national organizations-- including open space advocates, hunters and environmental 
groups.   

The Draft Blueprint acknowledges the need to Adapt to Sea Level Rise under Environmental Strategies and the need to 
protect shoreline communities. In April 2020 a document developed by State and regional agencies was released, 
“Making California’s Coast Resilient to Sea-Level Rise: Principles for Aligned State Action.” One of the principles identified 
is the adoption of a “minimum SLR estimate of 3.5 feet by 2050” for planning purposes. The background section of this 
document states, “California’s coast faces a significant risk of experiencing SLR up to 1.0 feet by 2030 and 7.6 feet by 
2100.” Does the Draft Blueprint incorporate a minimum of 3.5 feet of SLR by 2050 into its planning process? 

 SLR obviously poses a significant threat to the built environment of the Bay area but also poses a significant threat to 
baylands. Baylands are described in the 2015 Baylands Ecosystem Habitat Goals Science Update (BEHGU), as: 

  P.O. Box 23957, San Jose, CA 95153    Tel: 650-493-5540   Email: cccrrefuge@gmail.com    wwsw.bayrefuge.org 

Citizens Committee to Complete the Refuge 

57
Page 126 of 158



CCCR Comment Draft Blueprint 8-10-20 Page 2 of 5 

 “...a dynamic continuum of habitats connected by physical and biological processes; they extend from the open 
waters of the bay through intertidal mudflats, tidal marshes, and adjacent terrestrial areas. Less extensive 
habitat types, such as beaches and rocky intertidal areas, are also important parts of the baylands, and each 
habitat type has variation and complexity, as well as transitions between it and the adjacent habitat type.” 

The San Francisco Bay Conservation and Development Commission (BCDC) Tidal Marsh and Tidal Flats Findings list the 
importance of the baylands: 

• Wetlands can alter and moderate flood flows, recharge groundwater, maintain stream flows, reduce and
prevent shoreline erosion by minimizing wave energy, and improve water quality by filtering surface runoff from
surrounding lands. In addition, they trap sediments, thereby reducing the amount deposited in channels.
Wetland plants help absorb available nitrogen, atmospheric sulfur, carbon dioxide and methane. Wetlands also
are important habitat for the Bay's aquatic and upland plant and animal populations, serve as a primary link in
the ecosystem's food chain, ensure the continued diversity of plant and animal communities, are an essential
feeding and resting place for migratory birds on the Pacific Flyway, and provide needed and important open
space and recreational opportunities in the Bay Area.

• A transition zone or "ecotone" is an environment that blends the habitat of plants and animals from each of the
bordering habitats such as tidal marsh and oak woodlands. Transition zones are important elements of wetland
habitats. Around the Bay these zones contain a rich mixture of vegetation types, including many of the Bay's rare
plants, and they provide food, shelter and high-tide refugia for wildlife, including the salt marsh harvest mouse
and California black rail.

• Tidal marshes are an interconnected and essential part of the Bay's food web. Decomposed plant and animal
material and seeds from tidal marshes wash onto surrounding tidal flats and into subtidal areas, providing food
for numerous animals, such as the Northern pintail. In addition, tidal marshes provide habitat for insects, crabs
and small fish, which in turn, are food for larger animals, such as the salt marsh song sparrow, harbor seal and
great blue heron. Diking and filling have fragmented the remaining tidal marshes, degrading the quality of
habitat and resulting in a loss of species and an altered community structure.

• Tidal flats occur from the elevation of the lowest tides to approximately Mean Sea level and include mudflats,
sandflats and shellflats. Mudflats comprise the largest area of tidal flat areas and support an extensive
community of invertebrate aquatic organisms, e.g., diatoms, worms and shellfish, fish that feed during higher
tides, and plants such as algae and occasionally eelgrass. Shorebirds feed on tidal flats. Few mammals, however,
inhabit tidal flats, the harbor seal being the most notable exception. Historically, around 50,000 acres of tidal
flats occurred around the margins of the Bay, approximately 29,000 acres remain-a reduction of over 40
percent.

• Landward marsh migration will be necessary to sustain marsh acreage around the Bay as sea level rises. As sea
level rises, high-energy waves erode sediment from tidal flats and deposit that sediment onto adjacent tidal
marshes. Marshes trap sediment and contribute additional material to the marsh plain as decaying plant matter
accumulates. Tidal habitats respond to sea level rise by moving landward, a process referred to as transgression
or migration. Low sedimentation rates, natural topography, development, and shoreline protection can block
wetland migration. Transition zones, depending on the size and slope, provide high tide refugia for organisms as
sea level rises, as well as important opportunities for marsh migration upslope and inland as sea level rises, but
these functions and services are limited in the long-term unless transition zones are connected to uplands with
higher elevations.[emphasis added]

Protection of baylands is crucial to the health and vitality of San Francisco Bay, yet these areas could be lost if planning 
and siting of development and infrastructure does not adequately consider the adverse impacts of sea level rise and 
instead restricts the ability of baylands to migrate upslope. 

BCDC’s Policies regarding Tidal Marsh and Tidal Flats state in part: 

58
Page 127 of 158



CCCR Comment Draft Blueprint 8-10-20 Page 3 of 5 

• Tidal marshes and tidal flats should be conserved to the fullest possible extent. Filling, diking, and dredging
projects that would substantially harm tidal marshes or tidal flats should be allowed only for purposes that
provide substantial public benefits and only if there is no feasible alternative.

• Any proposed fill, diking, or dredging project should be thoroughly evaluated to determine the effect of the
project on tidal marshes and tidal flats, and designed to minimize, and if feasible, avoid any harmful effects.

• Projects should be sited and designed to avoid, or if avoidance is infeasible, minimize adverse impacts on any
transition zone present between tidal and upland habitats. Where a transition zone does not exist and it is
feasible and ecologically appropriate, shoreline projects should be designed to provide a transition zone
between tidal and upland habitats.

And BCDC’s Climate Change Policy #4 states: 

To address the regional adverse impacts of climate change, undeveloped areas that are both vulnerable to 
future flooding and currently sustain significant habitats or species, or possess conditions that make the areas 
especially suitable for ecosystem enhancement, should be given special consideration for preservation and 
habitat enhancement and should be encouraged to be used for those purposes. 

Objective #9 of the Draft Blueprint, “Reduce Our Impact on the Environment” is an admirable objective and one CCCR 
fully supports. However, the strategies are largely silent on one of our greatest concerns, that of preserving the 
biodiversity of the Bay’s ecosystems and ensuring they are sustainable into the future particularly in light of ever-
increasing rates of predicted sea level rise. Though five strategies are listed under “Environmental Strategies,” there is 
only one that is not human centric – “Protect High-Value Conservation Lands.” This is to be accomplished through 
provision of “strategic matching funds to help conserve high-priority natural and agricultural lands, including but not 
limited to Priority Conservation Areas.” [emphasis added] The Equity and Performance Outcomes” document (Appendix 
C of the July 10, 2020 Plan Bay Area 2050 Draft Blueprint: Key Findings) assigns $15 billion to Protection of High-Value 
Conservation Lands. More information should be provided on how this figure was determined and how these funds 
would be allocated. 

One of the major concerns we have had with previous iterations of Plan Bay Area has been the emphasis on PCAs as the 
focus of resource protection. MTC describes PCAs as “areas of importance for conservation to retain and enhance the 
natural environment that are key to the quality of life enjoyed by the region’s residents and visitors and the region’s 
ecological diversity.”  Sadly the PCA identification process has proven inadequate and many areas of importance for 
conservation have not been identified as PCAs. We have previously commented that the PCA framework was 
established through a fundamentally flawed process, based more on political consensus than science. It has been a 
process that has left some of the Bay Area’s more important natural and remaining undeveloped lands unprotected 
from increasing threats from urban development. The PCA process has failed to identify as PCAs baylands and wildlife 
habitats identified and documented by scientists and federal, state and regional resource agencies as being regionally 
significant to the health of the San Francisco Bay Estuary - baylands that also face imminent threats of urban 
development.  Specific important sites for protection and restoration are well documented in the:  

• Baylands Ecosystem Habitat Goals (and update) - a report of recommendations prepared by the San Francisco
Bay Area Wetlands Ecosystem Goals Project (originally published in 1999 US EPA and SFBRWQCB and updated in 2015),
• Recovery Plan for Tidal Marsh Ecosystems of Northern and Central California published by the U.S. Fish and
Wildlife Service in 2013 – a report that identified lands important for tidal marsh habitat and listed and rare species of
that ecosystem,
• the 2012 Comprehensive Conservation Plan by U.S.  Fish and Wildlife Service and the approved Potential
Additions boundary for the Don Edwards San Francisco Bay National Wildlife Refuge,

59
Page 128 of 158



CCCR Comment Draft Blueprint 8-10-20 Page 4 of 5 

It is crucial if we are to ensure the long-term sustainability of the Bay’s ecosystems and biodiversity that the Blueprint 
and Plan Bay Area 2050 look beyond the political constructs of PCAs when determining lands that are worthy of 
protection. We are encouraged that the Draft Blueprint acknowledges that lands that have not been labeled as Priority 
Conservation Areas (PCAs) may have high conservation value, however the Blueprint provides no description of how 
lands worthy of protection will be identified. In fact, the metrics provided in Appendix C fail to provide any performance 
outcomes pertinent to the natural environment.  

In planning for future transportation, development and economic development, the Draft Blueprint should acknowledge 
the functions and values provided by a healthy, thriving and sustainable Bay ecosystem and the importance of 
protecting the biodiversity of the Bay. Though the natural environment is acknowledged in the Draft Blueprint in the one 
strategy we have identified, the remainder of the Blueprint is silent regarding the natural environment. One of the Final 
Guiding Principles of the Horizon process of what the “San Francisco Bay Area Aspires To Be” is “Healthy” and “Health” is 
described as  “The region’s natural resources, open space, clean water and clean air are conserved – the region actively 
reduces its environmental footprint and protects residents from environmental impacts.” The key findings of the Draft 
Blueprint under “A Healthier Bay Area” focus solely on the reduction of greenhouse gas emissions and human health 
with no mention of the natural environment.  

We recommend the language for the Environmental Strategy “Adapt to Sea Level Rise” be modified as follows: 

“Protect shoreline communities affected by sea level rise, prioritizing areas of low costs and high benefits and 
providing additional support to vulnerable populations. Protect undeveloped areas that could be suitable for 
baylands restoration and migration. Nature-based solutions for reducing flood risk should be the preferred 
method of providing resilience against the impacts of sea level rise. 

The added language is consistent with the Draft November 2017 report “Raising the Bar On Regional Resilience” which 
was produced by the Bay Area Regional Collaborative (BARC). The report cites Plan Bay Area 2040’s recommendation of 
“expanding the region’s network of natural infrastructure” to “coordinate regional programs to preserve and expand 
natural features that reduce flood risk, strengthen biodiversity, enhance air quality, and improve access to urban and 
rural public space.” [emphasis added] 

The Draft Blueprint is silent regarding the types of adaptations that will be implemented to mitigate the impacts of sea 
level rise. Nature-based sea level rise adaptation measures such as those described in the 2015 BEHGU and the 2019 San 
Francisco Bay Shoreline Adaptation Atlas should be the preferred method of shoreline protection.  

The aforementioned “Raising the Bar On Regional Resilience” provides a description of green, blue and grey 
infrastructure: 

Grey infrastructure built out of hard impermeable concrete or asphalt is the norm in many urban zones. A 
resilient or sustainable approach seeks to soften and green these surfaces with plants and more absorbent 
surfaces, and to work with natural watershed processes to achieve both flood control and habitat protection 
goals. In shoreline areas, the newer term blue infrastructure refers to creating natural infrastructure, habitats, 
and flood buffers within the water or tidal reach. These projects may include engineered marshes, oyster reefs 
or carbon- sequestering wetlands that reduce subsidence. A new term, living levee, refers to levees that may 
include habitats and vegetation, and that are designed to adapt or evolve with changing conditions. [emphasis 
added] 

As described in the passage above, nature-based adaptations can achieve multiple goals of providing both flood control 
and habitat protection/preservation. Habitat protection can in turn lead to minimization of future expenditures on flood 
protection infrastructure and sequestration of carbon. 

60
Page 129 of 158



CCCR Comment Draft Blueprint 8-10-20 Page 5 of 5 

For the reasons outlined above we recommend the language in the “Maintain Urban Growth Boundaries” strategy be 
modified as follows; 

Using urban growth boundaries and other existing environmental protections, confine new development within 
areas of existing development or areas otherwise suitable for growth, as established by local jurisdictions. 
Protect undeveloped shoreline areas, vulnerable to flooding, with existing habitat or habitat restoration 
potential. 

The document “Making California’s Coast Resilient to Sea-Level Rise: Principles for Aligned State Action” provides clear 
State guidance that all planning efforts should anticipate at minimum 3.5 feet of sea level rise by 2050. Is this 
incorporated into the analysis of Plan Bay Area 2050? Is this one of the criteria for evaluating priority development 
areas? While 2050 is within the time frame typically used for development projects, we are extremely concerned with 
the 7.6 feet of sea level rise predicted by 2100. Any large infrastructure projects should include this in their 
environmental review process as large infrastructure projects require longer periods of time for implementation. 

Under “Transportation Strategies” the Draft Blueprint states: 

Build a New Transbay Rail Crossing. Address overcrowded conditions during peak commute periods and add 
system redundancy by adding a new Transbay rail crossing connecting the East Bay and San Francisco. 

Will this proposed strategy utilize a minimum 7.6 feet of sea level rise by 2100 during its planning phase? What 
measures would be required to avoid further filling and fragmentation of baylands? 

The 2015 Baylands Ecosystem Habitat Goals Science Update (BEHGU), the work of over one hundred scientists, updated 
the 1999 document to provide recommendations for the preservation and restoration of a functioning baylands 
ecosystem in light of the challenges of climate change and sea level rise. The foreword of the 2015 BEGHU observes, 
“Baylands restoration is not a luxury but an urgent necessity as ecological change accelerates.” Baylands protection and 
restoration is NOT a luxury and these are resources we can ill afford to lose. The Draft Blueprint should incorporate 
language in its strategies, findings and metrics that acknowledges the critical importance protection of the Bay’s 
ecosystems and biodiversity to the health and vitality of the Bay Area and its residents. It is crucial to current and future 
generation that protection of the natural environment is incorporated into planning and protection of the built 
environment.  

Thank you for the opportunity to provide comments.  We request that we be kept informed of future opportunities to 
provide comments, and notification of a Notice of Preparation or Draft Environmental Impact Report. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Carin High 
CCCR Co-Chair 

61
Page 130 of 158



 

 
 

 
 

May 6, 2022 
 
Allison Brooks 
Executive Director 
Bay Area Regional Collaborative 
 
Subject: CHARG Comments to BARC Draft Shared Work Plan 
 
Dear Allison: 
 
On behalf of the Coastal Hazards Adaptation Resiliency Group (CHARG), a strategic initiative of the Bay 
Area Flood Protection Agencies Association (BAFPAA), we would like to thank BARC for the 
opportunity to comment on your Draft Shared Work Plan.  CHARG was formed in 2014 as a platform of 
communication between local, State and Federal government to help address the challenges of sea level 
rise (SLR) and extreme storms in San Francisco Bay. CHARG members are the public agencies 
responsible for protecting people and property along San Francisco Bay and enhancing the shoreline in 
that process, and as such we have climate resilience projects in various stages of planning, design, 
construction, and maintenance.  
 
Our members are implementing flood risk reduction projects in the Bay and planning for flood protection into 
the future under climate change hydrology and SLR conditions. We appreciate the complexity of aligning the 
Bay Area to “accelerate the implementation for strategies that advance climate mitigation and adaptation 

goals.” Yet we have concerns that the draft Work Plan as proposed would not be able to meet that goal.  It is 
in that spirit that we respectfully provide the following comments on the Draft Shared Work Plan.   

• The voice of the professional flood engineering community is largely missing from the Work Plan. 
The draft is largely focused on planning and does not include the agencies that have actually 
designed, permitted and constructed flood protection and nature-based projects on the shorelines 
and up-stream watersheds. The realities of having to design, permit and fund implementable 
projects can be very difficult and expensive due to a number of factors. The expertise and 
experience of CHARG members should be included in the Work Plan at its most fundamental 
level as we move into the adaptation phase. Major barriers including permitting hurdles that 
increase project costs, should be included as a priority for the Work Plan and State. Public safety is 
not a special interest or a secondary factor in decision making around SLR and should be central to 
any decisions.   
 

• The State budget enacted last year included a very large investment in climate resilience and the 
coming budget may build on that.  The Work Plan is unclear which key stakeholders (including 
BARC, MTC/ABAG, and BCDC) would receive funding and/or play a role in the distribution of 
funding.  CHARG members believe that a substantial amount of critical funding should go directly 
to, the cities, counties, and special districts implementing solutions to protect people, property, and 
infrastructure, and that a larger diversity of regional entities should be involved in the funding 
decisions.  The draft as provided is heavily weighted on new agency planning staff.  

• We support the use of green infrastructure to meet objectives around resilience (including the 
resilience of natural areas), wherever feasible.  However, green infrastructure is not feasible or 
effective to protect against flooding everywhere, and funding priorities should also reflect that.  
 

• Table B2: In Year 1, you propose “Establish center of expertise for climate adaptation that 
includes staff from across BARC member agencies.”  It is important that this center have a 

62
Page 131 of 158



CHARG Comments to BARC Draft Shared Work Plan 
May 6, 2022 
Page 2 
 

practical applied engineering-based core and include the practical benefits and limitations of green 
and gray solutions as well as costs in adaptation practice.   
 

• Any proposed funding needs to include stand-alone traditional urban flood protection measures 
including levees, pipes and pumps and tide gates where green infrastructure is not feasible or 
sufficient in order to provide meaningful and effective flood protection under current and future 
conditions.  In the past, funding through State agencies like State Coastal Conservancy and San 
Francisco Bay Restoration Authority do not fund these types of measures which limits the ability 
of implementing agencies to provide effective flood protection measures to the infrastructure, 
residents, and businesses along the shorelines.  

 
CHARG member agencies see a lot of value in the Bay Area making collective efforts to align and 
connect regional with local resilience planning between cities and counties.  It is important that we – and 
the many other stakeholders that have not been a part of the process to develop the Shared Work Plan – be 
part of the Plan development. We appreciate your efforts on this plan and believe that the Bay has been 
moving too slowly in meaningful adaptation so real change is required to make SLR adaptation cost-
effective for our Bay Area residents.  We encourage the BARC Governing Board to not advance this 
Work Plan and we cannot support the Plan in its current form. Thank you for your consideration of these 
points.   
 
Sincerely, 
 
Ellen Cross, CHARG Facilitator  
510-316-9657 / https://sfbaycharg.org/ 

 
 

cc: 
Hank Ackerman, Alameda County Flood Control Agency 
Paul Detjens, Contra Costa County Flood Control District 
Roger Leventhal, Marin County Public Works 
Rick Thomasser, Napa County Flood Control Agency 
Len Materman, San Mateo County Flood and Sea Level Rise Resiliency District 
Carlos Diaz, Sonoma Water 
John Bourgeois, Valley Water 

63
Page 132 of 158



 
 

 

Mail: Box #2218, Sunnyvale, CA 94087 
Office: 155 San Lazaro Avenue, Sunnyvale, CA 94086 | www.sustainablesv.org 

SSV is a 501(c)(3) non-profit organization. Donations are tax deductible. Tax ID: 56-2464045 

 

Allison Brooks 

Executive Director 

Bay Area Regional Collaborative (BARC)  
375 Beale Street, Suite 800 

San Francisco CA 994105  May 6, 2022
  

Subject: Draft Shared Work Plan 

 

Dear Ms. Brooks, 

 

On behalf of Sustainable Silicon Valley, we would like to express our strong support for BARC’s Shared 
Work Plan in service of September’s Joint Resolution to Address Climate Change. As a “think & do tank” 

focused on an innovative, equitable, healthy and decarbonized Bay Area, Sustainable Silicon Valley is 

committed and poised to help.  
 

If we are to meet the myriad challenges of a drastically changing climate, we must do it together. It will 

take an abundance of villages, united in a region. The Shared Work Plan’s goal of strategically aligning 
regional planning and regulatory initiatives is a necessary step towards accelerating implementation of 

effective strategies.  

 
The Bay Area, whether defined by the traditional nine counties or the 9.7+ million people fourteen 

county Federal Combined Statistical Area, is a vast territory within the largest state. It will be quite an 
effort to harmonize over a hundred local governments of various sizes, more than twenty-seven transit 

operators and many relevant regulatory authorities, but it is vital work that must be done. A united 

regional approach will be decisive towards gaining State and Federal infrastructure investment. 
 

Many Sustainable Silicon Valley programs and initiatives dovetail with BARC Work Plan focus areas. 

Some examples: our recently completed cloud-based, AI-powered intelligent Transit Signal Priority (iTSP) 
pilot demonstrated significantly reduced intersection delays and overall route travel time; we have long 

championed water reuse and are working to smooth satellite facility permitting and interconnection; 

our Regenerative Communities project is currently analyzing a portfolio of large commercial 
development projects through a multi-factor sustainable lens; we’ve been advocating for seamless 

transit through our ongoing support for Senate Bill 917; and we’ve been promoting the valuation of 

multi-benefits through strategic and budgetary approaches to urban cooling through our work with the 
Smart Surfaces Coalition. 

 

There’s a lot of work to do on a lot of levels. Please feel free to contact us should you have any 
questions or comments. 

 

Sincerely, 
 

 
 Jennifer Thompson  Dennis Murphy 

 Executive Director  Director, Water & Sustainable Life 
 Sustainable Silicon Valley Sustainable Silicon Valley 

 jthompson@sustainablesv.org dmurphy@sustainablesv.org 

64
Page 133 of 158



Hello, 

I’m a Transportation Planner in SFMTA’s Policy & Long Range Planning group, and I’m sharing 
some comments on BARC’s new regional shared work plan to advance climate adaptation. 

Apologies that I have not been involved beforehand with this effort, and don’t have much 
context for the work. Please forgive me if some of the comments are subsequently missing the 
mark. 

Feedback: 

● It is great to see attention and planning for climate adaption featured in the first two
initiatives. We hope these can generate significant resources for local adaption and
resilience projects, which are critical for SF.

● The SFMTA supports the transition to Zero-Emission Buses and is undertaking this shift
at present. We also welcome any efforts to secure further funding and logistical support
for this effort, as the transition will require significant investment and infrastructure.

● While attention to bus electrification is important, from a greenhouse gas emissions
standpoint, the real opportunity for emissions reduction is by shifting travel choices away
from driving. Public transit produces a miniscule fraction of emissions in the
transportation sector, and we would hope that there would be at least one strategy,
placed front and center, that speaks more directly to the way that trips will be shifted out
of cars and into low-carbon options like walking, biking, and public transit. There are
programs at the regional level to encourage mode shift, and we’d encourage their call-
out here.

● We like the nexus between land use, housing, transportation and emissions reduction in
Initiative 4. Still, there is more opportunity to reference a shift to low-carbon travel
choices (walking, biking, transit). This initiative references trip reduction; this may not be
the best framing, as people should be encouraged to get around and take trips. The
emphasis should be on shifting the method of travel. Telecommuting is also something
worth promoting, if that is meant by trip reduction.

● Lastly, while we appreciate the investment and innovation that Initiative 4 could bring to
“high-equity neighborhoods,” it is important that the burden to decarbonize not fall just on
these neighborhoods. In fact, high-income households produce an outsize proportion of
emissions, particularly from transportation. If one were to target neighborhoods to bring
down emissions, it might require looking closely at driving and emissions rates from
higher income zip codes.

65
Page 134 of 158



Thank you for the consideration and opportunity to comment. 

Keith Tanner 

Senior Transportation Planner 

Sustainable Streets Division 

(he / him / his) 

Office 415.646.2345 

Email  Keith.Tanner@sfmta.com 

San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency 

1 South Van Ness, 7th floor 

San Francisco, CA 94103 

66
Page 135 of 158



BARC 3-Year Operational Budget Comparison

Fiscal Years 2022, 2023, 2024 (Draft)

FY22 FY23 FY24 (Draft) NOTES

Salary + Benefits + 

Overhead (MTC) 738,134$         782,459$         829,328$              

 Executive Director, Program 
Coordinator, Part-time Admin 
(2.4 person month) 

Subtotals 738,134$         782,459$         829,328$              
General 

Operations 50,500$            36,000$            26,500$                
Travel, training, membership, 

events

Subtotals 50,500$            36,000$            26,500$                

Contingency 126,000$         400,000$         406,478$              
Consultants to support shared 

work plan + communications

Subtotals 126,000$         400,000$         406,478$              

Totals 925,688$       1,218,459$    1,262,306$        

AGENCY CONTRIBUTIONS

MTC Total (35% = ) 323,984$         $426,461 441,807$              

BAAQMD Total (35% = ) 138,850$         $426,461 441,807$              

ABAG total (15% =) 323,984$         $182,769 189,346$              

BCDC Total (15% = ) 138,850$         $182,769 189,346$              

TOTALS 925,668$       1,218,459$    1,262,306$        

Page 136 of 158



MTC/BAAQMD
Cooperative Agreement

Page 1

COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT
Between METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION COMMISION

and BAY AREA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT

Regarding FY 2023-2024 BAY AREA REGIONAL COLLABORATIVE (BARC) STAFFING 
SUPPORT, this Cooperative Agreement is entered as of July 1, 2023, by and between the 
METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION (hereinafter “MTC”) and the BAY 
AREA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT (hereafter “BAAQMD”) collectively 
referred to herein as “the Parties”.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, MTC and the BAAQMD, as members of the Bay Area Regional Collaborative 
(BARC) each commit 35% of the total budget for BARC, with the Association of Bay Area 
Governments (ABAG) and the San Francisco Bay Conservation and Development Commission 
(BCDC), as the two other agencies written into the originating legislation for BARC, also known 
as the Joint Policy Committee (SB849, Torlakson), each contributing 15% towards the total 
budget for BARC; and  WHEREAS, MTC has committed funding of $441,807 for fiscal year 
2023-2024 to fund the BARC Executive Director and a BARC Program Coordinator and some 
associated costs, for fiscal year 2023-2024 to support:

• Implementing the BARC Shared Work Plan (Attachment B) by developing and 
assisting in the completion of BARC initiatives, facilitating the involvement of staff 
from BARC member agencies, and managing contracts with consultants.

• Working with BAAQMD staff in various capacities to help in the delivery of the 
Environment Protection Agency’s (EPAs) Climate Pollution Reduction Grant 
Program (CPRG), including serving on the Advisory Working Group (AWG) and 
participating in multiple workshops to develop the Priority Climate Action Plan and 
identifying implementation funding application ideas.

• Helping to coordinate aligned regional policymaking by promoting cohesive and 
collaborative relationships among the regional agencies that serve in the BARC 
consortium.

• Overseeing BARC policy and programmatic efforts related to climate protection, sea 
level rise and adaptation strategies.

• Assisting with the coordination and integration of air quality, greenhouse gas 
reduction, and climate adaptation issues in the next Plan Bay Area (Sustainable 
Communities Strategy).

• Working closely with BAAQMD staff and other regional agency partners in the 
development and implementation of collaborative projects supporting local 
jurisdictions in meeting carbon free energy goals and campaigns to eliminate use of 
diesel fuels. Focus continues to be on working with BAAQMD and MTC staff in an 
initiative focused on supporting Bay Area transit operators in the transition to zero 
emission buses and sufficient charging infrastructure. This focus may be adjusted as-
needed as other opportunities emerge. 

Page 137 of 158



MTC/BAAQMD
Cooperative Agreement

Page 2

• Working closely with BAAQMD and MTC/ABAG in addressing the nexus of land 
use planning, transportation planning, and air quality in vulnerable and disadvantaged 
communities as directed by Assembly Bill (AB) 617.

• Working with the BARC member agencies to better coordinate capacity-building, 
community participation, and outreach efforts in the Bay Area’s most vulnerable and 
disadvantaged communities.

• Assisting the BARC Chair and Vice-Chair in preparing agendas, supporting 
materials, and minutes for BARC action.

• Assisting with other initiatives as directed by the BARC Chair and Governing Board, 
and under advisement from executives at BARC member agencies. 

• Reporting to BAAQMD Board of Directors on BARC activities upon request. 

WHEREAS, BAAQMD has committed $441,807 for fiscal year 2023-2024 for the above stated 
purpose, with MTC, the Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG), and the San Francisco 
Bay Conservation and Development Commission (BCDC) providing additional supporting 
funds, for a total project budget of $1,262,306 for fiscal year 2023-2024 (Attachment A) to 
conduct tasks listed above, in addition to any others jointly agreed to between MTC and 
BAAQMD.

NOW, THEREFORE, MTC and BAAQMD hereto agree as follows:

1. The BAAQMD agrees to provide MTC with four hundred forty-one thousand 
eight hundred seven dollars ($441,807) within 120 days of execution by the Parties of 
this Agreement. Payment shall be made to MTC as the address listed below:

Metropolitan Transportation Commission
Accounting Department

375 Beale Street, Suite 800
San Francisco, CA 94105

If there is, for any reason, a lower cost for the Executive Director and Program Coordinator and 
consultant services than the full budgeted $1,262,306 for FY 2023-2024, the balance will be 
carried over to the following fiscal year and the budget for the following fiscal year adjusted 
accordingly. 

2. The parties agree to work cooperatively to provide guidance to the BARC Executive 
Director through the implementation of the contract period.

3. All notices or other communications to either party by the other shall be made in writing 
and delivered or mailed to such party at their respective addresses as follows:

To MTC: Attention: Brad Paul
Metropolitan Transportation Commission 
375 Beale Street, Suite 800
San Francisco, CA 94105

Page 138 of 158



MTC/BAAQMD
Cooperative Agreement

Page 3

To BAAQMD: Attention: Gregory Nudd
Bay Area Air Quality Management District
375 Beale Street, Suite 800
San Francisco, CA 94105

4.  This Agreement may only be amended in writing and executed by both parties.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the parties hereto.

METROPOLITAN 
TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION

BAY AREA AIR QUALITY 
MANAGEMENT DISTRICT

Andrew B. Fremier, Executive Director Dr. Philip M. Fine, Executive Officer

Page 139 of 158



AGENDA:     11.  

BAY AREA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
      Memorandum 
 
To: Chairperson Davina Hurt and Members 

of the Board of Directors  
  
From: Philip M. Fine 

Executive Officer/APCO  
  
Date: February 7, 2024  
  
Re: Participation in Community Air Protection Program Implementation Funds Fiscal 

Year Ending (FYE) 2023-2024 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Recommend the Board of Directors to adopt a resolution accepting Community Air Protection 
Program Implementation Funds for Fiscal Year Ending (FYE) 2023-2024.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Budget Act of 2023 provides funds for California Air Resources Board (CARB) to allocate 
to local air quality districts for expenses related to implementation of AB 617 (C. Garcia, 
Chapter 136, Statutes of 2017). The Air District has been approved by CARB for a grant award 
of $11,333,333 under the Community Air Protection Program for Fiscal Year 2023-2024 
(23CAPP). This grant award is consistent with the allocation recommended by the California Air 
Pollution Control Officers Association (CAPCOA) and was approved by CARB.  
 
DISCUSSION 
 
CARB has requested that the Air District’s Board of Directors adopt a resolution (see 
Attachment) to accept this funding. Implementation funds are used to cover Air District staff 
costs related to AB 617 implementation, related professional services, facilitation and language 
access services, community monitoring, and community stipends and support for community 
organizations. This funding also covers the agency’s administrative and indirect costs associated 
with administering the AB 617 Program. 
  
In accordance with Assembly Bill (AB) 102, section 15.14, 25 percent of the Greenhouse Gas 
Reduction Funds that make up the 23CAPP, or $2,361,111.04, will be withheld until the fourth 
quarter Cap-and-Trade auction and approval from the Department of Finance. The remainder, or 
$8,972,221.96, will be available for immediate disbursement. 
 
 
 
 

Page 140 of 158



 
 

 2 

 
 
BUDGET CONSIDERATION/FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
The 23CAPP funds, $11.33 million, will support the Air District’s ongoing AB 617 
implementation program and will be included in the Air District’s FYE 2025 approved budget.    
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Philip M. Fine 
Executive Officer/APCO 
 
Prepared by: Christy Riviere 
Reviewed by: Suma Peesapati 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1.   Resolution Accepting Community Air Protection Program Implementation Funds from the 
California Air Resources Board 

 

Page 141 of 158



BAY AREA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
RESOLUTION No. 2024 - XX

A Resolution Accepting Community Air Protection Program Implementation Funds
from the California Air Resources Board

WHEREAS, The California Legislature provides funds for the California Air Resources Board (CARB) to 
allocate to local air quality districts;

WHEREAS, Assembly Bill 617 (C. Garcia, Chapter 136, Statutes of 2017) directs air districts to implement 
a Community Air Protection Program;

WHEREAS, the Bay Area Air Quality Management District (District) has been approved by CARB for a 
grant under the Community Air Protection Program for Fiscal Year 2023-2024;

WHEREAS, CARB requires the local air districts to accept Community Air Protection Program 
implementation funds via approval by the Board of Directors to accept such grant of funds;

WHEREAS, CARB will award a grant to the District in the amount of $11,333,333 for Fiscal Year Ending 
2023- 2024; 

WHEREAS, Assembly Bill (AB) 102, section 15.14, requires that 25 percent of the Greenhouse Gas 
Reduction Funds that make up the Fiscal Year Ending 2023-2024, Community Air Protection Program 
Implementation funds, or $2,361,111.04, be withheld until the fourth quarter Cap-and-Trade auction 
and approval from the Department of Finance. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Directors hereby approves the District's acceptance of 
the Fiscal Year Ending 2023-2024, Community Air Protection Program Implementation funds, for 
implementation of the District’s AB 617 Program.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Executive Officer/ Air Pollution Control Officer is hereby authorized and 
empowered to execute on behalf of the District all necessary agreements with CARB to implement and 
carry out the purposes of this resolution.

* * * * *

Page 142 of 158



The foregoing resolution was duly and regularly introduced, passed and adopted at a regular meeting of 
the Board of Directors of the Bay Area Air Quality Management District on the Motion of Director 
________________, seconded by Director _______________, on the ____ day of ________________, 
2024 by the following vote of the Board:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

Davina Hurt
Chairperson of the Board of Directors

ATTEST:

Lynda Hopkins
Vice Chairperson of the Board of Directors

Page 143 of 158



 

AGENDA:     12   

BOARD MEETING DATE: February 7, 2024

REPORT: Finance and Administration Committee

SYNOPSIS: The Finance and Administration Committee held a meeting on Wednesday, 
December 20, 2023. The following is a summary of the meeting.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

None; Receive and file.
     John J. Bauters, Chair

         Finance and Administration Committee
JB:mh________________________________________________________________________

Committee Members

Present, In-Person (Bay Area Metro Center (375 Beale Street, 1st Floor Board Room, San 
Francisco, California, 94105): Board Chairperson John J. Bauters; Vice Chairperson Davina 
Hurt; and Directors David Haubert, Lynda Hopkins, Tyrone Jue, and Katie Rice.

Present, In-Person Satellite Location (Mountain View City Hall, 500 Castro Street, Council 
Chambers, Mountain View, CA 94041): Director Sergio Lopez.

Absent: Directors Margaret Abe-Koga, Brian Barnacle, David Hudson, and Mark Ross

Call to Order
Chair Bauters called the meeting to order at 1:08 p.m.

For additional details of the Finance and Administration Committee Meeting, please refer to 
the webcast of the meeting. Please use the webcast’s index to view specific agenda items.

CONSENT CALENDAR 

3. APPROVAL OF THE DRAFT MINUTES OF THE FINANCE AND 
ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE MEETING OF DECEMBER 6, 2023

Public Comments

No requests received.

Committee Comments

None.

Page 144 of 158

https://baha.granicus.com/player/clip/15597?&redirect=true&h=c1be361fef7a573f9f119a5c2425a06f
https://www.baaqmd.gov/~/media/files/board-of-directors/2023/fac_agenda-packet_120623_np_op-pdf.pdf?rev=6a482d8dcc1d49268fd5dbb096f5924a&sc_lang=en


2

Committee Action

Vice Chair Hurt made a motion, seconded by Director Rice, to approve the Minutes of the 
Finance and Administration Committee meeting of December 6, 2023; and the motion carried 
by the following vote of the Committee:

AYES: Bauters, Haubert, Hopkins, Hurt, Jue, Lopez, Rice.
NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: Abe-Koga, Barnacle, Hudson, Ross.

ACTION ITEM

4. MANAGEMENT AUDIT REPORT ON AIR DISTRICT ENGINEERING 
FUNCTIONS AND INITIAL RESPONSE

George Skiles of Sjoberg Evashenk Consulting, Inc. gave the presentation Performance Audit of 
the Engineering Division, including: audit scope and objectives; report findings; and key 
recommendations.

Dr. Meredith Bauer, Deputy Executive Officer of Engineering and Compliance, and Pamela 
Leong, Director of Engineering, then gave the staff presentation Management Audit Report on 
Air District Engineering Functions Initial District Response, including: outline; requested action; 
key audit findings; continuous improvement (timeliness and backlog, tracking, staffing); 
corrective action strategy; next steps; and feedback requested.

Public Comments

Public comments were given by Ms. Margaret Gordon, West Oakland Environmental Indicators 
Project (WOEIP); and Christine Wolfe, California Council for Environmental and Economic 
Balance.

Committee Comments 

The Committee and staff discussed the Air District’s revenue sources (not including permit fees); 
the comparison of the Air District’s number of permit applications with those of other California 
air districts; the Engineering Division’s current vacancy rate; the efficiency of the current version 
of My Air Online, and whether more funds should be invested into it; and the need for the Air 
District to achieve 100% cost recovery, and the concern that air pollution is continuing, 
unabated, in the meantime.  

Committee Action

No vote was taken, but the consensus of the Committee members present was to direct the 
Executive Officer/Air Pollution Control Officer (APCO) to prepare an action plan to address the 
Engineering Audit Report’s recommendation, to be presented to the Finance and Administration 
Committee for approval within 90 days.

Page 145 of 158

https://www.baaqmd.gov/~/media/files/board-of-directors/2023/fac_agenda_122023_op-pdf.pdf?rev=6b6ab1d22f144df88c20ca37d1fd0e89&sc_lang=en


3

This item will be considered at the March 20, 2024, Finance and Administration Committee 
Meeting.

INFORMATIONAL MEETING

5. USING PENALTY FUNDS FOR COMMUNITY BENEFITS

Dr. Philip M. Fine, Executive Officer/APCO, gave the staff presentation Funding Community 
Benefits from Penalty Funds, including: outcomes; background; concept; about the penalties; 
example allocation idea; example results; discussion and feedback; and possible next steps. 

Public Comments

Public comments were given by Ms. Margaret Gordon, WOEIP.

Committee Comments 

The Committee and staff discussed whether collected penalty funds should be returned to the 
communities impacted by polluter violations or be spent on regulated entities’ improvements; the 
concern that the Air District is perceived by some as aggressively penalizing and collecting as 
many fees and penalties as possible; the desire for the community to have the authority and 
autonomy to decide what happens with collected penalty funds; the hope that a decision will be 
reached quickly; the suggestion of tiering the proposed allocation structure so that there are not 
“losers or winners”, and to ensure that communities outside of Assembly Bill (AB) 617 
communities are considered awarded funds; the desire for a participatory a budgeting process.

Committee Action

None; receive and file.

OTHER BUSINESS 

6. PUBLIC COMMENT ON NON-AGENDA MATTERS 

No requests received.

7. COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS 

None.

8. TIME AND PLACE OF NEXT MEETING 
 

The next meeting of the Finance and Administration Committee was to be held at the Call of the 
Chair.  After the meeting adjourned, the next meeting was scheduled for Wednesday, February 
21, 2024, at 10:00 AM, at 375 Beale Street, San Francisco, CA 94105. The meeting will be in-
person for the Committee members and members of the public will be able to either join in-
person or via webcast.

Page 146 of 158



4

CLOSED SESSION (2:28 p.m.)

9. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL RE ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 
(GOVERNMENT CODE SECTIONS 54956.9(a) AND (d)(2))

Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Government Code section 54956.9(a) and 
(d)(2): Claim of Terri Levels (1 claim) and Claim of Rex Sanders (1 claim).  

Reportable Action: Dr. Philip M. Fine, Executive Officer/APCO, said that there was 
nothing to report. 

Adjournment 
The meeting was adjourned at 2:44 p.m.

Attachments 
#3-  Approval of the Draft Minutes of the Finance and Administration Committee Meeting of   

December 6, 2023
#4- Management Audit Report on Air District Engineering Functions and Initial Response
#5- Using Penalty Funds for Community Benefits

Page 147 of 158

https://www.baaqmd.gov/~/media/files/board-of-directors/2023/fac_agenda_122023_op-pdf.pdf?rev=6b6ab1d22f144df88c20ca37d1fd0e89&sc_lang=en


 

AGENDA:     13   

BOARD MEETING DATE: February 7, 2024

REPORT: Community Advisory Council

SYNOPSIS: The Community Advisory Council (Council) held a meeting on Thursday, 
January 18, 2024. The following is a summary of the meeting.

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

4. FUNDING COMMUNITY BENEFITS FROM PENALTY FUNDS

1) Recommend that the Air District Board of Directors create a policy in collaboration with 
the Community Advisory Council that automatically sets aside a portion of penalties for 
regional and local benefits; and

2) Recommend that the Air District Board of Directors ensure, with the collaboration of the 
Community Advisory Council, that there is the creation of a plan for community 
outreach and oversight of any local or regional benefit fund spending programs

  John Kevin Jefferson, Co-Chair
 Latasha Washington, Co-Chair
Ken Szutu, Co-Chair
Community Advisory Council

KJJ/LW/KS:mh_________________________________________________________________

1. CALL TO ORDER

The meeting facilitator, Randolph Belle, called the Community Advisory Council meeting to 
order at 6:03 p.m. 

This meeting was held in person, but was conducted under procedures authorized by Assembly 
Bill (AB) 2449 (Rubio 2022), allowing Council Members to attend Ralph M. Brown Act meetings 
remotely without following the traditional rules for teleconferenced meetings, if a member 
participating remotely demonstrates a need to do so, either because of an emergency 
circumstance or other “just cause” as defined in the statute (for non-emergencies, members may 
only make use of this provision two times per calendar year).

Roll Call: 

Present, In Person: Council Co-Chairpersons Kevin John Jefferson, Latasha Washington, and 
Ken Szutu; and Council Members Fernando Campos, William Goodwin, Ms. Margaret Gordon, 
Arieann Harrison, Joy Massey, Hana Mendoza, Rio Molina, Dr. Jeff Ritterman, and Kevin G. 
Ruano Hernandez.

Page 148 of 158



2

Participated Remotely, via Zoom (remote presence does not count for quorum, but votes are 
counted for all action items): Council Member Mayra Pelagio (just cause).

Absent: Council Members Dr. Juan Aguilera and Violet Saena. 

For additional details of the Community Advisory Council Meeting, please refer to the webcast. 
Please use the webcast’s index to view specific agenda items.

CONSENT CALENDAR

2. APPROVAL OF THE DRAFT MINUTES OF THE COMMUNITY ADVISORY 
COUNCIL MEETING OF NOVEMBER 30, 2023

Public Comments 
 
No requests received.

Council Comments 

None.

Council Action

Council Member Ruano Hernandez made a motion, seconded by Council Member Goodwin, to 
approve the Draft Minutes of November 30, 2023, and the motion carried by the following vote 
of the Council:

AYES: Campos, Goodwin, Gordon, Harrison, Jefferson, Massey, Mendoza, 
Molina, Pelagio, Ritterman, Ruano Hernandez, Szutu, Washington. 

NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: Aguilera, Saena. 

Motion Approved

ACTION ITEMS

3. ELECTION OF COMMUNITY ADVISORY COUNCIL CO - CHAIR

Suma Peesapati, Environmental Justice and Community Engagement Officer, gave the staff 
presentation Election of Community Advisory Council Co-Chair, including: outcome; requested 
action; outline; Section 1.3.1 (Duties of Leadership). 

Public Comments

No requests received.

Page 149 of 158

https://baha.granicus.com/player/clip/15828?&redirect=true&h=7199f6222fb492a0e262f0ab5e90fc4c
https://www.baaqmd.gov/~/media/files/board-of-directors/community-advisory-council/2024/cac_agenda_packet_011824_op-pdf.pdf?rev=de5bd6baafab48e78b0e0f9ae2258c8c&sc_lang=en
https://www.baaqmd.gov/~/media/files/board-of-directors/community-advisory-council/2024/cac_agenda_packet_011824_op-pdf.pdf?rev=de5bd6baafab48e78b0e0f9ae2258c8c&sc_lang=en


3

Council Comments

The Council and staff discussed whether nominations had already closed or could be given 
during the meeting.

Council Action 

Council Member Ms. Margaret Gordon made a motion, seconded by Dr. Ritterman, to appoint 
Ken Szutu as a third Council Co-Chairperson, effective immediately; and the motion carried by 
the following vote of the Council:

AYES: Campos, Goodwin, Gordon, Harrison, Massey, Mendoza, Molina, Pelagio, 
Ritterman, Ruano Hernandez, Szutu.

NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: Jefferson, Washington.
ABSENT: Aguilera, Saena. 

Motion Approved

4. FUNDING COMMUNITY BENEFITS FROM PENALTY FUNDS

Greg Nudd, Deputy Executive Officer of Science and Policy, gave the staff presentation Funding 
Community Benefits from Penalty Funds, including: potential presentation outcomes; 
background; proposal; about the penalties; example method for allocation; results; Finance and 
Administration Committee Meeting of December 20, 2023; Council feedback; and action parts 1, 
2, and 3. 

Public Comments

Public comments were given by Pat Toth Smith, Benicia resident; Kathy Kerridge, Benicia 
resident; Nancy Reiser, Crockett resident; Stuart McCullough, Martinez Community Foundation; 
Heidi Taylor, Healthy Martinez; Stephen Golub; Marilyn Bardet, Benicia resident; Michael 
Coody, Rodeo resident; Mayor Brianne Zorn, City of Martinez; Maureen Brennan, Rodeo 
resident; T. Shaia, Rodeo resident; Judith Sullivan, Benicia resident; Betty Lucas, Benicia 
resident; David Gassman, and Jean Tepperman.

Council Comments 

The Council and staff discussed how the Council will be involved in this process, should the 
Board accept the recommended actions; the desire that the Air District implements a future 
participatory budgeting process; the desire to see penalty fees significantly increased; the extent 
to which are penalty and permit fees are expected to increase; current funding sources of the Air 
District’s enforcement program; whether the budget target of $3M is a static target, or whether 
that amount may be set it lower or higher; whether the recommended action presented to the 
Council is to recommend that the Board create a policy, or approve a policy that was already 
created by staff; new methods and criteria being utilized to increase lawsuit settlements; the 

Page 150 of 158



4

history of annual Air District fee increases; violation circumstances that would cause the Air 
District to revoke an issued permit; health data analysis the Air District uses to measure the 
health outcomes of fenceline community residents; whether penalty fees are automatically 
increased each time a facility violates a regulation; reasons for the anticipated increase in penalty 
collections in 2024, and whether penalty amounts can ne estimated; the Council’s desire for the 
Air District to make use of community partnerships and clearly communicate how community 
advocacy can help the Air District enforce Air District regulations; the definitions of “local” and 
“regional”; the request for improved and enhanced public outreach regarding Council mtgs; why 
only a one-year pilot program is being proposed (instead of a permanent program) when there is 
already a history of Air District regulation violations; concerns about the training and current 
practices of the Air District’s Compliance & Enforcement staff; the desire for improvements to 
the Air District’s Air Quality Complaint Program (quicker follow up), and concerns that the Air 
District’s current system does not support the needs of the community; the suggestion that the 
Air District collect feedback from the Assembly Bill (AB) 617 Community Emissions Reduction 
Plan Community Steering Committees on this proposed program; whether changes to policy will 
be coupled with changes to (interpretations of) regulations so that higher penalties may be 
assessed; the suggestion of implementing the proposed allocation structure, regardless of whether 
the penalty payment amount reaches $100,000; how the Air District plans to mitigate future 
situations in which facilities operate without permits, and the request for a list of such former 
violations; whether facilities whose operations do not require Air District permits are monitored 
by the Air District and can receive Notices of Violation, and the request for a list of the 
exempted companies and whether they have been issued Notices of Violation.

Council Action (Three Items)

Action 1 of 3

Recommended Action:
Consider recommending that the Air District Board of Directors take the following actions: 
• Create a policy that automatically sets aside a portion of penalties for regional and local 
benefits. • Review the results after one year to ensure that the process is equitable and effective.

Co-Chairperson Jefferson made a motion, seconded by Council Member Mendoza, that the 
Council table recommending that the Air District Board of Directors create a policy that 
automatically sets aside a portion of penalties for regional and local benefits, and review the 
results after one year to ensure that the process is equitable and effective.

After further discussion, the maker of the motion withdrew his original motion. 

Then, Co-Chairperson Jefferson made a motion, seconded by Council Member Mendoza, to 
recommend that the Air District Board of Directors create a policy in collaboration with the 
Community Advisory Council that automatically sets aside a portion of penalties for regional 
and local benefits; and the motion carried by the following vote of the Council:

AYES: Campos, Goodwin, Gordon, Harrison, Jefferson, Massey, Mendoza, 
Molina, Pelagio, Ritterman, Ruano Hernandez, Szutu, Washington.

Page 151 of 158



5

NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: Aguilera, Saena. 

Motion Approved

Then, Co-Chairperson Washington made a motion, seconded by Council Member Harrison, to 
recommend that the Air District Board of Directors have the Community Advisory Council 
conduct an annual periodic review of the program after one year to ensure that the policy is 
effective and equitable; and the motion carried by the following vote of the Council:

AYES: Campos, Goodwin, Harrison, Jefferson, Massey, Mendoza, Molina, 
Pelagio, Ritterman, Ruano Hernandez, Szutu, Washington. 

NOES: Gordon.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: Aguilera, Saena.

Motion Approved

Action 2 of 3

Recommended Action:
Consider recommending that the Air District Board of Directors take the following action: 
• Ensure community outreach and oversight of any local or regional benefit fund spending 
programs.

Council Member Pelagio made a motion, seconded by Co-Chairperson Jefferson, to recommend 
that the Air District Board of Directors ensure, with the collaboration of the Community 
Advisory Council, that there is the creation of a plan for community outreach and oversight of 
any local or regional benefit fund spending programs; and the motion carried by the following 
vote of the Council:

AYES: Campos, Goodwin, Gordon, Harrison, Jefferson, Massey, Mendoza, 
Molina, Pelagio, Ritterman, Ruano Hernandez, Szutu, Washington.

NOES: None.
ABSTAIN: None.
ABSENT: Aguilera, Saena. 

Motion Approved

Action 3 of 3

Recommended Action:
Consider recommending that the Air District Board of Directors take the following action: 
• Create a policy that automatically sets aside a portion of penalties for regional and local 
benefits according to the proposed allocation scheme

Page 152 of 158



6

Co-Chairperson Jefferson made a motion to recommend that the Air District Board of Directors 
create a policy that automatically sets aside a portion of penalties for regional and local benefits, 
but, due to the lack of a second, the motion was tabled.

Motion NOT Approved

This item will be considered at the February 14, 2024, Community Equity, Health and Justice 
Committee Meeting.

THE COUNCIL RECESSED AT 8:56 P.M., AND RESUMED AT 9:11 P.M.

INFORMATIONAL ITEM

5. COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT UPDATE

Brian Case, Assistant Counsel II of the Air District’s Legal Office, Paul Grazzini, Supervising 
Air Quality Specialist of the Air District’s Compliance and Enforcement Division, and Tanya 
Boyce, Executive Director of the Environmental Democracy Project, gave the presentation 
Enforcement Case Study: Green Sage Cannabis Cultivating Facility, including: outcome; 
requested action; overview; Before Telling the Story, a Moment to Reflect on the Health and 
Safety of Our Communities; Green Sage Management; the scale of the violation; violations at 
Green Sage; duration of the violation; who were the advocates and agencies; Environmental 
Democracy Project’s (EPD) three-pronged approach; community efforts and collaboration; 
EPD’s suggestions for improvements; CalEnviroScreen 4.0 Bay Area regional map; Green 
Sage’s defiance of enforcement efforts; and Air District Compliance and Enforcement Division 
Perspective.

Public Comments

No requests received.

Council Comments

The Council and staff discussed whether EPD can still partner with the Air District, as Ms. 
Boyce has left the Bay Area and plans to step down as Executive Director; why the enforcement 
action that was taken in this case is not applied to all violations, and whether that can be 
regularly replicated, moving forward; the estimated percentage of acts of defiance by regulation 
violators; the location of Green Sage Management’s current operations; where language stating 
whether a specific type of equipment or activity does not require an Air District permit can be 
found; the fact that not all disadvantaged communities have local grassroot legal resources, and 
often struggle to report violations; and the suggestion of increasing the Air District’s resources 
by having enforcement staff confirm complaints that are reported.

Council Action

None;  receive and file.

Page 153 of 158

https://www.baaqmd.gov/~/media/files/board-of-directors/community-advisory-council/2024/cac_agenda_packet_011824_op-pdf.pdf?rev=de5bd6baafab48e78b0e0f9ae2258c8c&sc_lang=en


7

OTHER BUSINESS

6. PUBLIC COMMENT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS

No requests received.

7. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS / OTHER BUSINESS

Council Member Ms. Margaret Gordon requested that the following topics be agendized at future 
Council meetings: 1) how to continue collaborative governmental and community-based efforts 
to stop Air District regulation violations (as seen in the matter of illegal diesel generator use at 
the Green Sage cannabis cultivation facility in East Oakland); and 2) sexual harassment training 
for members of the Council, and the manner in which the Air District processes sexual 
harassment allegations from members of the Council.

8. TIME AND PLACE OF NEXT MEETING

Thursday, March 21, 2024, at 6:00 p.m. at 375 Beale Street, San Francisco, CA 94105. The 
meeting will be in-person for the Community Advisory Council members and members of the 
public will be able to either join in-person or via webcast. 

Adjournment 
The meeting was adjourned at 10:23 p.m.

Attachments
#2 – Approval of the Draft Minutes of the Community Advisory Council Meeting of November 

30, 2023
#3 – Election of Community Advisory Council Co-Chair
#4 – Funding Community Benefits from Penalty Funds
#5 – Compliance and Enforcement Update

Page 154 of 158

https://www.baaqmd.gov/~/media/files/board-of-directors/community-advisory-council/2024/cac_agenda_packet_011824_op-pdf.pdf?rev=de5bd6baafab48e78b0e0f9ae2258c8c&sc_lang=en


AGENDA:     14.  

BAY AREA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
      Memorandum 
 
To: Chairperson Davina Hurt and Members 

of the Board of Directors  
  
From: Philip M. Fine 

Executive Officer/APCO  
  
Date: February 7, 2024  
  
Re: Discussion of PM2.5 National Ambient Air Quality Standard and Initial Area 

Designations 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
None, informational presentation only.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Clean Air Act requires the EPA to set National Ambient Air Quality Standards for pollutants 
considered harmful to public health and the environment. Air quality standards define the 
maximum amount of these pollutants that can be present in ambient air for it to be considered 
healthy to breathe. The EPA has proposed to revise the annual standard for fine particulate 
matter from 12 to 9 – 10 micrograms per cubic meter of air.  
 
Particulate matter is the most significant driver of health risks from Bay Area air quality. 
Exposure to particulate matter has been linked to serious respiratory illnesses and increased risk 
of heart attacks and is especially harmful for children, the elderly and those with respiratory 
conditions. While the Bay Area has made significant progress at reducing levels of particulate 
matter, more stringent standards are needed to protect public health.  
 
DISCUSSION 
 
This presentation will give an informational update on the EPA PM NAAQS reconsideration and 
initial area designations process EPA uses to determine which areas are not meeting a revised 
standard. In addition to a timeline for the designation process and the roles of EPA, CARB, and 
the District, the update will include preliminary data from 2021 through 2023 and an overview of 
the exceptional events rule. The EPA exceptional event rule governs the process EPA uses to set 
aside air monitoring data affected by uncontrollable events, such as days impacted by wildfire 
smoke, for certain EPA NAAQS-related actions, including initial area designations.  
 
 
 
 

Page 155 of 158



 
 

 2 

BUDGET CONSIDERATION/FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
None.    
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Philip M. Fine 
Executive Officer/APCO 
 
Prepared by: Kate Hoag, Ph.D. 
Reviewed by: Gregory Nudd 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
None 
 

Page 156 of 158



AGENDA:     15.  

BAY AREA AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT 
      Memorandum 
 
To: Chairperson Davina Hurt and Members 

of the Board of Directors  
  
From: Philip M. Fine 

Executive Officer/APCO  
  
Date: February 7, 2024  
  
Re: Follow-up to Board Retreat Strategic Plan Discussion 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
None; receive and file.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
At the January 31, 2024, Board of Directors Special Meeting/Retreat the Board of Directors 
received an interactive presentation from BluePoint Planning, the Air District’s strategic 
planning consultant, who together with Vernice Miller-Travis of the Metropolitan Group, 
presented an overview of the Air District’s strategic planning process. The strategic planning 
effort is to culminate in a five-year plan that includes strategic goals and prioritized objectives 
and strategies with measurable results, based on input from communities, other stakeholders, 
Board members, and Air District staff. The strategic plan will align with the environmental 
justice work that the Metropolitan Group is facilitating with the Air District and the Community 
Advisory Council and its Environmental Justice Policy Ad Hoc committee.  
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The Board of Directors and public provided feedback on the strategic plan’s draft framework at 
the January 31, 2024, retreat. Staff gave input during workshops on January 25, 2024, and 
February 1, 2024. At the February 7, 2024, Board of Directors meeting, we will provide an 
overview of the feedback received, offer an opportunity for further discussion of the strategic 
planning process, and summarize next steps.   
 
BUDGET CONSIDERATION/FINANCIAL IMPACT 
 
None. Funds for this project were previously authorized by the Board of Directors. 
 
 
 
   

Page 157 of 158



 
 

 2 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Philip M. Fine 
Executive Officer/APCO 
 
Prepared by: Vanessa Johnson and Deborah Jordan 
Reviewed by: Philip M. Fine 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
None 
 

Page 158 of 158


	 OPENING ITEMS
	 Monthly Calendar
	Monthly Calendar

	1. Call to Order - Roll Call
	2. Pledge of Allegiance
	3. Special Orders of the Day

	 CONSENT CALENDAR (Items 4 - 13)
	4. Approval of the Draft Minutes of the Board of Dire
	Memorandum
	Draft Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting of December 20, 2023

	5. Board Communications Received from December 20, 20
	Memorandum

	6. Personnel Out-of-State Business Travel Report for 
	Memorandum

	7. Notices of Violations Issued and Settlements in Ex
	Memorandum
	Notices of Violations for the Month of November 2023
	Notices of Violations for the Month of December 2023

	8. Authorization to Amend Legal Services Agreement wi
	Memorandum
	Legal Services Agreement - Shute Mihaly - 2022.198 - Final executed 8-2-2022
	Contract 2022.198 - Shute Mihaly Legal Services Agreement - Amendment 1
	Contract 2022.198 - Shute Mihaly Legal Services Agreement - Amendment 2
	Contract 2022.198 - Shute Mihaly Legal Services Agreement - Amendment 3
	DRAFT Amendment No. 4 to Shute Mihaly Legal Services Agreement 2022.198 - January 24, 2024

	9. Authorization to Amend Legal Services Agreement wi
	Memorandum
	Woodruff Spradlin Engagement Letter - Contract 2022-138 - 5-27-2022
	Amendment 1 to Woodruff Spradlin Engagement Letter - Contract 2022-138
	Amendment 2 to Woodruff Spradlin Engagement Letter - Contract 2022-138
	Amendment 3 to Woodruff & Smart Engagement Letter - Contract 2022-138
	DRAFT Amendment 4 to Woodruff Spradlin Engagement Letter - Contract 2022.138 - January 2024

	10. Funding to Support the Bay Area Regional Collabora
	Memorandum
	Approved BARC Shared Work Plan 
	Approved BARC FY24 Budget_3 Year Comparison
	Draft Cooperative Agreement between MTC and Bay Area Air Quality Management District Regarding FYE 2024 

	11. Participation in Community Air Protection Program 
	Memorandum
	Resolution Accepting Community Air Protection Program Implementation Funds from the California Air Resources Board

	12. Report of the Finance and Administration Committee
	Report of the Finance and Administration Committee Meeting of December 20, 2023

	13. Report of the Community Advisory Council Meeting o
	Report of the Community Advisory Council Meeting of January 18, 2024


	 INFORMATIONAL ITEM(S)
	14. Discussion of PM2.5 National Ambient Air Quality S
	Memorandum

	15. Follow-up to Board Retreat Strategic Plan Discussi
	Memo


	 OTHER BUSINESS
	16. Public Comment on Non-Agenda Matters
	17. Board Member Comments
	18. Report of the Executive Officer/APCO
	19. Chairperson’s Report
	20. Time and Place of Next Meeting

	 CLOSED SESSION
	21. Conference with Legal Counsel re Existing Litigati
	22. Conference with Legal Counsel re Anticipated Litig

	 OPEN SESSION
	23. Adjournment




